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INTRODUCTION 

I, the Chairman of the Public Accounts Committee as authorised 
by the Committee do present on their behalf this Two Hundred 
and Thirty-Second Report of the Public Accounts Committee (Fifth 
Lok Sabha) on Paragraphs 5, 10, 16, 17, 18 and 21 of the Report of 
the Comptroller and Auditor General of India for the year 1972-73-- 
Union Government (Defence Services). 

2. The Report of the Comptroller and Auditor General of India 
for the year 1972-73-Union Government (Defence Services) was 
laid oa the Table of the House on 25 April, 1974. The Public 
Amounts Committee (1974-75) examined these paragraphs on 6 and 
21 December, 1974 and 15th January, 1975. Written information in 
regard to the pa'ragraph was also obtained from the Ministry of 
Defence and other Ministries/Departments concerned. 

3. The Public Accounts Committee (1976-77) considered and 
finalised this Report at their sitting held on 18 October. 1976. 
Minutes* of the sittings of the Committee form Part I1 of the Report. 

4. A consolidated statement containing the conclusions/ 
recommendations of the Committee is appended to the Report 
(Appendix V).  For facility of reference these have been printed in 
thick type in the body of the Report. 

5. The Committee place on record their appreciation of the com- 
mendable work done by the Chairman and Members of the Public 
Accounts Committee of 1974-75 in taking evidence and obtaining 
information for the Report. 

6. The Committee place on record their appreciation of the as- 
sistance rendered to them in the examination of the subject by the 
Comptroller and Auditor General of India. 

7. The Committee would also like to express their thanks to the 
officers of the Ministry of Defence, Department of Defence Pro- 

*Not printed. (One cyclostyled copy laid on the Table of the 
House and Ave copies placed in Parliament Library). 

(v) 



duction, Department of Supply and Ministry of Law for the co- 
operation extended by them in giving information to the Commit- 
tee. L 

NEW DELHI; H. N. MUKERJEE, 

October, 27, 1976. 
Kartika, 5, 1898 (S) , 

Chairnznn, 
Public Accounts Committee. 



I 
MANUFACTURE OF AN AMMUNITION 

Audit paragraph 
1.1. In November 1965 the Master General of Ordinance placed 

a demand for 1.50 lakh rounds of an ammunition on the Director 
General, Ordnance Factories. In December 1965 the Director Gene- 
ral, Ordnance Factories, ordered factory 'A' to produce 1.50 lakh 
rounds of the ammunition by March 1967. 

1.2. The design of the ammunition, however, had not been clear- 
ed  by the Research and Development Organisation till November 
1968 when, consequent on a decision taken by the Army Headquar- 
ters, the Director of Ordnance Services informed the Director Gene- 
ral, Ordnance Factories, that the ammunition would not be requir- 
ed as the equipment for which the ammunition was needed was 
likely to be withdrawn from service by April 1970. In  the mean- 
time, however, factory 'A' had placed inter-factory demands on 
four other factories between January 1966 and August 1967 for 
manufacture of components like cartridge cases, propellant, primers, 
boxes and the latter factories had manufactured the components 
worth Rs. 12.89 lakhs. 

1.3. The Ministry sts.ted (February 1974) that out of the com- 
ponents already manufactured it might be possible to use the boxes 
worth Rs. 6.70 lakhs. 
[Paragraph 5 of the Report of the Comptroller and Auditor Gene- 

ral of India for the year 1972-73, Union Government 
(Defence Services) ] 

1.4. The Audit paragraph points out that between January 1966 
and August 1967, factory 'A' had placed inter-factory demands on 
four other factories for the manufacture of components like car- 
tridge cases, propellent, primers and boxes, against which the latter 
factories had manufactured components worth Rs. 12.89 lakhs and 
that the Ministry had stated (February 1974) that out of the corn* 
ponents already manufactured, i t  might be possible to utilise the 
boxes worth Rs. 6.70 lakhs. However, during evidence, the Secre- 
tary, Department' of Defence Production, informed the Committee 
that certain changes would be necessary in the figures indicated 
in the Audit paragraph as these could not be checked properly a t  
the time replies were furnished to the draft paragraph. According 



to the latest verified figures, components worth Rs. 14.68 lakhs had 
been manufactured by the four factories, out of which boxes valued 
at Rs. 6.28 lakhs could be utilised. 

1.5. The Committee enquired into the reasons for placing orders 
for the ammunition on the Direztor General, Ordnance Factories, 
before the design had been cleared. The Secretary, Department of 
~ e f e g c e  Production, stated in evidence: 

. .there is a background to this case which I have to 
explain at  some length. The weapon.. .was received in 
this country in 1951 and had been introduced in the 
Services in 1956. Prior to the operation against the 
Chine* in 1962, the Army had only one Brigade with. . . . 
and even that we thought would be replaced by the 
indigenous.. .gun which was under development. There- 
fore, it was not considered necessary to provide ammuni- 
tion. The Indian guns and weapons were being slowly 
inducted during the Chinese operation. It became clear 
that we could not operate with one para brigade. The 
need was felt to raise more army divisions which had to 
be equipped with modern weapons which we had received 
under the.. .programme from.. .and a number of them 
had also come from. . . .The ammunition for this gun 
was, to a certain extent, over-aged. It is also a fact that 
the stock of the ammunition was not adequate. Therefore, 
as a matter of emergency, after the Kutch operation, is 
1965, a need was felt to get the maximum support in the 
form of ammunition. In 1965, therefore, R&DO had been 
called upon to take up a project for the indigenous manu- 
facture of this ammunition. Formally, they had been 
allotted this project on 31-8-1965. They started their 
design trials and completed those trials in September 
1965. If one goes through the papers, one gets the impres- 
sion that these trials were instituted to match the design 
parameter of the.. .equipment in the sense that the Ballis- 
tic Parameters were ensured as more or less correct. But 
the design, in all its aspects, for instance, in regard to 
cartridge cases and also propellent was not complete. 
However, since they had matched the design parameters, 
it was felt that we would be able to get into production. 
On the basis of the work that had( been going on in the 
R&DO, the MGO thereupon placed an order on DGOF on 
17-11-1965, the year in which there were hostilities with 
Pakistan. This gun was a major weapon for the army. 



The ammunition levels were low and there was a reason- 
able prospect of development by the M D .  It might be 
said that this was the risk which the army had taken to 
get their supplies fulfilled as early as possible." 

I.!;. Accordirt,! ta  the Audit rwagraph, though tactorv 'A' had 
been instructed by the Director General, Ordnance Factories, in 
December 1965, to produce 1.50 lakh rounds of the ammunition by 
March 1967, the design of the ammunition had not been cleared by 
the Research & Development Organisation till November 1968. In 
this connection, the Committee learnt from Audit that it was pro- 
posed in May 1965 to use only indigenous ammunition for this gun 
in place of the imported ammunition and accordingly the Arma- 
ment Research and Development Establishment was asked to exa- 
mine the proposal and render th-e feasibility report. For develop- 
ment of the indigenous ammunition Government sanction was issued 
in August 1965, at  an estimated cost of Rs. 1,97,000. The work on 
the project commenced during May 1965 and was completed in Octo- 
ber 1965 and the total expenditure on the project incurred by the 
Armament Research and Development Establishment was 
Rs. 3,43,570. On completion of the project, drawings were forward- 
ed to the Chief Inspector of Armaments for sealing action. The 
design was to be cleared by the General Staff Branch before intro- 
duction into service. Certified copies of the drawings for t.he ammu- 
nition together with vetted copy of the extract were forwarded by 
the Chief Inspector of Armaments to the General Manager of fac- 
tory 'A' on 25 December, 1965. Certified copies of drawings for 
cartridge cases and for charges were forwarded to factories 'B' and 
'C' on 18 January 1966 and 3 February 1966 respectively. Details 
in regard to the packing of the stores were cleared in Decemher 
1967 when the Chief Inspector of Armaments supplied the sealed 
particulars. 

1.7. The Committee also learnt from Audit that the Ministry had 
inter alia, stated, in January 1974, as follows: 

"Although the Director General, Ordnance Factories had 
planned production of the ammunition on top priority as 
desired by the Master General of Ordnance on the basis 
of drawings and particulars received and extracts vetted 
by the Chief Inspector of Armaments, delay in produc- 
tion was due to difficultiesldelay in the final clearance of 
the design. In December 1966 the R&D Organisation 
informed that the design of the Cartridge Cases had been 
Analised and the same could be sealed accordingly. There 



were some controversies regarding furnishing certain 
details regarding propellant manufactured by factory 'C'. 
Later on these points were all cleared and sealed parti- 
cula;s of Cartridge Cases, Primer, etc. were given by 
Chief Inspector Armaments and the Inspector of Military 
Explosives was asked to undertake inspection of the 6 
lots of propellant manufactured by factory 'C'. In the 
Armament Committee meeting in March 1967, Director 
General, Ordnance Factories had reported that planning 
action for Cartridge Cases as per la test design was being 
proceeded with. Barring the propellant and Cartridge 
Cases, production of other components had been proceed- 
ing and their stock was being built up so that on the 
clearance of the design of the propellant, manufacture of 
the ammunition could be undertaken on priority to com- 
mence issues as early as passible. In the Armament 
Committee meeting in August 1967 it was intimated that 
the pilot batch of Cartridge Cnses produced to the latest 
design was under proof and it was intimated that factory 
'B' could complete 75,000 Nos. of Cartridge Cases by end 
of March 1968." 

1.8. Explaining, at the Committee's instance, the reasons for the 
delay in clearing the design of the ammunition, the Secretary, 
Department of Defence Production, stated in evidence: 

"The design of this ammunition was completed by the R&D 
Cell in 1965 in the manner I have explained and when it 
was put through a series of user's trials in 1966, it was 
found that the pressures were somewhat higher and a 
part of the gun which is known as the sleight flew off. 
There was an enquiry instituted as to why this had hap- 
pened and one finding was that the fault was in the gun 
itself and the ammunition was all right. But, however, 
to compromise with the situation the R&D Organisation 
redesigned the ammunition to give lower pressure. In 
the meantime cartridge cases also had shown signs of 
crack. Our Original intention was to use the..  . . . . . . . . 
Cartridge cases and they were rather longer in size. It 
was decided to cut them into appropriate size so that the 
cut section could be used for the purpose of this equip- 
ment. This was done because of the urgency in 1965. 

The modified cartridge cases produced out of. . . . . . . .cartridge 
cases did not produce the desired results and splits and 



cracks started appearing. So, that also was a difficulty 
and in the end the propellant also became a problem, in 
that a certain kind of picrite which was used in the origi- 
nal ammunition was of.. .origin and was in short supply. 
This again gave rise to high pressures. Before the pro- 
pellant was cleared in 1968, the requirement for this 
ammunition had disappeared." 

1.9. Since orders had been placed on the factories even before 
the design of the ammunition had been satisfactorily cleared, pre- 
sumably on account of uTgency of requirements, the Committee de- 
sired to know whether the Director General, Ordnance Factories had 
proceeded with the production of the ammunition with a sense of 
urgency. The witness stated: 

"The order from the MGO dated 17th November, 1965 stated 
that the drawings had to be vetted by the DGI. There 
is a procedure to be followed in this case. The R&D 
drawings were taken by the DGI, vetted by him and then 
passed on to DGOF. This was done by 25th December, 
1965. Now, if you see the file you will find that the orders 
for cartridge cases and the propellants which were the 
most urgently wanted items were placed on 25th January, 
1966. This was barely a month after he got the drawings 
from the DGI. The order for the boxes came later; as 
they were to be used later. But the order for primers 
was placed in August 1967. This was because, I believe, 
there was a stock of primers in the Ordnance Factory. 
So, this item would not have held up supplies." 

He added: 

"Actually the acceptance of the General Staff Branch to this 
ammunition was given to us on 15th October, 1966 after a 
further set used on trial in which the pressure was re- 
duced to conform to the tolerance of the gun." 

1.10. The Committee were given to understand by Audit that the 
Ministry had also stated (January 1974) that though the represen- 
tatives of Army Headquarters present at the Armament Committee 
meeting, held in August 1967, were fully aware of the progress be- 
ing made in the production of the ammunition, 'no indication of the 
likely cancellation of the order was given by the Army Headquar- 
ters'. Since the design had apparently run into difficulties, the 



Committee asked why the order was not cancelled earlier or the 
Director General, Ordnance Factories asked to go slow with the 
production of the ammunition and its components. The Secretary, 
Department of Defence Production, replied: 

"The answer really to that question is that the supplies of 
the Indian gun was coming up, but it was not coming up 
fast enough. I presume that this was the reason why the 
General Staff Branch did not cancel the orders." 

1.11. Explaining the circumstances in which orders for the anmu- 
nition had been placed before the design was cleared, the Master 
General of Ordnance stated in evidence: 

"The necessity for the orders had been explained adequately 
by Mr. . . . . . . . . . . . .  and the reasons given therefor. The 
question is that we had. . . . .  .regiments which had these 

.whose ammunition was completely overaged-it ..... 
was of 1943 or 1945 manufacture and this ammunition was 
supplied fifteen years later :nd in that event it was 
fifteen years old and, therefore, we could not rely on that 
ammunition. These guns had to be kept in serv:ce be- 
cause the Indian. . . . .  .was coming up only a little later 
not till about the year 1970-71. The ammunition not be- 
ing available, these. . . . .  .regiments would not have been 
of any use unless we had ammunition for these guns. In 
that event the point was that we were assured by R&D 
that the ammunition would be brought out to this parti- 
cular specification and this assurance was kept by us in 
view; that is why we kept the orders on for this ammuni- 
tion. In 1968 we had known that we will keep these guns 
only for another 3 years; and that by the time we got the 
ammunition, these guns will be going out of service. 
Secondly, I would add that the shell being used in this 
ammunition was the same shell as is used in the indigen- 

. . . . . . . . .  ous one. The cartridge case was the..  .one. It  
is only the cordite and the propellant in it which was 
different; and we wanted the same ballistic performance 

. . . . .  as was available with. (the earlier imported ammu- 
nition) ." 

1.12. A note furnished subsequently in this regard by the Depart- 
ment of Defence Production is reproduced below: 

"In 1965 DOS's holdings o f .  . . . .  .ammunition comprised of 
. . . .  imported stock. .and were of 19-43/45 made. The 



shelf life of this ammunition was 15 years and thus their 
total holdings were overage and their continued service- 
ability could not be relied upon. 

In May 1965, it was decided to develop indigenous production. 
The General Staff during July 1965 asked R&D to under- 
take development project. In August 1965 ARDE was 
allotted the development project. In October 1965, R&D 
reported that full-scale technical trials for the develop- 
ment of indigenous. . . . . . had been carried out successful- 
ly. The General Staff was also asked by R&D to accept 
this ammunition without user trials. At a meeting held 
in Additional Secretary's Room on 4 October 1965, it was 
mentioned that the DGOF could manufacture this ammu- 
nition and the MGO should place an order immediately. 
Accordingly, in November 1.965, an order for 1,509000 
rounds to provide for 3 months, WWR for. . . . . .regiments, 
was placed on DGOF." 

1.13. The Committee learnt from Audit that the requirement of 
the ammunition was reduced by Army Headquarters to 1,30,000 
rounds in December 1967. In a note, furnished at the Committee's 
instance, indicating the reasons for reducing the requirements, the 
Department of Defence Production stated: 

"On account of delay in the final clearance of items l i b  
Cartridge Case, Propellant a,nd Primer, the production of 
this item could not commence as per schedule. In De- 
cember 1967, the General Staff carried out a reaparaisal 
of the requirements of this item. It was found that only 
. . . . . .Regiments equipped with the gun were likely to 
continue for the next 4 to 5 years. MGO was, therefore, 
asked on the 20th December, 1967 to provide ammunition 
only for. . . . . . Regiments, as against. . . . . .Regiments for 
which orders had initially been placed on the DGOF. 

MGO consequently reduced the quantity on order from 
1,50,000 rounds to 1;30;000 rounds on 23 Decemk:; 1567." 

1.14. Asked when the order for the ammunition had been can- 
celled, the Ma,ster General of Ordnance replied that it was done 
during 1968. The Committee desired to know when the correct de- 
sign had been furnished to the factories. The witness stated: 

"We did not give it to them." 



The Secretary, Department of Defence Production stated in this 
eontext: 

"The Audit paragraph says that the design of the ammuni- 
tion has, however, not been cleared till November 1968, 
because the propellant design was never cleared at  all. 
We were still working on the propellant, when the Army 
Headquarters cancelled the order. The date refem to the 
date of the cancellation of the order. By that time, the 
design had not been cleared by DRDO." 

1.15. The Committee desired to know when a decision had been 
taken bJ7 the Armv Headquarters to withdraw from service the 
weapon for which the ammunition was required and when the deci- 
sion was communicated to the Director General. Ordnance Factories. 
In a note, the Department of Defence Production stated: 

"As the revised order for 1,30,000 rounds of the ammunition 
was assessed to materialise by 1970-71. in October 1968, 
the Art i l le~y Directorate recommended to the General 
Staff that there would be no requirement for this ammu- 

. . . .  . . . . .  nition as by 1970-71, the. .Regiments and. Regi- 
ments could be equipped with the indigenous gun and 
those imported from. . . . .  .The General Staff, accepted 
this recommendation and directed DOS on 4th November 
1968 to cancel the indent placed on the DGOF for the 
r n a n u f a c t ~ r ~  of 1,3O,OOO rounds of the ammunition. 110s 
accordingly asked DGOF on 10th November 1968 to cancel 
the order." 

1.16. Asked when Government had thought of equipping the 
regiments with these guns, the Master General of Ordnance replied: 

"As you will remember, in the 1962 operations against the 
Chinese, we received a certain number of these particu- 
lar  guns along with the connected ammunition for our 
. . . . .  .formations, because these could be used also for 
the . .  . . .  .formations. It is only at  this stage that we got 

. . . .  guns for.  .fore regiments with the ammunition and 
with their connected equipmnts .  So, in 1965 the posi- . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  tion was that we had . .  . . .  .regiments-. 

. . . .  equipped with. .guns." 

1.17. The Committee desired to know whether, having due re- 
gard for the enemy equipment and the area in which the regiments 



had to operate, the guns had rendered fuIly satisfactory service 
The witness stated: 

i 

"I am sony I am not equipped to answer this question a t  this 
time, but I can say that when the Chinese aggression did 
take place in 1962, certainly. . . . . .guns and this gun did 
go into action. They were used. . . . . .The fullest satisfac- 
tion can only arise if you have the equipment that you 
would desire to have and a t  -that particular stage we had 
only. . . . . .guns and this equipment came a little later and 
the Army has to make do with the equipment that is in 
its possession at a particular time." 

Asked whether the guns gave a good account of themselves when 
put to test, the witness replied: 

"Certainly, to the extent that the Army gave'a good account 
of itself." 

1.18. Asked when these guns were actually witndrawn, the wit- 
ness replied: 

"They were actually withdrawn from service from.. . .Regi- 
ments between October 1971 and July 1972 and from one 
regiment somewhere in 1966-67, in fact the end of 1965." 

Since it had apparently been considered fit and necessary to with- 
draw the weapon from a regiment by the end of 1965, the Commit- 
tee desired to know the reasons for delaying its withdrawal even 
till 1972 elsewhere. The witness stated: 

"Simply because a large number o f . .  . .guns were required. 
The..  . .was the indigenous gun being produced in India, 
but it could not be produced in sufficient numbers to 
cater to all the. . . .regiments. Therefore, as we kept on 
getting these particular guns, we kept on withdrawing 
some of the other ones. In fact, a stage had come when 
even some.. . .guns had to be procured from outside." 

1.19. Asked whether the precise reasons for withdrawing these 
guns had been clearly indicated and whether any adverse reports 
on their performance had been received from the Regimental 
Battery Commanders, the witness replied: 

"It is not because of the Battery Commanders, it was because 
of the sustainability of these guns. What happened was, 



If I may again recollect, in 1965. . . . . .we could not get 
the spare parts for their for some time. Secondly, the am- 
munition that we had for t h e p  guns was allover-age. Our 
efforts in developing indigenous ammunition had run into 
certain snags. When you do not have ammunition for 
the guns, it is pointless having those guns and it was a t  
this stage that these particular guns were withdrawn, 
one set in 1967, because we received a certain number of 
guns toequip the Regiments. These withdrawn guns were 
kept as spares and backing for the other. .  . .Regiments. 
We were able to keep it on, our A m y  was able to keep 
it on, until about 1971-72. This was what had been origi- 
nally thought of, and the re-equipment of these particu- 
lar Regiments was, therefore, done by the indigenous 
ones." 

1.20. The Committee desired to know whether it would not, 
therefore, be correct to infer that these guns had to be withdrawn 
because they did not render full satisfaction. The witness stated: 

"I do not think so. It  is not a question of rendering full satis- 
faction. Of course, they will not render full satisfaction 
when the MGO cannot give them the ammunition. So, I 
am giving the reasons why these particular guns were 
withdrawn." 

When asked whether this did not mean that the witness could 
not contradict what had been stated in positive language in regard 
to the performance of the gun, he replied: 

"No Sir. I am afraid I cannot." 
1.21. In reply to another question whether necessary ammuni- 

tion was available in stock for the guns in use till they were with- 
+awn, the witness stated: 

"The over-aged ammunition. The procedure in the Army is 
once an ammunition has outclived its shelf life, we then 
prove it for one year at a time. We take a certain num- 
ber of rounds and prove them and see if they can go on 
for another year. Similarly, we kept on doing it and 
upto the time that these guns were taken out of service, 
this ammunition was certainly usable, with certain 
re: trictions naturally. And, as I told you, from October 
1971 to July 1972, they have been spaced out or de- 
inducted in a very short time, in a period of six to eight 
 month^ which leads me to assume definitely that the 



ammunition a t  this stage was definitely 'becoming un- 
suitable." 

1.22. since it had been stated that out of the components already 
manufactured, it might be possible to utilise boxes worth Rs. 6.28 
hkhs, the Committee desired to know whether all the boxes had 
since been put to use and whether any extra expenditure had been 
incurred for altering the boxes to make them suitable for the alter- 
native use envisaged. In a note, the Department of Defence Pro- 
duction stated: 

"All the boxes manufactured by the. .  . .Factcry (Factory 'D') 
have since been utilised for the packing of other ammuni- 
tion. No alteration to the boxes was required, hence tbt 
question of cost incurred on it does not arise." 

In this connection, the Secretary, Department of Defence Pro- 
duction, however, stated during evidence: 

"Regarding boxes, we have found out only a few days age, 
that there was a modification carried out. We had origi- 
nally stated in a written reply that there was no modifi- 
cation. I am afraid that it is not correct. We have spent 
about Rs. 1.19 lakhs on the modification. These boxes 
have been modified to take grenades and will be used, or 
may be, they have been used. We expect to utilise the 
entire lot of boxes which we have made for packing 
grenades but in comparison with what we would have 
had to spend, had we used nozmal grenade boxes, we 
find that we have had to spend some extra money, ia. t@ 
the extent of Rs. 63,000." 

He added: 

"The net ;ass would be Rupees sixty-three thousand but ~HP 
amount is not really infructuous as  these boxes wodd 
be used for packing grenades." 

1.23. Since it would have been necessary to cut the boxes to 
modify them to accommodate the grenades, the Committee askd 
whether a p n t  of the boxes had become scrap. The Director Gent 
ral Ordnance Factory replied: 

"Only the packing fitments had to be changed. We had ta 
put in 18 grenades in that box." 

1847 LS--2. 



He added: 

The modified box packs 18 grenades as against the capacity 
of the nonnal box, oiz. 12." 

When asked whether it was not necessary to  scrap the earlier 
pertition and weld a fresh partition to accommodate the grenades, 
the witness replied: 

*It was just a wooden compartmental partition." He added 
that the earlier partition was also wooden. 

124. The Committee learnt from Audit that the Controller 
General of Defence Accounts had stated (April 1974) that consc- 
quent upon the alternative use of 8,741 boxes and part of the six 
loose components obtained for the percussion p-imer, the financial 
repercussion would work out to Rs. 5.97 lakhs as under: 

Factory 'A' . . Rs. 3.49 lakhs 

Factory 'B' 
Factory 'C' 
Factory 'D' 

Rs. 1.37 lakhs 

Rs. 0.75 lakhs 

Rs. 0.36 lakhs 

Total Rs. 5.97 lakhs 

1.25. Explaining, a t  the Committee's instance, the details of the 
fnfructuous expenditure incurred on the manufacture of the ammu- 
nition, the Secretary, Department of Defence Production, stated in 
evidence : 

"This figure of Rs 12.88 lakhs is really Rs. 14.68 lakhs. Out 
of this figure, boxes accounted fwr Rs. 6.91 lakhs, cart- 
ridges for Rs. 6.29 lakhs and the propellants for Rs. 1.48 
lakhs. We would utilise boxes to the extent of Rs. 6.28 
lakhs. We would be able to recycle the cartridge cases 
entirely. We estimate the loss on that account to be of 
the order of Rs. 4.31 lakhs. We would be able to re- 
work the propellant which we had manufactured to the 
extent of Rs. 1.48 lakhs and derive value to the extent of 
Rs. 19.08 lakhs. Taking these things into account, we 
expect a net loss of about Rs. 5.35 Iskhs." 



In a note furnished subsequently in this regard, the Department of 
Relawe Reduction stated: 

'Total cost on manufacture of boxes was Rs. 8,91,655.00. Tho 
entire quantity of boxes had been utilised for packing 
grenade. . . . after carrying out suitable modification. The 
cost of modification was Rs. 1.19 lakhs. Net financial re- 
percussions will be Rs. 63,000. This amount has been 
worked out on the basis of difference in the cost of 
packing. 

The book value of Cartridge Cases is Rs. 2,05,070. The casea 
are proposed to be recycled with a utilisation scrap 
value of Rs. 67,692, with financial repercussions of % 
1,37,379. 

The book value of propellant is Rs. 1,48,015. The propei- 
lant is poposed to be utilised (after reworking) to the 
extent of Rs. 1,08,247 with a fmanciaI repercussions of 
Rs. 39,768. 

The book value of primers is Rs. 4,23,725. These are also 
proposed to be recycled with a utilisation scrap value of 
Rs. 1,29,923. 

The overall financial repercussions work out to about Rs. 5.34 
lakhs." 

1.26. The Committee pointed out that when an instance of this 
nature likely to result in infructuous expenditure occurred, steps 
should have been taken to cancel the mders promptly and asked 
whether the particular case had been gone into so as to ensure that 
adequate steps were taken to prevent, the recurrence of such epi- 
sodes. The Secretary, Department of ~ e f e n c e  Production replied: 

"Yes, Sir, we did indeed. But in this particular matter our 
entire developmental procedure was pushed aside be- 
cause of the 1965 hostility. In a normal situation this 
sort of thing would not have happened." 

. 1.27. The Committee are concerned that on account of alleged 
difliicdties/delay in the finalisation of the design of vital components 
at an ammunition roluired urgently for a major weapon in use, an 
expenditure of Rs. 878 lakhs* out of the totd expenditure of Xs. 
IS.12 lakhs** incurred on its indigenous development and mannfac- 

. - . -  -- ----- -- 
*Includes expend'tute on development of the unn:dt:on (Rs. ?*44  lab ks 'I erd financial 

rrpercuss'on after rrc).cl rg of the cnrnponenrs rnanufactued (Rs. 5.34 lakhs J. 
*Wakeofcomponents mar.ufactur~ d (Rs. 14 68 IPLI S) end c xpcrd!rure on d ,v  1 pnl nr 

@. 3.44 U). 



ture proved to be infruetuous. The Committoe note that the pry 
jeft for the development and manufacture of the ammunition wm 
launched as an emergency measure after the Kutch Operation in 
1885 and as time was of the essence of the programme, it could not 
wait for the detailed and meticulous planning that one would expect 
in projects of this nature. Orders for the manufacture of the am- 
 uniti ion had, therefore, bwn placed on the Director General. Ord- 

, - - -  
name ~actories, in November 1965, after the ballistic parameters of 
the ammunition had been cleared by the Research and Development 
,Organiation, in spite of the fact that,,the design of the vital compollc 
.mts like cartridge cases and propellent had not bem completed in 
B!! Str aspects, in the expectation of a reasonable prospect of the 
c h i p s  being developed by the Armament Research and Develop 
ment Establishment. Unfortunately, however, this expectation di19 
not materialise and even before the correct &sign of the propellent 
could be made available to the Director General, Ordnance Factor 
ies, the requirement for the ammunition was said to have "disap 
pear.sd', necessitating the cancellation of the orders for the ammu- 
nition in November 1968 and the premature abandonment of the 
project. v a  b 

1.28. The Committee are conscious that as this was a vita1 wea- 
pon for the Amy, a certain amount of rigk had to be taken in this 
case on stratqic considerations. It  would, however, appear from 
the facts stated below that there had b m n  a certain lack of planning 
and forethmght in the indigenous manufacture of the ammunition 
and that adequate watch and control ovw the projcct at Govern- 
ment 1ev.d was lacking: 

( i )  Though the shelf life of 15 years of the available stockv 
of imported ammunition for the gun, which were of 
1943-45 vintage, had expired much carltsr and, therefore, 
could not be relied upon, the decision to manufacture the 
ammunition indigenously had been taken ollly in 1965, 
some five to seven gears after the ammunition had outliv- 
ed its usefulness. Since it was pointless having the guns 
without the necessary ammuni:ion, and the indigenour 
supplies of an alternative weapon under production were 
also not coming up facit enough, the Committw are unable 
to underdand why the indigenous mamlacture of the 
ommunition bad not been thought of earlier than in 1985 



or recourse had not besn taken to essential imports with- 
ut waiting for some sort of a crisis to develop. 

.@) Since initial difiiculties in the development of an obsolete 
ammunition were only to be expected, Government ought 
to have (after having decided belately to underiake 
.its indigenous manufacture) contemporaneously and eon- 
tinuously monitored the progress of t b  project and ensur- 
ed that it was completed with the requisite vigour and all 
possible speed. Unfortunately, however, this does not 
appear to have been done, as a result of which a vital 
project could not produce results w k  they were need- 

. . ed most. 

@i) Prmnpt and adequate action had also not been taken to  
curtail the manufacturing programme when it was known 
that the design of the ammunition had run into difficultie3 
and that the gun for which the ammunition was intended 
was also in the process of being phased out of service. 
Since the orders for the primer (cost Rs. 4.24) lakhs) had 
been placed only in August, 1967 and the pilot batch of 
cartridge cases produced to the latest design were also 
only under proving trials at  that time, action should have 
been taken after the August, 1967 meeting of the Arma- 
ment Committee either to cancel t b  orders or to ask the 
Director General, Ordnance Factories to go slow with the 
manufacture of the ammunition and its components. Per- 
haps, in that case, much infructuous expenditure, parti- 
cularly on the cartridge cases and the primer, could have 
been largely avoided. 

1.29. The Committee consider that the omission to take certain 
dementary measures in this case has Eezn regrettable. They would 
urge Government to benefit from the experience of his case and 
evolve a suitable machinery for keeping a close and careful watch 
over the progress of such vital projects. Better coordination should 
also be ma:ntained between the uliers and the production units so 
that variations in demand on account of changes in requirements are 
communicated ~t the earliest. S;milarly. where difficulties crop up 
in the development and manufacture of an item, a closer liaison 
should be maintained by the D'nector General, Ordnance Factories, 
with the indentors with a view to mak'ng sure that the users' demand 
bas not, in the meantime, changed radically or ceased to exist and 



that expenditure on a development effort is not continued unnems- 

1.30. Tho reasons for the Besearch and Development Organisation 
Wrmg over three years to design the propellent have also not been 
urtisfactorily explained, The delay in the present case under-scores 
. the need for gearing up the bt & D effdrt which must be able to meet 
the challenges and changing needs of the Armed Forces.  there la 
ao dearth of talent in the country, and truly earnest research in 
indigenous design of weapons and other equipment with a view te 
self-reliance in this vital sphere is called for. 

1.31. The Committee have been informed that while the boxes 
(cost Rs. 6.92 lakhs) manufactured for packing the ammunition had 
been fully utilised, after suitable modifications, for packing grenades, 
it was proposed to recycle and utilise the cartridge cases, primer and 
the propellent with a total utilisation scrap value of Rs. 3.06 lakhs as 
against their original book value of Rs. 7.77 lakhs. They weuld like 
to know whether this process has since been completed and the com- 
ponents utilised 



B 
CONSTRUCTION OF BUILDINGS IN A STATION 

(a) Workshop building 
Audit paragraph 

2.1. In June 1968, Government sanctioned the development of a 
Naval Project at  a station whlch included inter alia construction of 
an armament repair workshop. Construction of the workshop build- 
ing, which is on pile foundation, was carried out up to floor level 
during the pciod 3rd October, 1969 to 4th December, 1970. The pilea 
were completed by a contractor by 10th December, 1969 a t  a cost of 
about Rs. 1.77 lakhs. The work on superstructure costing Rs. 17.27 
lakhs was undertaken by another contractor. By December, 1970 
the building began to show stresses, and during 16th December, 1970 
to 29th March, 1971 cracks in walls and floors, tilting of columns and 
differential settlements were noticed. 

2.2. In  September, 1971 Government constituted a Technical Co* 
mittee (consisting of the Zonal Chief Engineer, who was not concern- 
ed with this work, as Presiding Officer and a representative each of 
the Director General, Naval Project, the Engineer-in-Chief, and the 
Central Building Research Institute, as Members) to conduct a 
detailed enquiry into the causes and factors which led to the defects, 
to fix responsibility for the same and ta  suggest temporary as well 
as permanent remedial measures. The Committee gave an interim 
report in October, 1971 indicating certain short-term precautions 
to protect the building; i t  submitted its Anal report in December, 
1971. 

2.3. The Committee held that while the southern annexe and 
main hall were not in immediate danger and might be put to use 
after essential repairs the structure of the northern annexe was 
seriously skessed and mig5t not be far from the point of collapse 
The Committee, however, felt that it was possible that the settle- 
ment had stabilised as no further settlement had taken place sine 
October, 1971. 

2.4. The following were the major defects noticed by the Conk- 
enittee in the structure of the building:- 

(i) settlement and cracking of floors; 
17 



(ii) cracks in cross partition walls on independent footings; 
(iii) cracks in longitudinal and cross walls supported on 

plinth beams and settlement piles; 
(iv) tilting of columns relative to each other affecting 

structural stability, and kink in the alignment of a 
gantzy girder; and 

(v) settlement and cracks in the lavatory blocks. 

2.5. While determining the effect of the defects on the struc- 
turd safety of the building and tracing the causes of the defects, 
the Committee also made inter at& the following points, which it 
considered as minor and not serious:- 

(i) part of the settlement had taken place during the execu- 
tion of the work; 

(ii) settlement of the floor was due to consolidat!on of com- 
pressible layers under the flocrs; this could have been 
anticipated due to p:esence of the soft clay layers as 
indicated by the bore hole data. Further, the floor 
should have been separated from tliat port:on which is 
coming on pile caps and plinth beams by smoot-h joints. 
This could have been provided by the executive or 
design staff. 

(iii) cracks in cross walls were due to settlement of soil under 
foundations. Information about allowable pressure 
based on consideration of settlement should have been 
obtained from soil exploration team and used; 

(iv) in the site investigation cont-act clearer parametres 
could have been laid down and definite recommendations 
insisted upon; and 

(v) one of the factors which might have contributed to the 
settlement and displacement of the pile? waq t'le flow of 
material caused by the presence, in the new vininity, of 
a dredqed chamel -nd t\e floodi-w in November, 19?0. 
The flow of subso:l material could have been prevented 
by a diaphragm wall. Had the wall bee? constructed 
earlier it would have added to the stability of the 
building. 

2.6. Accordiy to the Committee t\e defects in tho building 
might be primarily due to variation of sub-soil conditions frcm 
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point to point within & same building which coGd not be anti- 
cipated. The Committee felt that nobody could be held responsible 
fm this. 

2.7. On the points (ii) and (iii) brought out by the Committee, 
as ,mentioned above, the Mlnistry stated (Septembx, 1373) a s  
iollows: 

(i) according to the Central Road Research Institute 
Roorkee, the floors in all buildings in the area might 
settle and the sinkage might continue for 50 years. Any 
attempt to eliminate the settlement would result in 
disproportionate expenditure in the foundation aione; 

(ii) the cross walls were to be constructed as per detailed 
machine design and layout of the building. As however, 
the piles and plinth beams had already been completed 
before detailed design was completed, the cross walls 
had to be constructed on open foundation. There were 
practical difficulties in completing the design. 

2.8. The cant-actor who constructed the piles for the building 
was informed for the f i s t  t h e  in December, 1971 that the piles 
had failed to carry the guaranteed load and was asked to under- 
take remedial measures to ensure the guaranteed load. In  reply 
the contractor stated (March, 1972) that the observed pattern of 
stresses as well as the record of settlement ruled out the possiti- 
lity of failure of concrete pile a t  the site. The ccntractor was 
informed by the Director General, Naval Project, in June 1972 that 
as the piles had failed to carry the guaranteed load befate full 
load had develcped in the building, remedial measures to relieve 
the extra stress on piles to avoid further failure had beeniwe-e 
being taken by the department at  his risk and eupense. The con- 
tractor pointed out in July, 1972 that final cert'ficate cf completion 
wcrk had been given to him on 19th March, 1970 by t.he department 
and there was no cbligation on his part to carry out anv remedial 
measures as the maintenance period of twelve calendar month; 
from the date of cnmpletion of the w-rk, as per cmtract, was a1- 
ready over. The Ministry stated (September, 1973) that the Direc- 
tor Ge~era l ,  Naval ~ ro j ec t .  did nct take up the questim of failure 
of the pile7 to carry guaranteed load earlier as tFle msintensnne 
peripd of pi!es as per contract was already over when general siik- 
ing of the area was noti'ced. 

2 9. The Ministrv of Law, to whom the matter w v  referrel i l  
September, 1972, advised in Marc\, 1973 that the d'spute could be 



tefC1~ed to arbitration The matter is yet to be &erred to pn arbt 
trator (September, 1973). 

2.10. The cost of additional w o r b  already done and pmpowd to 
be done to rectify the defects in structure and make the building 
mitable for the wvrbhop was estimated as Rs. 14.16 lakhs. In ad- 
dition, a mobile crane costing about Rs. 3.66 lakhs was procured in 

March, 1973 for being used on the ground inside the workshop as an 
fnterirn measwe as the overhead crane earlier purchased in March, 
1971 at a cost of Rs. 0.82 lakh would be too heavy for  the building. 

2.11. The Ministry stated (September, 1973) that it had been 
decided to call for the explanation of the officer-in-charge planning 
and design and also the Garrison Engineer in-charge of the work. 

paragraph 10(a) of the Report of the Comptroller and 
Auditor General of India for  the year 1972-73, Union 

Government (Defence Services)] 

2.12. The Committee were informed by Audit that the Deputy 
Director General of the Naval Project had stated (February, 1974) 
that while the parameters within which the building was to be con- 
structed were given by the Design Team (of the foreign Govern- 
ntent from whom ships had been acquired), the Director General, 
Naval Project had prepared the structural design of the building 
and concluded the necessary contracts therefor 

2.13. Explaining, during evidence, the background in regard to 
the case commented upon in the Audit paragraph. the Additional 
Secretary of the Ministry of Defence stated: 

"When the project was first initiated, we consulted expertr 
as to w b e e  it should be located and how it should & 
built. We did not have the expertise at  all. As you are 
aware, we have been acquiring a number of naval ships 
from.. . . . .So we have to have a dockyard where these 
could be repaired. We consulted the.. . .and they, after 
surveying the whole area, chose.. . .for locating it. In 
. . . .also, there are in the harbour three arms, the north- 
em arm, the northwestern arm and the western a m  
The northern arm is purely commercial where c o m e r -  
cial berths are situated where the Port Tru& is in charge; 
the northwestern arm war given to B e  Navy. The.. . . 
experts also said that the entire d0ckWd Project arid 
dry docks could be located in the n o r t h w ~ t e m  arm 
 the^ &CI submitted a project rep% At that h e ,  ~0 



did make -a number of mil roundin@ of the strata oi roil 
underneath the northwestern onn and we found layen 
of day. Clay is a treacherous thing for building purpoa 
But we had no choice but to have our building alongside 
the northwestern arm. So the. . . .said that by sinking 
piles and constructing the building on them, there would 
be a good deal of stability and the dockyard could be 
built in the northwestern a rm 

Building No. 25 was among the f i s t  to & built in that trea- 
cherous soil area. The sanction was for Rs. 19.1 lakhs 
out of which Rs. 1.77 lakhs was for the piles and about 
Rs. 17 lakhs for the superstructure. So first the piling 
work was given to one contractor and the superstructure 
work to another. After piling work was completed, i t  
was tested and found satisfactory. This was by Decem- 
ber 1969. After that, the superstructure was constructed. 
I t  was almost over by about November 1970 when the 
engineers began seeing cracks. Slowly these developed 
and by March 1971 there were a number of them in the 
superstructure. Then they made a ~ e p o r t  to Govern- 
ment. Government appointed a committee!' 

2.14. The Committee further learnt from Audit, in this context, 
'that the pile foundation for this building was carried out along with 
the requirement for other buildings by Cementation Co. Ltd., Cal- 
cutta and that the construction of the supemtructure was commenc- 
ed on 21 January 1970 and completed on  20 April 1971, by Bhasin 
Engineers. The Committee were also informed that the value ot 
the contract with Cementation Co. Ltd. was Rs. 10.56 lakhs and 
the actual completion cost Rs. 8.85 lakhs and that the propartionate 
cost of pile work done for this buildigg (No. 25) was Fb. 1,76,520. 

2.15. The Committee desired to know the details of the loads spe- 
cified and guaranteed as per the terms of the contract for pile foun- 
dation work of the workshop. In a note furnished in this regard, 
the Ministry of Defence indicated the following specifications as 
given in the contract and to the technical Committee: 



T?q Committee were also informed that the loads specified for piles 
of 16 , 18 and 20" diameter were for a guaranteed capacity of 30 
tons, 50 tons and 80 tons respectively. 

2.16. Asked whether, at  the time of giving the completion certi- 
&ate to the contractor, it was ensured that the piles would carry 
the guaranteed load, the Ministry replied: 

"When the piling work was completed one load test was car- 
ried out and it indicated that the piles would carry the 
guaranteed load." 

2.17. The Committee desired to know when the cracks in the 
walls and floors wwe first noticed and when this had been reported 
to Government. The Additional Secretary, Ministry of Defence 
stated in evidence: 

"Crack was first discovered on 16 November 1970. By that 
time the supershxture had already been built almost 
90 per cent; so it was not possible to again strengthen 
the piling system." 

He added that the first report in this regard had been received by 
the Government on 24 May, 1371. 

2.18. According to the Audit paragraph, however, the building 
had begun to show signs of stress by December 1970 and cracks in 
walls and floors, tilting of eolumns and differential settlements were 
noticed during the period 16 December 1970 to 29 Marc3 1971. Ex- 
plaining the di'crepancy in the date of occurrence of the cracks as 
reported by Audit and as intimated by the Mi9stry subsequently, 
the Ministry of Defence, in a note, stated: 

"Earlier in reply to Audit para lO(a), it was indicated that 
the building began to show distress during the period 16 
December 1970 to 29 March 1971. This was based on the 
Enqineer Appreciation Report received from the DGNP 
(Director Gencal, Naval Project) initially, However, 
with reference to.. . .the Technical Committee's Report, 
the date of occurrence of diitress was shown as 16 Nov- 
ember, 1970 in our reply sent to the Lok Sabha Secre- 
tariat." 

2.19. Asked whet'ler defelts such as tilting of column. could be 
considered minor, the Chief Engineer of the Project replied: 

"They were major defects. Thep were noticed erad~rally, 
starting from November 1970 till about March 1971. First 



of all, there was cracking of the floors. Then there was 
cracking of the walls. Then they found the columns have 
tilted." 

2.20. The Committee desi~ed to know whether any investigation 
had been carried out immediately after the defects came to notice. 
fn a note, the Ministry stated: 

"The development of distress in Building No. 25 occurred over 
a period of about 10 months commencing from 6 Npvem- 
ber 1970. Departmental investigations were imn'sdiately 
taken up by the DGNP to find out the reasons for the 
distress. The c~acks  and distortions observed in the 
building were brought to the notice of the 33-in-C and 
the Ministry in May 1971. E-in-C indicated that there 
was no cause for alarm and the defects had occurred due 
to uneven settlement of soil and lack of certain precau- 
tions that should have been taken during esecution. He 
also mentioned that they had advised the OIjC Planning 
and Design how to rectify the defects and at that stage 
it might not be necessary to appoint a committee of ex- 
perts to investigate. However, when an engineer appre- 
ciation of the defects was received from DGNP on 15 
June, 1971 the matter was again re-examined and it was 
decided by the Additional Secretary on 7 August 1971 
that a committee should be constituted to examine the 
entire question of planning, design and execution of 
building No. 25." 

To another question as to why the work on the superstructure was 
hot suspended, pending investigation of the reasons for the cracks 
tilting, etc., the Ministry replied: 

"The distress to the building was first noticed on 16 November 
1970. By that time t'ne building had been roofed and 
work on internal walls finished. The flooring work had 
also started. The question of suspension of superstrue 
ture w o ~ k  did not arise.'' 

2.21. Asked why it should have taken more than six months to 
report thene defects to Government, the Additional Secretary. Min- 
istry of Defence, replied in evidence: 

"Even though the first crack was noticed on the 16th NOVRP 
ber 1970, naturally, just by finding one crack they c& 



not rush and report to the Cwerntamt. So, they wafted 
until some more cracks developed. When the position 
became rather serious by about March/April 1971, then, 
a report was made to the Government and the Govern- 
ment appointed e technical enqufiy committee under Brig- 
Chachi. who was the Chief Enginem of the Southern 
Zone and who was totally unconnected wjth this project." 

Explaining, at the Committee's instance, the reasons for the delay of 
about nine months in ordering an enquiry in this regard, the Mjn- 
Mry stated: 

"The DGNP was investigating the reasons for the distress 
during the period December 1970 to March 1971. He 
reported the matter to Government and Ein-C in May, 
1971. Details of the distress were called for. Initially 
Ein-C was of the view that investigation might not be 
necessary. However, on receipt of Engineer Appreciation 
in June 1971, Additional Secretary decided on 7 August 
1971 to set up a Technical Committee and E-in-C was re- 
quested to advise on the composition of the Technical 
Committee." 

h another note furnished in this regard subsequently. the Ministry 
stated: 

"When development of cracks were reparted by the CCVE, 
the geological condition of the area was again studied by 
the DGNP based on the data of 2 bore holes which were 
put in  the area of the building 25 during the last stages 
of the FCI soil investigation work. As already indicated 
[vide Paragraph 2.201 departmental investigation was im- 
mediately taken up by the DGNP to find out the Teasons 
for the distress. The problem of the defects that had drh- 
veloped in the walls and floorj of this huilding ha? also 
been referred to various organisations i n  India including 
the Building Research Institute a t  Roorkee by the DGNP. 
Ultimately, the 'Engineer Appreciation' was prepared and 
submitted by the DGNP in June 1971. After necessav 
consideration thereof, the decision to appoint a committee 
of experts to conduct a detailed enquiry which led to the 
defects, was taken by the Defence Ministry in August 
1971. It would appear from the above that there was no 
undue delay in  ordering the enquiry." 

2.22. Since i t  had been stated by the Engineer-in-Chief, when 
the defects were brought to his notice, that there was no cause fm 



.lum and that it might not be necessary, a t  that stage, to appoint 
a committea of experts to investigate the same, the Committee de- 
dred to know whether this assessment was correct in view of the 
tact that the defects were far from minor. In a note, the Ministry 
of Dcfeme stated: 

''The report about the defects observed in Building No. 25 was 
first reported to the then Additional Secretary by the 
then DGNP (V) on 27 May 1971. A copy of this report 
was furnished to the Director General of Wo:ks, E-in-C's 
Branch by the Additional Secretary on 4th June 1971. 
DGW indicated in his D.O. dated 9th June 1971 to the 
Additional Secretary that in  his opinion there was no 
cause for alarm and the defects had occurred due to un- 
even settlement of the soil and due to lack of certain pre- 
cautions that should have been taken during execution. 
It was also indicated by them that DGNP had already 
been advised how to rectify these defects and a t  that 
rtage i t  might not be necessary to appoint a committee 
of experts to investigate them and if these defects per- 
sisted, he would examine them in consultation with the 
DGW(V). However, when an 'Engineer Appreciation 
Report' was received from the DGNP(V) in June 1971, 
Government took the declsion to appoint a committee of 
experts." 

223. Referring to the earlier statement made by the Additional 
Secretary that the soil conditions in the project area were 'treacher- 
ous', the Committee desired to know what precautions were taken 
in this regard. The Chief Engineer of the Project stated in evidence: 

"I would only say that all the normal precautions in driving 
piles were taken in the sense that when we drive each 
pile we have to satisfy ourselves that they correspond tc 
the bore hole. data and the pile has to be driven in till it 
does not penekate the soil any longer. To that extent, 
the necessary precautions were taken. 

Now, after going through the whcle process, we can summarise 
what did really happen We find that a certain amount 
of soil seems to have crept in slowly. This is a point 
which at the earlier stages cou!d not have been anticipat- 
ed. It was not anticipated that such a phenomenon is 
likely to happen. This probably is the reason which has 
given rise to the defects in the building." 



The Additional Secretary, Ministry of Defence added in tbi, con- 
text: 

"If I may add one more thing for your information, at  that 
time the engineers thought that driving of piles would In 
quite safe for stability. That means, the ~ i l e s  are driven 
to a stage of the depth of a rock so thai it rests on the 
rock. Then it is tested to see that there is no further set- 
tlement. But, after this experience, they have now start- 
ed boring piles right into the rock and they are embodied 
in the rock. We learnt by experience to do that." 

Asked whether the necessary expertise for undertaking civil engi- 
neering works in clayish soil was available with the project autho- 
rities, the witness replied: 

"As far as civil works part of the project was concerned, our 
engineers had the requisite experience and Government 
decided that our own engineers should be entrusted with 
the construction of civil works." 

To another question in regard to the qualifications and experience 
of the official who was in charge of the  project, the Director General 
(Works) replied: 

"I am not quite sure of the exact qualifications he possessed; 
he is a qualified engineer. He has gone through various 
civil construction works all over India in different ranks. 
He is of the tank of Colonel which means he had put in 
at least about 20 years of service. So, he had consider- 
able amount of civil work experience behind him." 

2.24. The Audit paragraph points out t l u t  the Technical Commit- 
tee, constituted in September 1971 to conduct a detailed enquiry 
into the causes and factor-; which led to the defects, to fix responsi- 
bility therefore and to sugcgest remedial measures, had, inter alia, 
observed that the defects might be pr'marily due to variation of 
sub-soil conditjons from point to ~ o i n t  within the same building, 
which could not be anticipated. T ~ P  Committee had, however. 
dealt with certain major and minor defefit and while nointing out 
that the cracks in cross walls had occurrerl on account of settlement 
of soil under foundations, had observed that information about al- 
lowable presjure based on considera tion of settlement should have 
been obtained from the soil exploration team and used and that 
clearer parameters could have been laid down in the site investiga- 
tion contract and definite recommendations insisted uupo. The 



.settlement of the floor had been attributed by the Technical Com- 

.mittee to the consolidation of compressible layers under the floors 
and the Committee had opined that this could have been anticipated 

don account of the presence of the soft clay layers as indicated by 
the bore hole data. In this connection, the Committee were inform- .& by Audit that the Ministry of Defence had stated as follows: 

"In regard to the observation of the Committee that bore hole 
could have been better positioned it would appear that 
these remarks do not arise from a thorough examination 
of the problems. Positioning of bore holes is a matter oi 
judgement which is done by,,executive at  the sit*. Fu+ 
ther, there is always room for flexibility in the irlterpm- 
tations of the bore hole data gained which has tn be a p  
plied to the surrounding areas. Hence to say that t b  
bore holes could have been better positioned is a matter 
of opinion. As regards the remark that suffirient info* 
mation was not made available to the soiI investieator 
this has been challenged by the Director Gmeral. He has 
stated that full information was made available to the 
soil investigation team and voluminous data had been 
produced by the two reputed firms to the Director Gene- 
ral, Naval Project Organisation. These vohmes of soil 
investigation reports contain all the information r equ i rd  
for foundation design." 

'The Committee also learnt that the Ministry had furt\er stated 
'(September 1973) : 

"The Technical Committee have opined that tlw stttlement 
of the floor is due to consolidation of cornprc:? h l .  1,lvers 
under the floor and this could have been anticinat4 due 
to the presence of soft clap layer as indicated bv t+e horn 
hole data. It may be stated in this contest t'lat the CRRl 
(Central Road Research Inqti tute) Roorkee h31vc? r a - r i d  
out a detailed investigation of the Dockyard Area. It  is 
their opinion that in the entire dockyard area ail the 
floors on all the buildings could be expected to settle. 
Further they have estimated that this sinkage is likely 
to go over a period of up to 50 years. They have advised 
that there is no other answer to the problem except tg 
live with it. This opinion is corroborated by the o p ~ n i o ~  
of.. . .Project Report and the opinion of other expertr 
in soil mechanics. With the knowledge 'available to tb 
Director General during the last two years he has beQ 



forced to accept some settlement in floors, as inevitable- 
and any attempt to eliminate the settlement is likely to. 
result in a disproportionate expenditure in the founda- 
tion alone." 

2.25. Since i t  had been stated by the Ministry that the soil inves- 
tigation reports contained all information required for the design 
of the foundation, the Committee desired to know why the founda- 

. tion was not designed after taking into account the sub-soil condi- 
4ions. The Chief Engineer of the project stated in evidence: 

"As a matter of fact, sub-soil conditions were definitely taken 
into account, but the point to note is that the area over 
which we are constructing is a very large area compris- 
ing 150 acres. Even before the project was taken jn hand 
we entered into a contract and got soil investigatiqn; done 
to the extent of 78 bore holes in the first instance itself. 
Subsequently, after the Project Report was received. We 
have sunk over 350 bore holes and obtained the soil re- 
port. These bore holes done a t  the first instance are a t  
some distance from each other. This particular building 
occupies a small area; the complete thing is extending 
over a width of 76 metres by 36 metres. The b o r ~  hole 
data give the depth of the rock and the nature of the soil. 
In this particular case what the Committee has opined is 
that within small distances there has been a wide varia- 
tion in the strata. I can say from my experience that at 
least in two places this isqthe problem that has confronted 
me. We find that within a short pile group--and I would 
stress this point-which occupies an area of about 4 
metres by 5 metres, the variation in the depth of rock is 
between 2 metres and as much as 4 metres. We have 
consulted the reputed geologists in that area and they as- 
cribe this to, what they call, fault planes and certain 
ridges which occur. What the Technical Committee has 
referred to is that there is considerable variaiicll in the 
soil strata in short areas. Obvjously, vou will appreciate, 
every bit of the soil cannot possibly be i lves t i~ated;  we 
normally take bore holes a t  a distance of 50 metres or 100 
metres and i t  is not possible.to pinpoint every inch of the 
area." 

Asked whether these facbrs  had not been taken into consideration 
when the site was selected, the witness replied: 

"This is the point I am trying to submit. I n  any projert work 
c this is one of the hazards of civil engineeirng because i t  
* 



is physically not possible to investigate every inch of t$e 
area" 

To another question whether due care was taken, being aware of 
the hazards, at least to ensure that the piles were properly drive?, 
Ule witness replied: 

"All care was taken. Whatever care could possibly have been 
taken was indeed taken at the time of construction" 

He added: 

"To some extent even today we are confronted with the sameC 
thing. It  is not that what was done f o u ~  or five years . 
back but even today we bave the same problem and I do 
not think we can act in any different way." 

Intervening at this juncture, the Additional Secretary, Ministry of 
Defence stated: 

"What.. . . . .is tryin& to say is that even in other building$, 
in spite of all the precautions which we are taking, due t~ 
this subsidence we are still having some of these prob- 
lems, of course of a minor nature, but we aTe -,till not out 
of the woods because of the treacherous nature of the 
soil. That is what he is trying to convey. We sr; taking 
all possible precautions but in spite of that in some other 
place some minor cracks have occurred." 

2.26. In reply to another question as to why clearer psrametem 
had not been laid down in the site investigation contract, the Chief 
Engineer of the project stated: 

"The Committee has observed that clearer parameters should 
have been laid down in the site investigation contract, 
Frankly. I have, since cominq into the project. made a 
considerable study of this, but I am at  a loss to under- 
stand as to what the Committee really did mean by 
that because I have got t'le tender which was given fos 
the soil investigation. I have gone through the reports 
They are in several volumes. To the best of my know- 
ledge, whatever characteristics of the soil that we even 
now require are available f ~ o m  those reports. I am at a 
loss to understand what esactly the Committee had in 
mind. Therefore, I would not be able to comment on thl8 
point." 



Asked whether all the soil investigation reports were available be- 
fare the work commenced, the witness replied: 

"The work actually commenced in May 1968. The first can- 
tract was completed about the same time the followiryl 
year. The actual report was physically receiyed a little 
later. But the essential information, so far as the dept!\ 
of rock and other information ww concerned, was cer- 
tainly avaiIabIe." 

Since it was known that the soil in the area was susceptible to ero- 
don,  the Committee desired to know why the question of driving 
We piles into the rock had not been thought of initially itself. Tbe 
witness stated: 

. . .in 1968 was a completely deserted place. No construc- 
tion had taken place in that particular area where we are 
building the dockyard. There was no record of construc- 
tion earlier from where we could ckaw comparison. To- 
day if vou wish to construct a building in Delhi, t h e n  
are many buildings from which you know what exactly 
you have to do. But, unfortunately, in.  . . .there was no 
precedence as to what was to be done. This is a vital 
point because at that time it was considered and we felt 
that the tvpe of piling system adopted was adequate. 
This is not a new type of piling system. This is a type 
which is being adopted the world over." 

Pointinq out iq this connection that since the soil conditions were 
known, the safe~uerds to be taken against possible damage should 
have  been adequntelv considered, the Committee enquired into the 
greventive measure;, if anv adopted. The witness replied: 

"Your point +i correct. We have constructed 1% type bf pile 
foundatjm iq this entire area and in this entire training 
comples a-d there are more than 20 differert buildings 
constructed with the same type of piling systorn Befort 
this we had driven about 1150 piles and in those pi la  
which had been driven some 1-1/2 years previously we 
had not found any distress and subsequently also no dL 
tress was found. This is something which I must say, 
was not then anticipated. If engineers felt such an even- 
tuality would be there we would not have gcne in. It 
proved successful. Work was implemented elaewhm. 
We have adopted different types of piUng sgrt+ms .s( 



there are no hard and fast rules. Any type of piling sys- 
tem has got its own built-in hazards. We havz got to ac- 
cept certain amount of risk in this matter." 

2.27. Drawing attention to another observation of the Technical 
Committee that in a project of this magnitude, a soil and foundation 
engineer should have been attached to the organisation to advise 
on the design of proper foundations and that a fully equipped soil 
laboratory should also be established at site, the ~omml t t e s  desired 
to know why these obvious requirements had not been provided, 
The Chief Engineer of the project stated: 

"This project commenced in 1968. Any organisation would 
need some time to start with as we need staff; we have 
to get officers from different places and this particular 
building was taken as one of the first buildings. There 

. is no doubt that initially adequate staff was perhaps not 
available." 

He added: 
"We made use of the facilities available at  the E~~gineering 

College i n . .  . . . . And we also made use of the fad- 
lities in the College of Military Engineering, Poona. Ihe 
recommendation of the Technical Comm:ttee was that 
we could have a laboratory. This requirement was sub- 
sequently met." 

2.28. The Technical Committee had also opined that the floar 
should have been separated from that portion which was coming on 
the pile caps and plinth beam13 by smooth joints and that this could 
have been provided by the executive or design staff. Asked why 
Ws had not been ensured, the Chief Engineer of the Project r e p l i a  

"As the Committee has observed, it would have been a bet- 
thing that could have been done. I would not like tQ 
join issue on that. I t  is a correct point brought out by 
the Committee. I t  could have been done. But the only 
p i n t  I wish to bring to your notice is that the error, as 
i t  is, is something in the nature of an error only and h a  
not materially contributed to the major defect which har, 
come up in the building. All that it h;r; 
caused is the appearance of a crack. If the suggestiolx 
which had been given by the Committee had been adop t  
ed, there would have been a clear-cut gap of 4 inch d 
314 inch which would have been left originally in tb 
floor itself. If that had been left, that crack w u l d  ham 



been absorbed. I do agree with the remarks of the Cam- 
mittee. But the point you may like to appreciate is that 
all that has happened by not taking this precaution is 
that a crack has appeared." 

2.29. Yet another observation of the Technical Committee relat- 
ed to the presence, in the vicinity of the building, of a dredged cha- 
ae l  and its flooding in November 1970. The Committee had observ- 
ad in this regard as follows: 

"One of the factors which might have contributed to the 
settlement and displacement of the piles was the flow of 
material cawed by the presence, in the near vicinity, of 
a dredged channel and the flooding in November 1930. 
T,he flow of sub-soil material could have been prevented 
by a diaphragm wall. Had the wall been constructed ear- 
lier, it would have added t r ~  the stability of the building." 

Tfie Committee, therefore, enquired why the precaution of con- 
structing a diaphragm wall to prevent thc flow of subsoil material 
'had not been thought of. The Chief Engineer of the project rep- 
lied: 

"I will show you the sketch of that area. This is the sketch. 
This is the general area in which we are doing the mn- 
struction. What we have got here is tbe  channel. The 
entire dockyard is built up around this channel. You will 
see various buildings coming up all next to the channel. 
The point I w i ~ h  to bring to vour notice is that there ia 
no doubt that we need to construct a diaphragm wall in 
front of these various buildings to protect them from ero- 
sion from the sea. This is definitely included in the plan 
for construction. But you will appreciate that this parti- 
cular wall which is required to be built is extending to a 
length between 2,500 and 3,000 metres. The construction 
of such a long wall is something that will take a tremen- 
dous amount of time. You will appreciate that such 
structure; are not built overnight. I t  takes a very long 
time to construct. For example. we have got this parti- 
cular length in hand. It  is taking about four years to 
construct. Therefore, point (a) is that it takes time to 
construct; and point (b) is that the enormity of the job 
is such that an outlay of several clvres of rupees is in- 

volved in that." 
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&ked whether it was necessary to comtruct the entire length oi 
'the diaphragm wall at the same time and whether the buildings 
under construction could not have been protected as the works pro- 
:gressed by constructing the wall with reference to that particular 
a rea  alone, the Additional Secretary of the Ministry of Defence r e p  
Aied: 

"This paint was considered, and it was a calculated risk that 
we had to take. If dredging were to be done first and 
then construction of the diaphragm wall and then build- 
ings, it would take almost 15 years to complete the whde 
project." 

'To another question whether it would not have been possible 
technically to afford greater protection to the building under an- 
struction by constructing the diaphragm wall only in the limited 
.area necessary to protect that building, the Chief Engineer of the 
project replied: 

"Tt was feasible to construct the diaphragm wall in the first 
instance and later on take up the building. But the prob 
lem it would have involved i.; that we would, first, have 
to construct the diaphragm wall which would have taken 
three or four years. As the Additional Secretary has 
pointed out, it would have taken quite a long time. I 
would give the analogy of a similar wall which we have 
in hand presently, whioh is taking us not less than four 
years. If we had waited for the wall to be constructed 
first, the entire project would have had to be deterred to 
that extent." 

.;Asked whether the witness had tendered evidence before the Tech- 
nical Committee, he replied: 

"This was before my time." 

2.30. With reference to the statement made by the witneg-, that 
the construction of the diaphragm wall would have been time-mn- 
swning and would have held up the completion of the project, the 
;Committee pointed out that it had not been mentioned by the Tech- 
nical Committee, which was also com~osed of competent, technical 
men, that this would have been time-consuming, and asked w h e w  
.after the subsidence of the building had taken place, its timely PO* 



pletion had not, in any case, suffered. The Additional Secretary, 
.Ministry of Defence replied: 

"The building has been put to use. It  is not that because the  
diaphragm wall was not built, the building is not being 
used." 

The Chief Engineer of the project added: 

"You would notice from this map that all these buildings 
marked 'green' have been completed and have been in 
use for the last two or even three years. This building 
also continues to remain in u?e for the last 1/1)2 years. 
This diaphragm wall is still in the process of being con- 
structed." 

Xn a note furnished subsequently in this regard, the Ministry in- 
formed the Committee as follows: 

"Building No. 25 is presently in occupation and is being put 
to use for the purpose for which it had been constructed. 
However, it may be clarified that the South-wing and 
Central Hall of the building are being so utilised. North- 
wing continues to be under observation and is expected 
to be commissioned after the end of this year, when the 
pmtection wall in front of the building is expected to be 
completed. I t  may, however, be noted that when the build- 
ing was commissioned, the layout was readjusted and the 
equipment of the entire North-wing also has been accom- 
modated in the South-wing. The accommodation in t he  
North-wing is now spare and will be utilised for addi- 
tional facilities projected by the user." 

2.31. The Committee enquired into the details of the short-term 
precautions suggested by the Technical Commit'ee and the expen- 
diture inxvolved un these precautionary measures, if undertaken, 
In a note, the Ministry of Defence replied: 

" 7 % ~  recommendations of the Committee were considered at 
a meetinq under the chairmanship of Additional Secret- 
ary, M'nistry of Defence and attended amongst others 
by tho Additional FA, Ministry of Finance (Defence), 
Director General (Works) AHQ and DGNP. It  was acc- 
epted that the Southern Annexe and Central Hall 
miqht be put to use after carrvinq out certain 
additional w v r k ~  and Northern Anne~e  watched for fur- 
ther subsidence. Action was accordingly taken. The 
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short term (interim). precautions suggested by the Te&- 
ni-1 Committee in their interim report were the dismant- 
ling of the roof in the dangerous section dismantling of 
masonry walls and replacing by light weight partition 
walls cutting the floor along the pile caps to even out the 
settlement of floors and reduce the load on piles filling 
under the floors near the columns with under instead of 
murram and the floor loading as required to come ulti- 
mately should be simulated on the Navy Wing. The cost 
of these works has been int~mated as about Rs. 2.73 lakhs. 
In their interim report the Committee had mentioned 
that they had been given to understand that 
=me protection work for slip way had been propos- 
ed by the DGNP and that these works might be carried 
out immediately as these would as-ist in stabilising stra- 
ta under the building and would check further settlement 
of foundation. Administrative approval for this work 
was included in the sanction dated 15-4-1972 for slipway 
Phase I at  an estimated cost of Rs. 78.65 lakhs and works 
are in progress. 

Referring to this reply, the Committee asked whether the protec- 
tilon works ,sanctioned in April 1972 pertained to the entire project 
or only to the defective uvrkshop building. The Chief Engineer 
of the project replied: 

"You were referring to the sanction accorded to Slipway 
Phase I. This particular sanction refers to the protection 
wall in front of the building only." 

To another question whether this, therefore, implied that only the 
workshop building would derive advantage by these protection 
works, the witness replied: 

Tt is more than that because other protection works are 
simultaneously in progres:. Length of 1100 meters to 
1200 meters is already under construction and is in a 
very advanced stage. Length of 210 meters had already 
been completed in August 1974. Length of approximately 
450 meters is presently in progress and is due to be com- 
pleted some time by the end of next year." 

m e n  the Committee pointed out, in this context, that works costing 
78 lakhs had to be undertaken to protect a building costing 

a b u t  Rs. 17 lakhs and asked whether this situation could not have 
been avoided by driving the piles, a5  initio, into the rockbed, the 
witness replied: 

q t  is like motor cars coming out of the factory. You do have 
motor cam which give trouble and you have motor Cam 
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which do not give trouble. We have constructed 1000 
piles, a few may be defective in construction. This b 
not that we are free of our problems." 

T h e  Committee desired to know the additional time that would 
have been required for the construction of thi; building, if the con- 
ventional method of excavating completely for the foundations had 
been adopted. The witness replied: 

"I would only submit that the conventional method of exca- 
vation as you normaljy build a house, let us say, fi 
Delhi, is physically not practicable because the depth b 
which you have to go is 60 to 85 feet in this particular 
area." 

2.32. In  respect of future constructions in the area. the Techni- 
cal Committee had, inter alia, made the following recommende 
tiondsugge :tions: 

"It is recommended that systematic sequence should be 501- 
lowed for various building operations. It is suggested 
that user's requirement for various buildings should ba 
ascerhined, preliminary design prepared, load on tbr 
fmndation calculated and then soil inve;tigation on thr 
specific site of the building be carried out. The result 
of the site investigation should be properly studied and 
the depth a t  which the pile should be founded should be 
worked out with due consideration of the settlement of 
the compressible layers. Due al!owance should be mode 
for the negative frictim on piles due to settlement of ia- 
termediate soft clay layers, which are common in thL, 
area, while working out the load carrying capacity of th. 
pile. 1 :  

I t  1s essential that wlhere pile foundations are used thom 
should be founded on rocky layers and anchored into tho 
rock as this is available at 20 to 35 M depths throughut  
the area. In  the case of buildings where piles have al- 
ready been completed and building work is still to be 
done, confirmatory boring should be done to ensure that 
the pile; are founded on a layer which is not likely b 
show any settlement according to the calculated capacity 
of the pile. Further, where these piles are located near 
the channel and some cut off structure is to be construct- 
ed, the structure should be completed before the building 
is cons!ructed on these piles, so that any effect of posd- 



ble flow of subai l  material occurs beiure the buildi- 
is erected." 

2.33. The Committee, therefore, desired to know whether these 
recommendations did not suggest that these precautions could have 
.and should have been taken earli-?r itself and whether they had 
been accepted by Government. The Additional Secretary of th. 
Ministry stated: 

"These recommendations have been accepted to the extent 
it is possible to implement. You will appreciate our an- 
xiety to get this project on the ground as early as pos3i- 
ble. If we do not have this project early on the ground, 
then the.. . .ships cannot be repaired and we have t s  
send them back k. . . .for repairs." 

'The Committee desired t~ know the date by which the project should 
have been completed. The witness replied: 

"Our aim was to start repair of . .  . by middle of next year 
(1976). That is the firm date. For that Government 
appointed Steering Committe? under my ohairmanship 
with engineers and naval officer-, and we looked at prob- 
lems practically every month and whatever decisions have 
to be given, were given on the spot." 

Since the workshop building had been sanctioned in June 1958 it- 
self, the Committee desired to know whether the diaphragm wan, 
If it had been considered to be of some importance, could not have 
been taken up in hand simultaneously and completed bv the tinat 
the building was required. The witness stated: 

"As I mentioned it was not appreciated at that time in 1W. 
At that time we were just forming an organisation." 

A representative of the Naval Headquarters, however, added: 

"Could I amplify what the Additional Secre'ary had said 
earlier? . . . . are expected to have. . . .repairs after. . . . 
months, . . . . repairs after . . . . repairs and. . . . repairs after 
. . . .repairs. Therefore, we should have had this facility, 
assuming that the first. . - .arrived by 1968, at the end oi 
. . . .thereafter. This particular building was in respect 
of armaments. You will no doubt appreciate that the 
sjtuation prevailing in the country a t  that time, and the 
need to have the . .  . .operational, especially with regard 



to these armaments. So, we had to go ahead with the 
construction of the Armaments Repair Shop with a 
sence of urgency. The point which the Additional Secre- 
tary made was in respect of. . . .repairs, which could 
have waited for five years. But in this particular case, 
we could not wait as this was the Armaments Repair 
shop where weapons and other as~ociated systems were 
supposed to be ready in an emergency." 

2.34. In regard to the observations of the Technical Committee 
that cracks in the cross-walls were due to settlement of soil under 
fbwdations and that information about allowable pressure based on 
consideration of settlement should have been obtained from the soil 
exploration team and used, the Audit paragraph points out that the 
Ministry of Defence had, inter alia, stated (September 1973) a8 
follows: 

"The cross walls were to be constructed as per detailed machine 
design and layout of the building. As, however, the piles 
and plinth beams had already been completed before 
detailed design was completed, the cross walls had to be 
constructed on open foundation. There were practical di- 
fficulties in completing the design." 

The Cbmmittee, therefore, desired to know what exactly were the 
'practical difficulties' in completing the design and when the design 
waa actually completed. In a note, the Ministry of Defence stated: 

" 'By practical difficulties' it was meant that there were three 
parties involved in taking a final decision on the design- 
the Users, the. . . . Specialists and the contractors, and the 
three parties could not arrive a t  a final decision regarding 
the design of the building before the pile foundations were 
completed. Secondly, the tendency on the part of the.. . . 
Specialists and the Users to change the design details also 
came in the way of taking a final deciqion on the design. 
Therefore. it was decided to construct the cross-walls or 
the partition walls on open foundations without waiting 
for the complete design details. 

As regards the date of completion, the designs were actually 
completed in March 19'70." 



Asked what would have been the cost of the foundation had steps 
been taken initially to eliminate settlement, the Ministry replied: 

"The DY. DC and CE, Dte GNP has indicated that this quee- 
tion does not arise as the piles were actually driven to the 
maximum depth as possible at  the site." 

2.35. The Audit paragraph alsa points out that the cost of additie 
nal works already done'and proposed to be done to rectify the defecb 
and make the building suitable for the workshop was estimated as 
Rs. 14.16 lakhs. The Committee enquired whether these additional 
works had since been completed and, if so, at  what cast. In a note, 
the Ministry replied: 

"Additional works have been completed during 1971 to 1074 
The total cost of additional w x k s  (including that on short- 
term precautions) carried out comes to Rs. 14.07 lakha 
This excludes the provision of a mobile 10-ton crane cost 
ing Rs. 3.66 lakhs." 

As regards the installatic~n of the mobile crane and the utilisation ad 
the overhead crane, enquired into by the Committee, the Ministry 
stated: I 

"A mobile crane of 10-ton capacity prxured for the building 
is in use in that  building. The o i ~ r - h w d  crane in the buil- 
din? has also since hem installed in +he building and com- 
missioned. It is being allowed to onerate with a capacio 
of 5 tons." 

2.36. Axnrd i -1~  V )  the  Al~dit paragraph. tl#c contractor (Cementa- 
tion Co. Ltd.) who had con frurlcd the. ~ ~ i l v  1173s informed for the 
first time, in Decenihci. 1971. t h , j t  t lw p i l c ~  l l ~ d  failed to carry the 
guaranteed load and M.:IS a-ked  to  undt3rlaki. re-nedial measures. 
Sincr the cracks had hccan notired in h ' o ~ ~ m b v  1970 itself. the Com- 
mittee enquired whv thc contractor had not heen informed of this 
immediatelv thereafter and asked to undert3ke remedial measures. 
'The Chief Engineer of the project replied in evidence: 

"The only point I want to bring to your notice in this case is 
that in late November 1970, the first crack started appear- 
ing. In the first instance, the site ?taff were not very cer- 
tain as to why these cracks had appeared, the reasons fa 
it. Therefore, we had to wait for a little time and, in tirne 
the cracks developed. The site staff was not sitting idle .t 



that time, because they tried to investigate what could pos- 
gibly have g m e  wrong. In fact, we also consulted certaim 
experts like Prof. Katti from the I.I.T., Bombay, C.B.R.I., 
C.R.R.I., and various other organisations. This investiga- 
tion took a l'ttle time because not every one was absolutely 
convinced of the cause. Because what did happen in the 
first instance was that the entire floor started warping. This 
had nothing to d~ with the piles, and the doubt in the site 
staff a t  the moment was how this had occurred. So, it took 
a little time, because we mainly felt that this subsidence 
in the building had been caused due to a certain amount of 
u n d e r ~ o u n d  ero;ion or soil flow from beneath the build- 
ing towards the sea. This being a general phe~omenon, it 
was not directly connected with the pile contractor. There 
was no notice sent to the pile contractor in the first in- 
stance, but later on. after the Committee met and they felt 
that in any case it would be in the interests of the Govern- 
ment that we should ask the pile contractor and inform him 
that a default had been committed by him, acordingly the 
pile contractor was informed." 

2.37. I t  was only in June 1972 that the contractor had been inform- 
ed by the Director General, Naval Project. that as the piles had fail- 
ed to carry the guaranteed load before full load had developed in 
the building, remedial measures to relieve the extra stress on the 
piles to avoid further failure had beenlwere being taken by the de- 
partment at  his risk and expense. The contractor had, however, 
pointed out, in July 1972, that final certificate of completion of work 
had been given to him on 19 March 1970 by the department and 
that there was no ohlication on hi; part b3 carrv out any remedial 
measures as the maintanance period of 12 calendar months from 
the date of completion of the w w k ,  as per contract, was already 
over. The Audit paragraph point out that the Ministrv of Defence 
had stated (September 1W3) that the Director General, Naval Pro- 
ject, did riot take up earlier the question of failure of the piles to 
carry the guaranteed load as th- maintenance period of the piles 
was already over when the general sinking of the area was noticed. 
The Committee also learrlt from Audit that the Ministry had inti- 
mated (February 1974) them, in this conncction, as follows: 

"The piling work in the building was completed in Deceni- 
ber 1969. The defects werc noticed during Decembo r 
1970 to March 1971, i.e., after a period of one year after 
completion of piling. F ~ a m  our records it cannot be 

. . 
readily stated as to when the piling contractor was a p p  



rised of the defects and asked to rectify the same. The 
actual position in this regard is being a~certained and this 
will be intimated early. Director General, Project has, 
however, intimated that it was not possible to take up 
question of failure of piles with the ontractors as the 
maintenance period of the piles was already over when 
the general sinking in the area was noticed. According 
to Director General, Naval Project even now it has not 
been possible to establish the real cau-e of the sinking 
of the soil in that area. Directar General, Naval F'mject 
feels that i t  is difficult to establish resqonsibilitv of the 
piling contractor when a general subsidence in the area 
is involved." 

2.38. Asked whether it has since been ascertained when the con- 
tractor was actually apprised of the failure of the pile:, the Chief 
engineer of the project replied in evidence that this war: done in 
December 1971. Since the completion certificate had been issued 
to the contractor on 19 March, 1970, the Committee d-s:red to know 
whether the period of maintenance of 12 months was not to be re- 
ckoned from that date. The witness replied in th7 affirmative. 
The Committee, therefore, desired to hmow why it \vas not possible 
to take up this question with t h e  contractor be5x-e March 1971. 
The witness replied: 

"As I have just explained to you, we were not very certain 
whether the pile contractor was to be held res~onsible, 
for this particular damage at a!l. but then. after due con- 
sideration and after the Technical Committee also met 
and recommended that we should tak- it up. this ques- 
tion was taken up with him. and that was in December 
1971." 

Acked if this implied that there was some conf~~c im whether the 
defects were attributable to the contrac:or's work or to improper 
designing, the witness replied : 

"It is like this. You would have probablv qturiied this entire 
thing. Two things have happened in this building. One 
is that the entire area has subsided, the  c-tire flmr has 
warped, and as a result sub-idence ha.; :.ken palce. The 
contractor has not done any work on the floor itself. 
What the contractor did was to build the piles. The 
columns have also titled because of some of the piles 
having settled. Two things have simultaneously happen- 



ed. The question was: how did this phenomenon take 
place? Has it anything to do with the design of the bulid- 
ing itself? A committee has gone into i t  in very great 
detail and, in fact, they have commented that as far as 
the superstructure was concerned, because of the good 
quality of the work done, the building ii, in fact, stand- 
ing; otherwise it might have sustained some more serioue 
damage. Therefore, I would submit that as far as the 
superstructure was concerned, the quality of workman- 
ship was more than good, and there was no defect in the 
design of the building itself." 

He added: 

"The normal engineering practice in all works of contract 
is that we ask the contractors that they would be r* 
ponsible for defects that arose within a period of twelve 
months and that they have got to rectify them. But 
in a case of this nature, while I suppose it is not t h m  
in the written word, morally the contractor would stiU 
be responsible and, I think, it is for this reason that we 
have taken up this particular case with the contrackr 
and are asking them to make good the loss that we have 
sustained." 

2.39. Since i t  had been reported by Audit that the matter had 
not been referred to an arbitrator, as suggested by the Law Ministry, 
the Committee enquired into the latest position in this regard. In 
a note, the Mini~try of Defence informed the Committee as follows: 

"The case was referred f i r  nrhitrat'on and an  Arbitrator was 
appointed. U u t  the contractor has  pone to court and got 
and injunction aeain? t the arbitration proceedings. The 
case is still pending in court." 

In a note furnished subseque!~tly in this reaard, the Ministry stated: 

'.The case is still pending in the Court and the next hearing 
is posted to 19th April, 1975." 

2.40. The Committee learnt from Audit that the Ministry h d  
stated (September 1973) as follows: 

"The Technical Oammittee have expressed the opinion thr) 
by and large there has been no major dekkncy in 



fnveatigation, execution or design and that no individual 
ir to be considand to be at fault leading to the pnsent 
situation. The defects noticed in the building might be 
primarily due to variation of subsoil conditions fmm point 
to point within the same building and which could not be 
anticiqated. Despite the above remarks, action has been 
taken as per the advice of E-in-C (Engineer-in-Chief) to 
call for the explanation of Ofllcer in Charge Planning 
and Design and Garrison Engineer in charge of the work 
How far responsibility could be fixed on these officers 
!s a wide open question because the building has not fal- 
len down, certain portions of the building have been put 
to use and the balance portion is under observation. 

Aa regards disciplinary aspect of the case relating to the con- 
struction of the workshop building, as stated above it has 
since been decided on the advice of the E-in-C to call for 
the explanation of the OfHcer-in-Charge, Planning and 
Design and the Garrison Engineer-in-Charge of piling 
work and this is being pursued." 

"In regard to the disciplinary as- of building No. 25, the 
Directar General, Naval Roject was asked as per the ad- 
vice d E-in-C to call for explanation of the OWcer-in- 
Charge, Planning and Garrison Engineer-in-Charge of the 
works. It transpires that the Garrim Engineer has given 
his explanation, but that of the Officer-in-Charge, Plan- 
ning and Design is awaited. On receipt of the explana- 
tion, we would seek the advice of E-in-C for further pro- 
gressing of the matter." 

241. The Committee desired to know whether the Garrison 
Engineer's explanation had since been considered and final actiw 
taken and whether the OBce-r-in-Charge, Planning and Design had 
since then submitted his explanation. In a note, the Ministry 
stated: 

"The explanation given by the Garrison Engineer was exa- 
mined by the E-in-C. He has recommended that an un- 
recorded waning may be given to the Garrison Engineer. 
This is under the consideration d the Ministry. 

The Mcer-in-Charge, Planning and Design, has given his ex- 
planation. This has also been examined by the E-in-C. 

1847 w. 



... , 
He has recommended cthat a warning may be given tq the 
Officer. Tbis is under consideration in the Ministry. The 
OBBcer retired from service in June 1072." 

In another note furnished in this regard subsequently, the Ministry 
stated: 

"As a case is still pending in the court, it has been considered 
advisable in the interest of the Government to await the 
court's judgement before finalising the disciplinary aspect 
of the case as the initiation of disciplinary proceedings for 
failure in design may vitiate the Government's defence in 
this case." 

2.42. The Committee are perturbed that on account of soil sub- 
sidence arising out of variations in the sub-soil condition certain 
major defects such as cracking of floors and walls, tilting of colum- 
ns, differential settlements, etc., had developed in a workshop 
building, constructed, as part of a naval project, at  a cost of Rs. 19.04 
lakhs (cost of pile foundation Rs. 1.77 lakhs and cost of super- 
structure Rs. 17.27 lakhs). Though i t  has been claimed that the 
variations in the condition of the sub-soil strata could not be anti- 
cipated and that 'whatever care could possibly have been taken 
was indeed taken a t  the time of construction', the Committee find 
that the Director General of Works to whom a copy of the report 
regarding I52 J:fc:ts noticed in the building had been sent in June 
1971, had clearly observed that the defects had occu~*rcd because of 
the lack of certain precautions that should have been taken during 
execution. Besides, the findings and recommendations of a Tech- 
nical Committee, appointed subsequently to conduct an enquiry in- 
to the causes of the defects, also seem to suggest that the normal 
care and precautions which could and should have been taken had 
been lacking. This has led inevitably to delay in the full utilisation 
of a building urgently required, and also avoidable additional ex- 
penditure which in this case amounted to as much as 74 per clent 
of the original cost of the building. 

2.43. While the Committee are not unwilling to concede that 
civil engineering construction in a 'deserted' coastal area could 
conceivably have its own built-in hazards and that i t  might not, 
perhaps, have been practicable to determine, by soil investkation, 
the characteristics and soil conditions of every inch of such an. 
area, they find i t  difficult to accept the Ministry's contention that 
there was no comparable construction in the area a t  that t ime 
(1968) from which information in regard to the d oonditions and 



foundations could be gathered. The area selected for the locatiQq 
of the naval projeet can-hardly be considered 'deserted' in the COD- 
text of the considerable marine activity already undea way there. 
It  appears, on the evidence and from the observations of the Te& 
oical Committee, that there had been some indecision in regard to 
the design parameters of the building, because of what has been 
described as 'practical difficulties' in reconciling the divergent views 
of the specialists who had prepared the project report, the users 
and bhe contractors, and also the tendency on the part of the spe= 
cialists and the users to change the design details. Conseqnentlg, 
the pile foundations had been completed before the design of the 
building was finalised. These alleged difficulties notwithstanding, 
the Committee feel that it should have been possible ab initio, to 
have drawn upon the expertise and services of a panel of experts in 
the field and the prwautionary steps, safeguards, etc. to be taken 
determined, before embarking on th2 execution of costly civil en- 
gineering works, which needcd also to be conrpleted expeditio~dy. 
The Committee regret that even such obviously basic pre-requisites 
as a soil laboratory and a soil and foundation engineer had not been 
provided suficiently in advance, despite the magnitude strategic im- 
portance of the project. 

2.44. According to the Technical Committee, one o f  the factors 
which might haw contributed to the settlement and displacement 
of the piles was the flow of sub-soil material causetl 'us the presence, 
in the vicinity, of a dredged channel and its flooding in  November 
1970. The Technical Committee, had gone on to observe that the 
flow of sub-so:l material could have been prevented by a diaphragm 
wall, which, if constructed earlier, would hare added to the stability 
of the building. Admittedly, the need for a diaphragm wall had not 
bem appreciated in the initial stages of the projcrt and when this 
factor was considered subsequently, a view appears to have been 
taken that the construction of a diaphragm wall could be time-con- 
suming and would also involve the outlay of several crores. It  had, 
therefore, been decided to take a 'calculated risk' and to proceed first 
with the construction of the building and to construct the diaphra- 
gm wall later on. While it is a moot point whether the building 
under construction could not have been protected, as the work pra- 
gressed, by confhing the construction of the diaphram wall with 
reference to the particular area occupied by thab building alone, 
the Committee feel that, even in the absence of the diaphragm wan 
(the cost of construction of which would have been disproportio- 
nate to tbe cost of the building), the possibility of soil subsidence 
in an area which was known to be 'treacherous' could have been 



lbmwa and guarded against by driving the p k  inb tb 
(which was available at depth0 of tO to 35 m6trsr) bated of lllarr- 
lag them to merely rest on the rock, bed. It w d d ,  thodor~ ,  rp- 
that adequate though had not been given initially to the proper 
dedgnhg of the foundation, which is regrettable. 

2.45. These teohnical aspects apart, the Committee are distressed 
that there was considerable delay in informing the contractor (Cem- 
entation Co. Ltd.), who had constructed the foundation for the build- 
ing, that the piles had failed to carry the guaranteed load and Ulat be 
should undertake necessary remedial measures. Though W8cts in 
the building had started developing from November 1970 onwards, 
the contractor was informed of the defects only in December 1971 fw 
the ftyt time and it was some sik months later in June 1972, that the 
contractor was told that remedial measures to relieve the extra stress 
on the piles to avoid fiuther failure had beenlwere being taken by 
the department at his risk and expense. As a result of this long delay, 
the contractor had put forth the plea that as the maintenance period 
of twelve calendar months from the date of completion of the work 
was over, there was no obligation on his part to carry out any reme- 
dial measures. This delay has been attributed to the uncertainty 
then prevailing about the cause of the defects and the extent of liabi- 
lity of tbe contractor for the defects noticed. In any case, the Corn- 
mittee feel that adequate steps ought to have been taken, as soon = 
the defects came to notice. Responsibility should, therefore, be fixed 
for the lapse and appropriate action taken. 

2.46. The Committee have learnt that the case was referred to 
arbitration, on the advice of the Law Ministry, and that the contractor 
had obtained an injuncHon in a court against the arbitration proceed- 
ings. This seems to be a familiar story which is rather irritating. 
Where matters stand at present in this regard should be intimated to 
thr: Committee. 

2.47. Thollgh the Technical Committee have expressed the opinion 
that, by and large, there had been no major deficiency in site investi- 
gation or execution, the Committee would seek some further reassu- 
rance in this regard, in view especially of the fact that the contracto? 
(Cementation Co. Ltd.) has come to their notice somewhat adversely 
in connection with its p-rforrnance in the Naval Dockyard at another 
station [vide the Committee's 1 0 t h  Beport (Fifth Lok Sabha)] and 
in the Mormugao Port [examined in the Committee's 230th Report 
(Fifth Lok Sabha)]. 



(b) Storage shod 

Audit Paragraph 

2.a. Gmemment sanctioned in February 1968 construction of 
.torage accomnodation in the mne station for staring costly and 
sophisticated imponted equipment. The work was executed by a 
contraotor and the building constructed at a cost of Rs. 4.06 l a b  
was taken over on 31st December, 1968. A competition certificate 
was issued by the Military Engineer Services to the contractor with- 
out reservation on 28th February, 1969. 

2.49. A storm occurred on 10th May, 1969 causing extensive dam- 
age to this building; a part of the building collapsed making it unfit 
tor use. 

2.30. A Technical Board which was convened in June 1969 held 
that the damage was due to the structural design not being strong 
enough to take the wind loads and also due to poor workmanship 
by the contractor. The Director General (Works) at Army Head- 
quarters r e c m e n d e d  in September 1969 that any rectification[ 
reconstruction as per the original design should be at the cost of the 
contractor and that the cost of modifications'strengthening of the 
structure should be at the cost of Government. 

2.51. The contractor who had executed the work dxowned 
(August 1969) all responsibility for the defects on the plea that the 
building was constructed as per drawings and specifications of the 
contract under the concurrent supervision of the departmental engi- 
neers and that completion centificate had been given to him. Action 
was then taken by the department in October 1969 to rectify the 
defects through another agency at the risk and cost of the contrac- 
tor. The latter refused to pay Rs. 86,063 spent by the department 
on rectification of the defects and wanted arbitra.tion. The arbitra- 
tor awarded (September 1972) Rs. 19,833 only in favour of Govern- 
ment. Apart from the expenditure on rectifying the defects, the 
department also spent Rs. 47,260 on strengthening of the structure. 

2.52. The contractor challenged the award of the arbitrator and 
filed a suit in October 1972. 

2.53. Responsibility far lapses in the design of the structure ,and 
for lack of effective supervision of the work had not been fixed till 
September 1973. The Ministry intimated (September 1973) that the 



Mrector General, Naval Project, had been asked to examine the dio- 
ciplinary aspeot of the case. 

1 

[Paragraph 10(b) of the Report of the Comptroller and 
Auditor General of India foa. the year lSr72-73, 

Union Government (Defence Services) 1. 

2.54. The Committee learnt from Audit that the work had been 
executed by B. Ranga Rao and Partners. 

255. The Audit paragraph points out that the Technical Board, 
convened in June 1969, to investigate i n k  the causes leading to the 
extensive damage ta the swage  shed, had held that the damage 
was due to the structural design not being strong enough to take 
the wind loads and poor workmanship by the contractor. The Com- 
mittee, therefore, enquifed into the circumstances in which the com- 
pletion certificate had been given, without reservations, in February 
1969 and the structural design was not made strong enough to take 
the wind loads. The Additional Secretary, Ministry of Defence, 
stated in evidence: 

"I would like to explain a little more; first of all, the first 
completion certificate was given in December 1968, point- 
ing ~ u t  a number of defects; these defects were remedied 
by the contractor and then, in February 1969, the final 
competition centificate was given. After 3 months, i.e., in 
May 1969, a cyclonic-storm struck at.  . . .and the wind 
force was as much as 99 kilometres and the roof was 
blown off. Subsequently a technical committee was a p  
pointed tq go into it. Their main recommendation is that 
the design should have been made stronger, they had also 
said that there was defect in supervision. But my Ckief 
Engineer tells me that what the committee had meant by 
lack of design capability was that even though the design 
was capable of withstanding the wind-speed upto 99 kilo- 
metres, it could not have withstood a wind-speed of 158 
km. He is firmly of the opinion that there was no defect 
in the design, leading k, the glowing up of the roof, in 
May 1969". 

2.56. Since this appeared to be somewhat contradichry fronl what 
had been reported as the view of the Technical Board in the Audit 
paragraph, the Committee desired to h o w  whether the windloads 
which the Technical Board had referred to were not, the loads nor- 



rnally encatntered in that area and na(t the ideal wind-loadi. 'The 
Additional Secretary replied: 

"That was also our &st cornmon-sense view; but during the 
discussions with the Chief Engineer, the latter had made 
certain elucidations.'' 

Elaborating further, ,the Chief Engineer of the project deposed: 

"I do not know whether you have had a chance to go through 
the report of the court d enquiry which had investigated 
the damage.. . . You have queried as to what exactly the 
correct position is, in regard to what the technical board 
had said. I would just explain what it had meant, because 
I feel that the wwding in the Audit para could be slightly 
different. What the technical board has actually written 
is that the workmanship on the part of the contractor was 
deficient or poor. That is the first point. It has gone 
through the design and has not ,mde any comment on 
any deficiency in regard to design. However, in its obser- 
vations, it had the future, presumably, in mind. In this 
particular instance, as the Additional Secretary had point- 
ed out, there was a wind-force of 9!3 km. In future, the 
wind-force might probably be much mqre, say 200 kms; 
anticipating the worst, they have said that it may be as 
much as 200 kilograms per square metre. They have said 
that in that case, it would cause tension in the masonry 
of a very high order, which possibly it may not be able to 
withstand. For the particular wind-force which did occur 
at the rate of 99 krns., the tensiqn in the masonry was of 
the order of, say, 1.18 lbs. per sq. inch, whereas the 
masonry particularly at that time was able to withstand 
upto 15 to 20 lbs. per sq. inch. In future, if there is a 
much stronger wind-force, a situation might arise when 
the masonry would be found weak. I think they had 
wanted a precaution to be taken." 

2.57. The Committee desired to know the wind speeds normally 
encountered, in cyclonic weather, in that area and whether the design 
catered to these speeds. The Additional Secretary replied: 

"During cyclonic storms the wind-force can go upto 200 kns. 
per hour. It is probably because of the anticipated wind- 
force in a cyclonic storm that this committee has said so". 



Ia a note furnished subsequently, in this w r d ,  the Miniatry of 13c- 
faccl stated as fouow8: 

. 'The design of the building as wnsffuclkd was strong enough 
ka eokc a whd-load which or?wrred during the storm. 
Howewer, the Technical Board had expressed the opinion 
that the masonry would not have been strong emugh to 
!take the wind-load of 200 km. per square metre which 
means a wind-speed of 200 km. per hour. What wind- 
load should be provided for is a matter of opinion and there. 
was a difference of opinion {betweem experts in the fleld. 
However, in view of the fact that the damage suffered by 
the building was not due to the structural design of the 
masonry not being strong enough, this point may not be 
pursueh f'urther." 

258. A cqpy of the proceedins of the Technical Board of Officers, 
appointed to investigate into the circumstances in which damage had 
been caused to the storage shed, was furnished. at  the Committee's 
instance, by the Ministry of Defence. The Committee found from 
the proceedings that the Board had made the following recom- 
mendations: 

"(a) The damage to the newly constructed store shed has. 
been due to: 

(i) the structural design not being strong enough to take 
the wind-loads, 

(ii) poor workmanship by the contractor. 

(b) Contractual positton: In case of normal collapse of 
building within the maintenance period, it is the contrac- 
tor who must undertake to re-erect the damaged portion 
and no responsibility lies with the Government. In this 
particular case there were two contributory factors which 
resulted in the collapse. One is the inadequate design to 
withstand the wind-loads. The other is the contracbx's 
fault in producing sub-standard work. I t  is difficult to 
apportion the cost of rectification on account of these two 
lapses. Any rectification'reconstruction as per the origi- 
nal design should be at  the cost of the contractor. Cost of 
only modificationslstrengthening required should be met 
by the Government. 



Responsfbil* jm repait: It is recommekuied that the 
shed be repaired through the agency of DGNP. This wil l  
avoid contractual complications that may arise if another 
agency was employed to carry out rectiAcation(rec0ns- 
tructimP . r r l  

From the 'Engineer Appreciation of Failure and Damage' made by 
the Board, the Committee found that! the Board had, inter dia, ob- 
served as follows: 

"From the observations of the damage that has occurred to 
the storage shed, the Technical Board is of the opinion 
that the structural failure has occurred in the following 
sequence: 

Under the high velocity of 99 kmlhr. reached during the gale 
on 1Othlllth May 1969, the sheets were l%e first to be 
blown off. Some of the J-bolts were seen to have s t raight  
ened out. The purlins were the next structural members 
to get lifted off the trusses under the suction pressures and 
thrown away due to the following causes:- 

(a) The purlins were not adequately fixed to the truss 
cleats as already stated above. In some places, there 
was no fixing with nails and they were simply resting 
against the cleats. 

(b) the purlins resting on the walls were not properly an- 
chored with bed blocks and holding down bolts. As a 
result. the purlins got uprooted from the trusses. This 
view is amply corroborated by- 

(i) Exhibit 10 which shows the lifting of the purlins of 
the wall leaving gaps. 

(ii) Exhibit 12 which shows absence of nailing marks on the 
cleats as well as inadequate and improper workman- 
ship in fixing of the purlins to the cleats by nails. 

The lifting of the purlins left the trusses unsupported and 
unbraced and directly exposed to the push of the squall. 
Further, there was no laternal bracing provided though 
this is the normal sound engineering practise. As a 
result, wherever the purlins were uprooted, the truszes 
became unsupported laterally and were dragged down 
by the falling purlins, getting the chain of reaction v k .  



trusees were uprooted from the bed blocks, ,dragging 
down the masonry pillars in turn marked 1 and 2 in the 
plan. Thus the root cause of this failure is the uplifting 
of the purlins, due to improper Axing of the purlins. 
This view is also reinforced by the fact that inside the 
shed, where the purlins have been uprooted only on one 
side of the truss but are intact on the other side, the 
trusses are still standing." 

As regards the defects in design, the Technical Board had observed 
Shat from the calculations for the structural stability of the pillars, 
i t  was found that the maximum tensile stress in the masonry pillar 
was of the order of 43 lbslsq. in. taking the wind pressure of 200 
kg1sq.m. (IS Code 875-1964) and had stated: 

iiTl~ough the present Indian Code IS 1905 of 1961 'Code of 
Practice of Masonry' does not allow tensions in masonry, 
the new draft code under circulation permits tension of 
1 kglsq. cm. i.e. 14.27 1bs.lsq. in. Also the British Pub- 
lications permit the tensile stress of 15 lbs. to 20 1bs.l 
sq. in. I t  is, therefore, considered that for the open shed, 
the designer has taken the risk by providing pillars in 
masonry which is weak in tension. The tensile stresses 
were such that masonry could not have withstood the 
same." 

2.59. With reference to the observations of the Technical Board, 
t h e  Additional Secretary of the Ministry of Defence stated during 
evidence: 

"From Government side, we admit that there was defect in 
design and also defect in execution. We admit both axxi 
we have already asked the Director General, Naval Pro- 
ject, to obtain the explanation of the then Chief Engineer 
who had given the technical sanction of this project. 
And as far as defect in the execution is concerned, even 
though the contractor pleaded that he should not be 
blamed but the Arbitrator made an award of Rs. 19,000(- 
against him." 

2.60. As regards the issue of the completion certificate to the 
rcontractor, the Ministry of Defence, in a note furnished to the Com- 
mittee stated: 

"A completion certificate is given on the physical completion 
of a building. In the case under consideration, the com- 



pletian certificate was followed by r&tifidation list and 
the contradtor was responsible for rectification and m a -  
tenance during maintenance period. In view of the 
opinion expressed by the Technical Board that the work- 
manship of the building was poor and also in view of 
the Additional Secretary's statement that he will call for 
the explanation of the officers concerned, necessary 
action is being taken to obtain the explanation of the 
Garrison Engineer." 

2.61. In reply to another question as to why the poor workman- 
ship had not been detected during concurrent supervision by the 
.project authorities, the Ministry stated: 

'This point will doubtlessly be clarified on receipt of the 
explanation of the Garrison Engineer." 

2.62. Since it had been stated by the Additional Secretary, Minis- 
:try of Defence, that the Director General of the Project had been 
askxl ,to obtain the explanation of the then Chief Engineer who 
had given the technical sanction for this work, the Committee en- 
quired into the action taken in this regard. In a note, the Ministry 
of Defence replied: 

"The technical sanction to the building was given by the then 
Director General, Rear Admiral C. L. Bhandari, who has 
since retired from service. Explanation of the then Col. 
(P&D) is being obtained by DGNP who was directed to 
do so." 

2.63. According to the Audit paragraph, the defects in the build- 
ing had been rectified, at the contractor's risk and cost, at a cost of 

3 s .  86,063. The contractor (B. Ranga Rao & Partners) had, how- 
ever, refused to pay this amount and had gone in for arbitration. 
.On the Committee enquiring into the constituent elements of this 
claim of Rs. 86,063, the Chief Engineer of the project replied in evi- 
dence: 

"The ACC roof which was blown off was replaced and that 
was the cost." 

2.64. Asked whether the building was in sound condition after 
the rectification of the defects, the Ministty, in a note, replied: 

"The building is in good condition after the rectification of the 
defects and is in use since 15 May 1970." 



2.66. AB wrde the p-t p i t l o n  at the arbitration award, en- 
qwind into by the Committee, the Minirtry stated: 

"The petitioner, viz., MIS. B. Rango Rao & Psrrtners have chal- 
lenged the award of the arbiltrator and the case is poeted 
for hearing on 23rd July 1875 in the Court. . . ." 

ha. In paragraphs ZM and 2.109 of their 18th Report (Fourth 
b k  Sabha), the Committee had commented upon instances of lapses 
in working out the technical requirement6 of works and had recom- 
mended, inter alia, that the relevant authorities should fake steps to 
ensure that technical sanctions were accorded only after an exami- 
aation of all aspects of a project. The presant case under examina- 
don is one more instance of defective construction of storage ac- 
commodation, which has been attributed by a Technical Board to the 
structural design of the building not being strong enough to take the 
wind-loads and also to poor workmanship by the contractor (Mls. 
6. Ranga Rae & Partners). 

2.67. As regards the inadequacy of the structural design pointed 
out by the Technical Board, it was contended by a spokesman of the 
project that there was no defect in the design and that the Techni- 
cal Board presumably had the future in mind while making its ob- 
servations. The Committee are., however, unable to accept this con- 
tention. In view of the fact that the area was known to be cyclonic 
and the wind-force, during a storm, could be admittedly very high, 
the Committee are of the view that this factor should have heen 
taken into account while halising the design of the building and the 
masonry made strong enough to withstand the anticipated wind 
speeds in the area. Besides, from a perusal of the proceedings of 
the Technical Fkmrd, the Committee fmd that there is no ambiguity 
in the Board's findings, which has clearly stated that the tensile 
stresses were such that the masonry could not have withstood them 
and that the designer had taken a risk by providing pillars in ma. 
sonry which were weak in tension. It is, therefore, evident that the 
design of the building was defective. 

2.68. The Additional Secretary of the Ministry has been good 
enough to admit that the design and execution have both been defec- 
tive and has informed the Committee that the Director General of 
the Naval Praject had been asked to obtain the explanation of the 
oftlcers concerned. Considerable time having elapsed since then, 
the Committee trust that the process would have been completed' 
by now and would lie to be apprised of the outcome and the action, 



;U any, taken yjnrt the o t l t i c ~  f d  rapanrible for the defd'~ lb  
design u well u laxity in supervising the contractor's work. 

268. The Committee note &at the defects in the drmrged build- 
ing had been rectified, at a cod of &. 86,063, at the contractor's risk 
and expense, and that the case had been referred to arbitration at 
the contractois instance. Though the arbitrator had awarded a sum 
of Rs. 19,833 only in favour of Governmant, the award bas been chd- 
bnged by the contractor in a court. The Committee wodd like to 
be informed of the present position of W case and if it is still pend- 
ing in a court of law, they would urge Government to ensure its ex- 
peditious dtrpaarl 



EXCFSS PAYMENT OF ELFCTRICITY CHARGES 

Audit Paragraph 
3.1. After a case of excess payment of electricity charges for S e p  

tember 196!j to May 1966 came to notice, instructions were issued by 
the Army Headquarters in December 1967 that t h e  peak load re- 
quirements should be assessed realistically in future and the peak 
load requirements already intimated to the suppliers should be exa- 
mined at all stations on the basis of actual requirement. Despite 
these instructions, the following cases of excess payment of electri- 
city charges came to notice. 

3.2. An agreement entered into by the Chief Engineer of a com- 
mand with an electric supply company for bulk supply of electri- 
city to the Armed Forces Medical College at a station from Novem- 
ber 1963 was for a contract demand of 312.5 K.V.A. (i.e. the maxi- 
mum K.V.A. for which the company undertook to  provide facilities 
Erom time to time). The agreement was to remciin in force for a 
minimum period of seven years, and was renewable thereafter on 
pear to year basis. According to the agreement the contract demand 
could be increased but not reducsd. The contract demand of 3:2.5 
K.V.A. was increased 'to 625 K.V.A. by the Military Engineer Scr- 
vices authorities in 1966. when the State Electricity Board took over 
electric supply from the electric supply company, keeping in view 
the works in progress and a proposed hospital complex. Actually, 
the recce-cum-siting board for the proposed hospital complex was 
held only in December 1967 and preliminary planning for the com- 
llex is still in progress (December 1973). 
Iv- 

3.3. As per t a r 8  of the State Electricity Board electricity charges 
were tc be the highest of the following:- 

(i) recorded maximum demand for the month concerned; 

(ii) 75 per cent of the contract deman3; 

(iii) minimum demand i.e. 50 K.V.A. 

3.4. Accordingly, the State Electricity Board billed for 469 K.V.A. 
(75 per cent of the contract demand of 625 K.VA .) from April 1966 
although the recorded maximum monthly demand was between 220 



to 2i)O.KV.A. ( m e w )  during April 1966 to A p ~ i l W 2 .  The amount 
paid in excess upto April 1972 due to increase in the contract demand 
in 1966 was Rs. 1.74 lakhs. The contract demand was reduced t o  
300 K.V.A. from May 1972. 

3.5. A Board of Officers, which was assembled in May 1972 to in- 
vestigate into the matter, found that th2 basis for increase of con- 
tract demand from 312.5 K.V.A. to 625 K.V.A. was not traceable, 
and, therefore, it could not fix responsibility for the unrealistic 
assessment of the contract demand. The Board also observed that 
the agreement for the increased contract aemand from April 1966 
%.:.as signed only in August 1971 and that the excess payment could 
have been avoided had this agreement been concluded in time as 
the State Electricity Board, which was approached by the Military 
Engineer Services in December 1967 far reduction in the contract 
demand, had intimated that the request would be considered only 
after execution of the agreement for contract demand of 625 K.V.A. 

3.6. The Ministry of Defence intimated (Dewmber 1973) that:- 

(i)  the agreement was executed on standard form of the 
State Electricity Board which was not required to be 
scrutinisedIapproved by the Controller of Defence Ac- 
countslLegal Adviser; 

(ii) the agreement to give effect to increased contract dzmand 
effective from April 1966 was executed only in August 
1971 due to procedural difficulties; and 

(iii) action was under way for regularising the loss of Rs. 1.74 
lakhs and a Court of Enquiry had been ordered in Novem- 
ber 1973 to probe into the matter. 

3.7. Electric supply for the Defence Services laboratories at an- 
other station was being obtained from November 1965 from the State 
Electricty Board at 200 K.V.A. for laboratory 'X' and 250 K.V.A. for 
laboratory 'Y', on the basis of the requirements intimated by the 
laboratories, These supplies being temporary ones were obtained 
on requisition and not by concluding regular contract agreements. 
As per the tariff of the State Electricity Board for temporary ser- 
vices, the electricity charges were to be the highest of the following: 

(1) contract demand (i.e. 200 K.V.A. for laboratory 'X' and 
250 K.V.A. for laboratory 'Y'); 

(11) maximum demand registered by the meter for the month; 
and 



3.8. Accordingly, the State Electricity Board billed for the full 
contract demands for these two laboratories although the recorded 
maximum demand did not exceed fifty per cent thereof during 
March 1969 to February 1972. Thus Rs. 1.68 l a b  were paid in ex- 
cess as electricity charges due to unrealistic assekment of the power 
requirement of the two laboratories. 

3.9. The Ministry intimated (Ilecember 1973) that: - 
(i) "since the laboratories were developing, i t  was not pod- 

ble to reduce the contract demands as users were persib 
tenfly against any reduction from the very beginning"; 

(ii) "no timely action appears to have been taken by the 
Military Engineer Services authority after December 1988 
to reduce the contract demand when the actual/revised 
requirements of the Research Laboratories became 
known"; and 

(iii) the Chief Engineer of the command wzs asked in August 
1973 to arrange a Staff Court of Enquiry to enquire, into 
the lapses, pinpoint responsibility and suggest remedial 
measures. 

fParagraph 16 of the Report of the Comptroller and Auditor Gen- 
eral of India for the year 197273, Union Government (Defence 
.Services) J 

3.10. In regard to the first case commented upon in the Audit 
paragraph, the Committee learnt from Audit that the Ministry of 
Defence had stated (February 1974) that the Chief Engineer con- 
.cerned had confirmed that no agreement was entered into with 
the Maharashtra State Electricity Board in 1963 for the supply of 
312.5 KVA of electrticity. The Committee, therefore, desired to 
know the basis on which power was being supplied in the absence 
of an agreement and how the contract demand of 312.5 KVA b t  
came enforceable without any scope for reduction. In a note, the 
Ministry of Defence informed the Committee as follows: 

"MES had entered into an agreement with Poona Electric 
Supply Company in May 1958 for supply of electricity 
with effect from November 1956. When the Maharashtm 



State Electricity Board took over the affairs of Poona 
Electric Supply Company, it continued the supply of 
electricity to the MES on the basis of the aforesaid 
agreement till a fresh agreement was executed between 
the MES and MSEB 312.5 KVA was the minimum de- 
mand chargeable as per agreement with Poona Electric 
Supply Company." 

Explaining, at  the Committee's instance, the basis on which the 
original contract demand of 312.5 KVA had been fixed, the Minis- 
t ry  stated that this demand was based on the minimum load that 
could be contracted for High Tension bulk supply as per the rules 
prescribed by the Pune Electricity Supply Co. 

3.11. The Committee enquired in40 the circumstances in which 
the contract demand of 312.5 KVA had been increased to 625 KVA 
i n  1966. In a note, the Ministry of Defence replied: 

"The contract demand of 312.5 KVA was increased to 625 KVA 
due to anticipated additional load as indicated below:- 

Existing load then . . . - . . 120 KW 

For 3 Cold Storages . . . . . I 
93KW ; 

Load for Officers Mess . - . . 5oKW 1 
Air Conditioningin Blood Plasma Unit . 25 KVP Anticipated 
DentalTrainingWing . . . . 30 KW additi, nal 

Load for under-Graduate College . . . r5oKW I lad 

TOTAL - . 
Applying a diversity factor of 1.5, the maximum demand for 

all t he  loads in Armed Forces Medical College as in- 
dicated by the Garrison Engineer, works out to 310 KW 
approximately. However, in the application made by 
the Garrison Engineer to the Pune Electricity Supply 
Co. on 18-4-1963, it was erroneously indicated by him that 
a further load of 350 KW would be required ia addition 
to the existing load of about 150 KW i . e .  a bid for 500 KW 
in lieu of 350 KW was made and the same was sanctioned 
by Government of Maharashtra in July 1963." 

3,12. Though the contract demand had been increased keeping 
in  view the construction of a proposed hospital complpex, the 
1'847 L . S . 4 .  



Audit paragraph points out that the recce-cum-siting board fot 
the proposed complex was held only in December 1967 and that 
preliminary planning for the complex was still in progress in Decem- 
ber 1973. The Committee, therefore, asked why the demand w a s  
increased even before the recce-cum-siting board for the hospital 
complex had met. In a note, the Ministry replied: 

"There is nothing on record to elucidate as to why the con. 
tract demand was increased prior to assembling of the 
Sitting Board for hospital complex. Presumably, the de- 
mand was projected as soon as it was visuadised through 
it took much longer to materialise than anticipated." 

In this connection, the Committee were also informed by Audit 
that the Ministry had intimated, in February 1974, that planning 
on this project at the Armed Forces Medical College was still in pro- 
gress and that Government sanction for acceptance of necessity for 
the project was still awaited. Asked whether the hospital complex 
has since been sanctioned, the Ministry informed the Committee, in 
a note, that this had not yet been sanctioned. 

3.13. Although the recorded maximum monthly demand (aver- 
age) was only 220 to 230 KVA during April 1966 to April 1972, 
the State Electricity Board had, according to the prescribed tariff, 
billed the Armed Forces Medical College for 469 KVA (75 per cent 
of the contract demand of 625 KVA) from April 1966. The Com- 
mittee, therefore, enquired when it was first noticed that the maxi- 
mum monthly demand was far less than 625 KVA and when this 
matter was first taken up with the Electricity Board in a note, 
the Ministry of Defence replied: 

"The maximum demand had invariably been less than 625 KVA 
but no notice was taken of the same by the Garrison 
Engineer since the billing continued to be based on the 
contract demand of 312.5 KVA. It  was only in December 
1967 when the Maharashtra State Electricity Board billed 
on the basis of the revised demand of 625 KVA retros- 
pectively w.e.f. 1 January 1966, the matter was taken up 
with the above Electricity Board". 

3.14. Since the contract demand had been reduced from 625 KVA 
to 300 KVA from May 1972, the Committee desired to know the 
maximum monthly demand from May 1972 onwards. The informa- 



tion furnished in this regard by the Ministry of Defence is tabulat- 
ed below: 

(Figures in KVA) 
-. -- 

Month 1972 1973 I974 
-. . --. .... .- 

. . .  January . . . 215 170 

February . . . 210 210 

March . . 235 250 
. . .  April . . . 280 260 

May - . . 250 268 280 

June . 275 3cO 270 

J ~ Y  . . 240 250 260 

August 225 235 240 

September . . . 210 250 230 

October 265 255 230 

December . 240 200 200 
- - - .-. - - - --- - - - - -. - -- -- 

3.15. The Committee desired to know whether the consumer in 
this case was entitled to any proportionate rebate in the tariff if 
the consumption went below the contract demand on account of 
power cuts. In a note, the Ministry of Defence stated: 

"The agreement does not cater for power cuts as they were 
not visualised then. There were no power cuts imposed 
by MSEB and therefore the question of proportionate 
rebate did not arise." 

3.16. The Audit paragraph point out that a Board of Officers, as- 
sembled in May 1972 to investigate into the matter, had found that 
the basis for the increase of the contract demand from 312.5 KVA 
to 625 KVA was not traceable and, therefore, it could not fix res- 
ponsibility for the unrealistic assessment of the contract demand. 
The Committee also learnt from Audit that the Board had, however, 
observed, inter alia, that though this information was not traceable 
in the records available with the commander Works Engineer, the 
Garrison Engineer or the Assistant Garrison Engineer concerned, it 
had, however, come tb light, on liaison with the Maharashtra State 
Electricity Board, that the application for the increase in contract 



demand was signed by the then Garrison Engineer, Poona on 18 
April 1963. Since the Board had held, despite this evidence, 
that the responsibility for the unrealistic assessment of the 
contract demand, resulting in an infructuous expenditure of 
Rs. 114,231, cannot be pinpointed the Committee desired to 
know whether the Garrison Engineer who had signed the applica- 
tion in 1963 had been asked to indicate the basis on which he had 
applied for the increase and, if so, what his explanation was. In 
a note, the Ministry stated that the Garrison Engineer had since 
expired and that from the deliberations of a subsequent Court of 
Inquiry, convened in November 1973, it could, however, be seen that 
the contract demand had been increased in April 1963, as per the 
details earlier indicated in paragraph 3.11. 

3.17. Since the application for the increase in the contract de- 
mand was apparently made in April 1963 itself, the Committee 
desired to know why the increase was given effect to only from 
April 1966. In a note, the Ministry of Defence stated: 

"After the application for increase was submitted in April 
1963, the Government of Maharashtra gave their approval 
in July 1963 for the increased maximum demand subject 
to conclusion of a contract with Maharashtra State Electri- 
city Board to that effect. Maharashtra St?te Electricity 
Board, however, gave effect to the increased demand from 
January 1966 and raised revised bills in December 1967 
with retrospective effezt from January 1966 as the con- 
clusion of the contract agreement was still under pro- 
gress at that time." 

3.18. Asked whether the application made in April 1963 had 
stated that the increase from 312.5 KVA to 625 KVA should take 
effect from April 1966, the Ministry replied in the negative. 

3.19. The Board of Officers (May 1972) had also observed that 
the agreement for the increased contract demand from April 1966 
was signed only in August 1971 and that the excess payment could 
have been avoided had this agreement been concluded in time as 
the State Electricity Board, which was approached by the Military 
Engineer Services in December 1967 for a reduction in the contract 
demand, had intimated that the request would be considered only 
after the execution of the agreement for the contract demand of 
625 KVA. With reference to the reply furnished in this regard 
by the Ministry of Defence to Audit in December 1973, the Com- 
mittee enquired into the procedural difficulties involved in signing 
the agreement on account of which there had been a delay of more 



than five years. In a note, the Ministry of Defence replied as 
follows : 

"Poona Electric Supply Company handed over their business 
to the Maharashtra State Electricity Board in November 
1963 due to which i t  was required to enter into a fresh 
agreement, as per the legal opinion obtained from the 
Joint Secretary and Legal Adviser to the Government of 
India in July 1964. The Garrison Engineer, Pune ini- 
tiated a case for the fresh agreement in October 1964 by 
sending a draft agreement to Maharashtra State Elec- 
tricity Board. The draft agreement was based on the 
connected load of 250 KW. The draft agreement was 
received back by Garrison Engineer, Pune from the 
Maharashtra State Electricity Board in March 1965 with 
an advice to re-submit the draft agreement on the stan- 
dard form of Maharashtra State Electricity Board which 
was complied with by the Garrison Engineer in July 
1965. I t  was sent to Headquarters, Maharashtra State 
Electricity Board a t  Bombay for their approval. Later 
on, two copies of the draft agreement were called for by 
the Deputy Chief Engineer. Maharashtra State Electricity 
Board which the Garrison Eqineer ,  Pune submitted on 
4-12-1965. The matter relating to early Analisation of 
the draft agreement remained under correspondence 
between Commander Works Engineer/Garnson Engineer 
and Maharashtra State Electricity Board authorities. In 
order to expedite the matter, a meeting was held with 
the Deputy Chief Engineer, Maharashtra State Electricity 
Board in March 1967. The Deputy Chief Engineer. 
Maharashtra State Electricity Board informed the Garri- 
son Engineer. Pune that bulk supply would be given a t  
single point in lieu of three independent points at Armed 
Forces Medical College, Military Hospital and Chest 
Diseases Hospital for which the Garrison Engineer ksked 
the Maharashtra State Electricity Board for their written 
confirmation to this effect which the Deputy Chief Engi- 
neer Maharashtra State Electricity Board conveyed in 
April 1967. In May 1968. the agreement form was revised 
by the Maharashtra State Electricity Board and the 
Deputy Chief Engineer. Maharashtra State Electricity 
Board asked the Garrison Engineer to forward single, 
draft agreement for all the three points on their revised 
form. Meanwhile, a decision from Headquarters, Maha- 



rashtra State Electricity Board, Bombay was received 
in July 1969, according to which three separate agree- 
ments were to be concluded instead of one as previously 
asked for by the Maharashtra S'tate Electricity Board, 
Also, an agreement for Armed Forces Medical College 
where high tension supply was given by the former 
licensee (Pune Electric Supply Company) was to be 
executed on one type -of the form and for other two 
supply points at Military Hospital and Chest Diseases 
Hospital, it was to be concluded on another type of form. 
Accordingly, the Garrison Engineer, Pune forwarded 
copies of the draft agreement for the Armed Foxes 
Medical College for the approval of Chief Engineer, Pune 
and Rajasthan Zone in November 1969 for approval. In 
December 1969, one of the conditions of the draft agree- 
ment was revised by the Maharashtra State Electricity 
Board. In April 19710, the Chief Engineer, Pune and 
Rajasthan Zone approved the draft agreement and 
returned the same to the Commander Works Engineer 
for submission of final copie of the said agreement, 
The matter remained under correspondence emong the 
Garrison Engineer/Commander Works Engineer/Chiet 
Engineer, Pune and Rajasthan Zone. In July 1971, final 
copies of the agreement along with connected documents 
were sent to the Chief Engineer, Southern Command. 
The agreement was signed on 25-8-1971 and distributed to 
all concerned. 

The following were the procedural difficulties which 
were encountered by the Military Engineer Services 
Organisation in finalising the contract agreement with 
the Maharashtra, State Electricity Board: 

(i) The draft contract agreement was submitted by Garri- 
son Engineer, Pune to the Maharashtra State Electri- 
city Board on the form used by the Pune Electricity 
Supply Company, but this was not found acceptable 
by the Maharashtra State Electricity Board and they 
evolved a new standard form for this purpose. 

(ii) The Deputy Chief Engineer, Maharashtra State Electri- 
city Board decided in March 1967 that the supply would 
be given at single point in lieu of three independent 
points uiz.  Armed Forces Medical College, Military Hos- 
pital and Chest Diseases Hospital. Later on, this was 



not .  agreed to by their Headquarter at  Bombay and three 
separate draft contract agreements had to be initiated. 

(iii) Initially one type of the form was used by the Military 
Engineer Service authorities for all the three draft con- 
tract agreements but later on it was decided by the 
Maharashtra State Electricity Board to execute separate 
contracts for supply point at Military Hospital and Chest 
Diseases Hospital on one type of the form and for Armed 
Forces Medical College on the other type." 

3.20. Asked whether the loss in this case had since been regularis- 
ted, the Ministry replied: 

"The loss has not yet been regularised, as the recommendations 
of the General Officer Commanding-in-Chief, Sorthern 
Command are still awaited. After examining the Audit 
para in the E-in-C's Branch they asked the Chief Engineer, 
Southern Command in August 1973 to approach staff 
authorities concerned to convene a Staff Court of Inquiry 
to investigate into the lapses pointed out in the Audit 
para. 

The Court of Inquiry was ordered by the HQ. Pune Sub Area, 
Pune on 7-11-1973 to investigate irregularities and the 
Court of Inquiry assembled on 29-11-1973. As the Presid- 
ing Officer of the Court of Inquiry was posted out of the 
station, another Presiding Officer was appointed. This 
officer also could not proceed with the Court of 
Inquiry as he was due for retirement shortly. The 
third officer was, therefore, nominated and the 
Court of Inquiry finally assembled on 8-5-1974. The Court 
of Inquiry proceedings were finalised and submitted 
to the Hqrs. Sub Area, Pune by the Presiding m c e r  
on 31-5-1974. T,he Commander, Headquarters Pune Sub 
Area endorsed his recommendations on 8-6-1974 and for- 
warded the same to Headquarters Maharashtra and Gujarat 
Area. The General Officer Commanding Maharashtra & 
Gujarat Area endorsed his opinion on the findings of the 
Court of Inquiry on 17-9-1974 and these proceedings are 
presently lying with the General Officer Commanding-in- 
Chief, Southern Command for his recommendations after 
w,hich the action to regularise the loss and proceed against 
the delinquent officials will be taken as recommended." 



3 21. Subsequently, the Ministry made available to the Committee, 
a copy of the findings/recommendations of the Court of Inquiry (re- 
produced in Appendix I),  which had opined as follows in regard to 
the case of excess payment of electricity charges a t  the Armed Forces 
Medical College, Poona, commented upon in the Audit paragraph : 

"(i) The agreement with PESCO for 250 KW demand justi- 
fied as this is the minimum the company would agree t o  
contract. 

( i i )  Subsequently, based on the statement of consumption, 
there is no justification in applying for an additional de- 
mand of 350 KW. 

(iii) Necessary requests were made in December 1967 and 
again in December 1969 for reducing the demand at first 
to 400 KVA and later to 300 KVA. Even if these requests 
had been made earlier, it is unlikely to bave had any 
result in reducing the billing changes. This is due to t he  
adamant attitude of MSEB of insisting on the agreement 
being first signed and then considering any reduction. Thus 
in order to ultimately reduce the! contract demand to 300 
KVA. the agreement was finally signed in August 1971 for 
a contract demand of 625 KVA as insisted on by MSEB. 
This finally resulted in MSEB considering and reducing 
the contract demand to 300 KVA in May 1972. 

(iv) The total loss involvzd in the excess expenditure incurred 
is Rs. 1,83,946.40 (from January 1966 to April 1972). 

(v) It is not possible at this stage to pin-point the responsibility. 
This is because: - 

(aa) records justifying the incr'ease of electricity demand to 
625 KVA in 1963 are not available; 

(bb) the large number of officers involved from the number 
of officers, have either retired lexpir~d'not in the 
station; 

(cc) the time that has expired (since August 1962) is too long 
for any individual to recapitulate the reasons for ex- 
tra demand in 1963 in the absence of any record: 

(dd) instructions contained in Army Hq., E-in-C's Br. letter 
No. 29066'6834 dated 23 December, 1967 were com- 
plied with in Decemher 1967 and again in December 
1969, requests were made to MSEB to reduce the con- 
tract demand initially to 400 KVA and again to 300 
KVA." 



These findings of 'the Court had also been endorsed by the Comt- 
mander, Poona Sub-Area, General Officer Commanding, Maharashtra* 
and Gujarat Area and the General Officer Commanding-in-Chief, 
Soul hern Command. The GOC, M&G Area had also recgmmended 
that as i t  was not possible to fix responsibility on any individual, the 
enti1 e known loss amounting to Rs. 1,83,946.40 be borne by the State. 

3 22. In order to avoid such excess expenditure in future, the Court 
of Inquiry had also suggested the following remedial measures: 

" (a )  For any project the realistic estimate arrived at for 
power consumption must be related to the time factor i.e. 
future requirements in phases of pre-determined dates. 

(b) Any agreement must provide for an additi0n;reduction in 
power requirement with a stipulated notice period. If 
necessary, the minimum~maximum of additiop/reduction 
a t  any one time may be. stipulated. But under no circum- 
stances should the agreement be one sided wherein only 
the producer benefits while the consumer suffers. 

(c) At laid down periodical intervals the actual consunlption 
must be taken cognisance of by appointed individuals in 
order to apply for any change in supply, if desired, in time. 

(d) Legal Government service available must be m3de use of '  
when necessary to safeguard the interest of cons\?mer. As 
brought out in the present case, MSEB insisted o n ,  the 
agreement being signed first before considering any reduc- 
tion in the contractual demands. The agreement took al- 
most seven years to be signed. Legal Government opinion 
could have been obtained during this period of time which 
is likely to have resulted in less excess expenditure'. 

3.23. As regards the regularisation of the loss, the Ministry in- 
formed the Committee (February 1975) that the loss had not yet 
been regularised and added: 

"The matter has been taken up with Maharashtra State Elec- 
tricity Board for refund of excess charges of electricity. 
In  case of their denial, the case will be referred for iirbi- 
tration. On completion of this action, loss statement for 
the amount in question will be initiated". 

3.24. In respect of the second case reported in the Audit para- 
graph, the Committee learnt from Audit that the Ministry of Defence- 



had stated in this connection as follows: 

"Electricity was received for both the laboratories from Andhra 
Pradesh State Electricity Board from September 1965. As 
regards the maximum demands, the user wanted 200 KVA 
and 250 KVA far DMRL and D;PML respectively. As the 
users were expecting equipment and materials from 
abroad no details of the connected load were given by 
them. These maximum demands were communicated to 
State Electricity Board in September 1965." 

3.25. Since the supplies in this case, being temporary ones, were 
being obtained only on requisition and not by concluding regular 
contract agreements, the Committee asked whether it was not possi- 
ble to revise the contract demands for these temporary supplies from 
time to time after making a realistic assessment on the basis of past 
consumption and the likely increase in future consumption. In a 
note, the Ministry of Defence replied: 

"As per the tariff of Andhra Pradesh State Electricity Board, 
12 months' notice was required for reduction of demand. 
Similarly, a period of 12 months was required for increase 
of demand. In case, a reduction was to be effected, the 
requisite notice of 12 months period was to be given. As 
the materials were estimated by the laboratories authori- 
ties concerned to arrive at any moment, the users were 
anticipating increase in their productian which prevented 
them from letting any reduction in maximum demand be- 
ing made because any reduction of demand and its subse- 
quent increase was likely to entail delay of a minimum of 
12 months parid which was not acceptable to the users 
for the expanding laboratories." 

3.26. The Audit paragraph points out that the Ministry of Defence 
had, inter aliu, intimated in December 1973 that "no timely action 
appears to have been taken by the Military Engineer Services autho- 
rity after December 1968 to reduce the contract demand when the 
actuallrevised requirements of the Research Laboratories became 
known. In this connection, the Committee were informed by Audit 
that the DMRL had informed the Garrison Engineer in May 1968 as 
under: 

". . . .this is to confirm that our maximum demand for the year 
1968-69 will be 100 KVA. The main reason for the low 
consumption of power is the shortage of raw materials 



required for prqduction of one of the items namely Nose 
cones in the powder metallurgy plant. We will be review- 
ing the power demand towards the end of the year when 
the picture regarding the activities of the plant will be- 
come clear. Any change in the maximum demand will be 
intimated to you well in advance to enable you to take 
up the matter with the Andhra Pradesh State Electricity 
Board." 

The Committee were also given to! understand by Audit that the 
Laborato,ry had subsequently (December 1968) informed the Garri- 
son Engineer as follows: 

"The raw material for the production of AP shots have since 
been received and fulJ power of 150 KVA to 160 KVA will 
be utilised during 1969-70. The consumption of power is 
not likely to decrease from 1969b70 onwards as the plant 
will be in regular production." 

3.27. The Ministry of Defence furnished, at the Committee's in- 
stance, the following details in regard to the actualjrevised require- 
ments of the two research establishments from time to time: 

( I n  KVA ) 

Revised Actual 
Laboratory requirement Date demand 

intimated recorded Date 
by users 

- 

DPML 160 February 1968 . . 62.5 February 1968 

IOO May1g68 . . . 74.5 May 1968 

160 December 1968 
(1969-70) 

84' 30 Average for 196970. 

DMRL I74 November 1967 . . . 126. so November 1967. 

3.28. The Committee desired to know the details of the recorded 
maximum demands (i) prior to March 1969 and (ii) after February 
1972 and of the extent of overpayment of electricity charges for the 
periods (i) September 1965 to March 1969 and (ii) March 1972 to 



March 1974. The information furnished in this regard by the Mini- 
stry is tabulated below: 

A.  MAXIMUM DEMAND RECORDED (In KVA) 
- - .- --- -- -- -- 

Period DPML - -. -- - - . - . . . . . . - .- -- - -- - DMRL -- - - - - . - - -- - -- -- 
Prior to March 1969 . 121.5 (January 1969) 192 (September 1968) 

*Supply of e1ectr;c;ty d;scosnected in February 1972. 

B. OVERPAYMENT 
- - -- (In Rupees) ---- 
Period DPML DMRL 

November rg65- 
February 1969 

March 1972- 
November 1972 

62,r 25 NIL 

NIL 21 .og6 

NOTE :-NO excess payment before Nomnber 1965 and after November 1972. 

3.29. Asked whether the load requirement of the labwatories 
had since then been revised and, if so, the revised demands had been 
intimated to the State Electricity Board, the Ministry replied: 

"The overall load requirement was finalised and on agreement 
with Andhra Pradesh S t a k  Electricity Board was conclud- 
ed on 6th February, 1972 with a maximum contract 
demand of 1000 KVA (with effect from July 1972). 
It was subsequently increased to 1400 KVA in December 
1973. Further distribution to various laboratories is being 
done by Military Engineers Service." 

3.30. Since the Chief Engineer of the Command had been asked, 
according to the Audit paragraph, in August 1973 to arrange a staff 
Court of Enquiry to go into the lapses. fix responsibility and suggest 
remedial measures, the Committee enquired whether the Court had 
finalised its inquiry and, if so, what its findingsrecommendations 
were. In a note, the Ministry replied: 

"The findings'recommendaions of the Court of Inquiry are, 
given below: 

(a) Findings of the Court of Inquiry: 

(i) The supply of electricity is made to a Research and  



Development Organisation which was rapidly expand- 
ing. 

(ii) The requirement of power was based on the require- 
................................ ment of the Director.. 

(DMRL) who was anticipating the equipment and 
materials to fulfil the immediate projects assigned. 

(iii) The Garrison Engineer Chandrayanagutta could only 
arrange for the requirement of the electrical energy re- 
quired by the . .  . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .  
(DMRL) and could not review reduction, though the 
users have been reminded to review the requirement. 

(b) Opinion of the Court of Inquiry: 

The Court is of the opinion that the requirement of energy 
could not be reduced in view of the findings above and 
hence feels that no individual or organisation could be 
blamed. It is recommended that the  loss of the excess 
amount paid to the electricity board be borne by the  
State. 

(c) Recommendations af the Court: 

The users being a Research Organisation rapidly expanding, 
no strictures or remedial measures could be suggested. 

The finalised Court of Inquiry proceedings were referred to 
Headquarters, Southern Command on 30-1-1974 by the 
Commander, Indep Andhra Pradesh Sub-Area for the 
recommendations of the General Officer Commanding-in- 
Chief, Southern Command. As the Court of Inquiry, 
while conducting its enquiry, did not follow the prescrib- 
ed procedure, the  Headquarters, Southern Command in 
consultation with the Engineer-in-Chiefs Branch, have 
ordered a fresh Court of Inquiry." 

3.31. The Ministry informed the Committee subsequently that 
%he fresh Court of Inquiry had completed its proceedings and fur- 
mished a copy of the inquiry report. The Court of Inquiry had, inter 
d i a ,  observed as follows: 



"FINDINGS OF THE C0,URT. 

Having examined the witnesses and the correspondence the- 
court finds that: 

(i) The electric power supply is made by APSEB to DMRL. 
and DPML laboratory, a Research and Development 
Organisation which was expanding rapidly purely on 
temporary basis. 

(ii) There was no permanent electrical agreement entered 
into with APSEB by MES upto 6-2-1972 as such there 
was no need to review this by inspecting officers. 

(iii) The power requirement for DMRL and DPML was 
based on the projected load of the Director DMRL, who 
were awaiting arrival of equipment and materials from 
abroad for project assigned to them. 

(iv) The MES could only arrange for the power required 
by DMRL and no way of assessing or reviewing the re- 
quirement or reduction in the power. The u s a s  have 
been reminded by MES constantly to review their re- 
quirement. 

(v) Revision of requirement was not possible due to the 
uncertainty of users power requirement for the equip- 
ments apd materials expected any moment from 
abroad. 

(vi) Over-payment of Rs. 2,51.656- due to less consumption 
of electric power by users was made by MES. 

The Court inspected the various correspondence between the 
Garrison Engineer and the Director DMRL regarding the 
requirement of power. 

OPINION OF THE COURT. 

The Court is of the opinion that the requirement of electrical 
power could not be assessed by the MES as the service 
rendered is to an R & D Organisation for which no scales 
are laid down and all the works are special requirement. 

The MES had only to depend on the demands made by users 
and no reduction could be exercised by the MES due to 
uncertain demand by users. 



The DMRL based their requirement on the projects assigned'. 
to them and utilisation targets have not been maintained 
due to the uncertainty in receipt of the equipment and 
raw materials from abroad. 

For the perpayment  DMRL only can be responsible and not 
the MES. 

For the same reasons infructuous expenditure prior to and 
after the objection may be included in the loss statement. 

The loss is to be regularised by Director DMRL as per exist- 
ing orders. 

RECOMMENDATION OF THE COURT 

The Board recommends that in all future projects/works etc., 
the users should work out their power requirement on 
more realistic basis in detail in consultation with MES t o  
avoid over-payment on low 1 bigger consumption. I t  is 
also recommended 'to enter into permanent agreement 
with State authorities giving phased requirement." 

On the findings of the Court, the Commander, Andhra Sub-Area had 
recommended as follows: 

"I agree with the opinion of the Court. As rightly brought 
out by the Court, the MES had no yardstick to assess the 
requirement of DMRL. The MRL was also not in a posi- 
tion to reassess their requirement due to uncertainty in 
receipt of the equipment. 

I, therefore, recommend that the excess m o u n t  of 
Rs. 1,68,435)- (Rupees one lakh sixtyeight thousand four 
hundred and thirtyfive only) paid to the Andhra Pradesh 
State Electricity Board during 1969 to 1972, be written off 
and borne by the State." 

The recommendations had also subsequently endorsed by the Gene- 
ral Officer Commanding, Andhra, Tamil Nadu, Karnataka and 
Kerala Area and the General Officer Commanding-in-Chief, South- 
ern Command. 

3.32. As regards the regularisation of the loss, the Ministry in- 
formed the Committee as follows: 

"The Chief-Engineer concerned has been asked to regularise, 
the excess payment and as nobody has been held res- 



ponsibk for the same by the Court of Inquiry due to the 
expansion of the Research Laboratories, no 'disciplinary 
action is being taken against any individual. The amount 
of excess payment involved has been wrongly indicated 
as Rs. 1,66,435/- instead of Rs. 2'51,6561- in the recom- 
mendations made by Commander Andhra Sub-Area and 
General Officer Commanding Andhra, Tamil Nadu, Kar- 
nataka and Kerala Area." 

3.33. As has been pointed out in the Audit paragraph after a case 
*of excess payment of electricity charges had come to notice, the 
Army Headquarters had issued instructions, in December 1967, that 
the peak load requirements should be assessed realistically in future 
and the peak load requirements already intimated to the suppliers 

,should be examined a t  all stations on the basis of actual requirement. 
Dealing with this case, reported in paragraph 30 of the Audit Report 
)(Defence Services), 1968, the Public Accounts Committee (1968-69) 
had, in paragraph 3.187 of their 69th Report (Fourth Lok Sabha), 
observed: 

"The Committee observe that an Air Force Station paid elec- 
tricity charges from September 1965, till January 196'7, 
on the basis of 75 per cent of the maximum contract 
demand, viz. 500 KVA, though the actual consumption 
was not more than 100 KVA. It has been stated that the 
connected load was 250 KVA and a further load of 250 
KVA was anticipated. The anticipated load did not, 
however, materialise due to a change in operational re- 
quirement, which was 'indicated' by the Command Autho- 
rities in January 1967. I t  is not, however, clear how, when 
the change in operational requirements was 'indicated' 
only in January 1967, the Garrison Engineer could have 
approached the Electricity Board for scaling down the 
contract demand to 100 KVA even in September 1966. 
The Committee would like the Ministry of Defence to 
examine whether there was a failure to scale down the 
demand sufficiently in time." 

I n  their Action Taken Note on the above recommendation [repro- 
duced a t  pages 110 and 111 of the Committee's 99th Report (Fourth 
Lok Sabha)], the Ministry of Defence had informed the Committee, 

'Inter alicr, that "with a view to ensuring that the peak load demands 
of electricity are assessed on realistic requirements", necessary 
instructions had been issued to all concerned by the Army Head- 
quarters on 23 December 1967. A copy of the Army Headquarters, 



E-inC1s Branch letter No. 2906616BIEX dated 23 December 1967, fur- 
nished to the Committee in this connection is repmduced in Appen- 
dix 11. 
f ,  

3.34. In paragraph 3.181 to 3.189 of their 69th Report (Fourth LoL 
Snbh),  the C o d t t e g  had dealt with a case of excess payment d 
electricity charges at a station! as a result of unrealis tic assessment orl 
the power requirements. After this case had come to notice, i n s  
tructions were issued by the Army Headquarters, in December 
1967, stressing the need for correctly assessing the peak load re- 
quirements in future and for reviewing the demands already con- 
tracted for on t b  basis of actual requirements. However, two 
more such cases of excess payment, amounting to Rs. 4.36 lakhs, 
have again been highlighted in the Audit paragraph under exami- 
nation. That such avoidable expenditure should continue to R- 

cur is a matter of serious concern. 

3.35. The Committee note that in the first case rehtillg to are 
Armed Forces Medical College, the contract demand had been in- 
creased hy the M I S  aiithorities from 3125 KVA to G25 KVA, keep- 
ing in view the works in progress and a proposed hospital com- 
plex even prior to the assembling of tho recce-cum-&ting board and 
before the necessity of the project had been accepted by Govern- 
mrnt. While the reasons for this unusual keenness are not very 
clear in the absence of the relevant records, the Committee have 
been informed that while the maximum demand for all the I d  
i n  the Armed Forces Medical College, on the bask of projected 
forecast\, worked out to about 310 KW, the Gamson Jhgiaaer had 
erroneot~sly indicated. in the application made to the electricity 
company. that a further load of 350 KW would be required in addi- 
tion to the existing load of about 150 K.W, and sanction was given 
accordingly by the Government of Maharashtra Though a Court 
of inquiry assembled in November 1963 to probe into the matter 
had found no justification for a p p l e g  for the additional demand 
of 350 KW. it was not possible to ik respansibility for the lapee, 
since the records justifying the increase of the demnnd were statd 
to be not available and many of the officers iuvolvetl had either 
retired or expired. In the circumstances, the CoInmitlee have to 
remain content with expressing their dissatisfaction over the man- 
ner in which this case had been handled. 

3.36. The Committee regret that while a peculiar sense gP 
urgency had been displayed in this case in increasing the demsnd, 
the Sam,* sense of urgency was lacking in concluding the n m -  
say agreement to give effect to the increased contract dcmmd, 



which a p m m  to have been executed only as lab as in August 171, 
p m e  eight Y O ~  after applying for the increase. Since the State 
EIecMcity Board, approached in December 1967 for a reduction in 
the contract demand to 400 KVA, had insisted on thc execution of 
the agreement in respect of the contract demand of 625 KVA as 
a pre-condition for reducing the demand, it wal certainly impera- 
tive to finalise this long-pending issue and avoid unnecessary ex- 
cess expenditure. As pointed out by the Court of Inquiry, the 
procedural ditficulties involved in signing the agree~nent could 
have been resolved earlier by obtaining legal opinion. In case 
dMcultb: still persisted, efforts ought to have been made to iron 
out these differences at Government level, Regrettabfy, these steps 
do not appear to have been taken to safeguard Government's Finan- 
cial interests. 

3.37. In the lizht of the explanation furnished by thc Ministry 
about the second case relating to the supply of eltxtri:ity for De- 
fence laboratories end thl! findings of the Court of Inquiry, the 
Commitke will confine themselves $0 only cne aspert of the matter. 
The Committee find that the Court of Inquiry, ausemhled in Rlarcb 
1974, to go into the lapses in this caie, fix respollsihl!itY and sug- 
gest remsdial measures, had held the view that as there was no 
permanent agreement entered into with t!w Andha  Pradesh State 
Electricity Board by the Military Engineer S>:vice;, there was no 
need as such to rev:ew the requirements by the inspecting officers. 
The Committee are unab!o to accept this conlentinn. In order to 
safeguard the financial interests of Government and in view of 
the uncertainty over the actual requiremmts of powcr by the labo- 
ratorie;, the MES authorities ought to have kept the psition con- 
tinuously under review, in consultat',on with the users, and taken 
h 3 1 y  action to reduce the contract demand when the artuallre- 
vised requirements of tho laboratories became known. 

3.38. As regards regularisation of the losses ar i~ing from these 
transactionr, the Committee have learnt that in respect of the 
first case, the State Electricity Board has been approached for re- 
fund of the excoss charges and that if theie efforts failed the case 
wo'uld be referred to arbitration. As for the second case, the Chief 
Engineer concerned has been a s k d  to regularise the excess pay,- 
rnent in view of the fact that no individual had been held to be 
responsibte for the lapse. T b  Committee would like to know the 
latest position in this regard 

3.39. Apart from the formality of regularising the losses, the 
Committe: feel that the Ministry should also analyse the reasons 



fur the lapses that occurred in these two cases and prescribe effec- 
tive remedial measures for the future. In this connsction the Corn- 
mi!tee note that the Courts of Inquiry which examined these cases 
have also suggested certain remedial measures. The Committee 
would urge Government to go ahead with the task of evolving unE 
form guidelines in this regard rather than leaving the initiative en- 
tirely to the individual units concerned 



DEFICIEPICIES IN STOCK OF FURNITURE 

Audit Pa~agraph 

4.1. Verificaticn of stock of furniture held in a Military Engi- 
neer Services division at a station was carried out from time t o  time 
and no discrepancy was recorded in the certificate of stock veri- 
fication up to June 1971. Large deficiencies in stock of furniture 
were, however, noticed in November 1971, during handingltaking 
over charge between two supervisors. A Board of Oficers which 
was assembled between 17th December 1971 and 21st December 1971 
found that domestic furniture worth Ks. 40.655 was deficient and 
furniture worth Rs. 80,484 had been irregularly issued on loan to 
certain employees of the division and other civilians iron1 time to 
time since 1966. The Board held the supervisor in-charge of furni- 
ture responsible for thc deficiencies/irregular issues. The Board 
also held that his seniors could m: be absolved of responsibility for 
such def~ciencies/irregularities and recommendccl that n Court of 
Enquiry be convened t o  investigate 1.11~ circurn~t:~nces leading to 
such irregularities. 

4.2. I n  June 1972. the Sla t~on Cu~nmande~ ordered thc assembly 
of a Court of Enquiry which submitted its proceedings in March 
1973. The Station Headquarters raised (June 1973) certain obser- 
\-ations on these p ~ x e e d i n g s  hut the officer who had presided over 
the Court of Enquiry having been transferred in the meantimc was 
not avsilahle for clarifying thc points. A second Court of Enquiry 
was. therefore. ordered in October 1973 to fmali-e the incomplete 
deliberations. The find~ngs and recommendations of this Court of 
Enqulrg are still awaited (December 3973). 

4.3. No hire charges have so far (December 1973) been recover- 
ed S~om the individuals t,o whom furniture had been irregularly 
i ssu t  d on loan. 



4;4 According to the Chief Engineer, some furniture had since 
been received back as shown below: 

As in As in 
December October 
1971 I973 

-- - - - -. . -. -. - . . - - .- - . - 
Rs . Rs. 

li) Value of articles of domestic furniture found deficient in . , 
stock. . . . . . .  40,655 39,442 

1 ( i i )  Value of articles of furniture irregularly issued 04 loan. . 80,484 30,093 

4.5. The Ministry stated (December 1973) that suitable discipli- 
nary action agaipst the officers respmsible for the various lapses as 
also necessary remedial measures would be taken as soon as the 
proceeding of the Court of Enquiry were halised. 
paragraph 17 of the Report of the Comptroller and Auditor Gen- 

eral of India for the year 1972-73, Union Government (Defence 
Services) ] 

4.6. The Committee learnt from Audit that according to para 
670 of the Regulations for Military Engineer Services (1968 Edi- 
tion), the annual verification of the furniture held on charge is tc, 
be carried out by an Officer or Superintendent/Supervisor, Grade I 
by actual counting in the unit lines and quarters during AprillJune, 
according to a programme to be published in the Station Orders, 
jointly by the MES and the Unit or individual on whose charge the 
furniture is held. At the conclusion of the verification, both the 
copies of the Unit, distribution ledger are to be signed by the par- 
ties. In addition, the balance of furniture in store is also required 
to be checked at the same time and discrepancies, if any, entered 
in the Stock Taking Report (IAF'W 2221) and dealt with in accord- 
ance with the normal procedre prescribed in this regard. 

4.7. The Committee enquired how long the deficiencies reported 
in the Audit paragraph had remained undetected. The Engineer- 
in-Chief, Military Engineer Services replied in evidence: 

"It was detected in 1971, but I cannot say for how long they 
had remained undetected." 

Asked whether it was a fact that these had remained undetected 
tor nearly five years, the witness replied: 

"Before that period, the stock-taking was reported as having 
been done correctly and recorded on all the ledgers. Only 



during 1971 i t  came to our notice that it was mt done 
properly. I cannot say whether it remained undetected 
for 5 years." 

When the Committee drew attention, in this connection, to the 
stahment made in the Audit paragraph that a Board of Officers, 
wh'ch was assembled between 17 and 21 Deoember 1971 had found 
that the furniture had been deficient and .had also been irregularly 
Isxed from time to time since 1966, the witness stated: 

"It relates to irregularities in the issues and not to deficien- 
cies." 

The Defence Secretary, hwever ,  stated in this context: 

"It is a surmise. But the detection took place only in 1971." 

4.8. The Committee desired to know whether the stock verifica- 
tions carried out between 1966 and June 1971 were done according 
to the prescribed procedure and, if so how these deficiencies could 
remain undetected. In a note, the Ministry of Defence stated: 

"Verifications of stock between 1966 and 1971 were not camed 
out properly resulting in the non-detection of deficiency 
and irregular issue of furniture in any of the stock t a b  
ings." 

4.9. In regard to the irregular issues, on loan, of furniture, thr 
Committee learnt from Audit that the Ministry had stated ( F e b  
ruary 1974) that the furniture had been isxed to employeej: 9f the 
Military Engineer S.rvices, Military, Farm, staff of the Defence 
Accounts Department, U.P. Police and school teachers and that 
apart from these, some furniture was also loaned to "unauthorised 
private persons". 

4.10. As regards the non-recovery of hire charges from the in= 
dividuals to whom furniture had been irregularly issued on loan, the 
Committee were informed by Adit that the Mini~try had clarified 
(February 1974) that "as the issue of furniture was irregular, no r e  
covery on this account can be effected by the Unit Accountant thr- 
ough rent bills without any specific authority." The Committee, 
therefore, asked why recoveries had not been ordered in thew c a d  



b enable the Unit Accountant to effect recover!es. In a note, the . 
Ministry of Defence replied: 

"The Unit Accountant attached to BSO Mathura held the 
erroneous impression that hire charges for irregular 
i s x e  of furniture could not be effected through rent bills. 
The m2tter was subsequently got clarified through CG- 
DAKDA and recowry of h-re charge is now being eff- 
ected through rent bills. Rent bills amounting to Rs. 
5567.13 have been sent to the Unit Accountant attached 
to BSO for re2overy. Out of theye, bills amounting to 
Rs. 5418.68 have become time-barr~d. A sum of Rs. 44.50 
has since been re-overed. Further progress in the matter 
has been a-ked far from lower military authorities con- 
cerned and will be intimated in due course". 

4.11. The Audit paragrap3 po'nt; lsut that out of the furniture, 
valued at Rs. 80,484, whic.h had been irregularly issued as in Dec- 
ember 1971, furniture worth Rs. 50,391 had been received back by 
October 1973. Thn CommittZe were further informed by Audit in 
this connection that the Ministry had subsequently (February 1974) 
Intimated that furniture worth Rs. 30,093 issued on loan had become 
irrecoverable as the loanees had disowned the i s x e  of articles to 
them on loan. The Committee were also given lo understand that the 
Ministry had intimated (March 1974) that the hire charges due from 
private parties was Rs. 162.75 and that recoverable from the staff 
of the Military Engineer Services, Defence Department, Accounto 
Department, U.P. Police and teachers amounted to Rs. 9157.33. 

4.12. The Committee enquired whether any receipts were taken 
from the loanees and in case this was not done, how they were iden- 
tified. In a note, the Ministry replied: 

"The furniture wa; issued on loan to the individuals and re- 
ceipts were taken from them, but tx proper issue vou- 
chers duly signed by recipients were prepared. Certain 
individuals disowned receipt of furniture while some 
others are stated to have returned the same." 

4.13. The Committee were informed by the Engineer-in-Chie?, 
Military Engineer Services, during evid?nce, that as in October 1371 
out of the furniture worth Rs. 80,484 irregularly issued. furniture 
valued at Rs. 24,762.65 remained. to be re-overed. The M'ni-try of 
Defence subsequently stated that the value of furniture issued on 
ban had further come down by Rs. 135 and was Rs. 24,627.65 es 
on 21 January 1975. 



4.14. Since the Bard of Mcers ,  assembled in December 1971, 
had a%, inter aliu, held that the senior ofRcers could not also be 
absolved of responsibility for the deficiencies/irregularities, the 
Cpmmittee desired to know the basis on which the Board had come 
to Wis conclusion. In a note, the Ministry stated: 

'The Garrison ]Engineer and the Barrack Stores Officer are 
responsible for administrative lapse in not detecting ir- 
regular (loan) issue of furniture which was going on in 
their sub-division/division since 1W7. Also the deficim- 
cies of furniture which came to light at the time of hand- 
ing and taking between supervisors should have at least 
partly existed earlier. They should have tighfened secu- 
rity and other measures to prevenvarrest irregularities/ 
uilferage." 

4.15. According to the Audit paragraph, though the Court of En- 
quiry, assembled in June 1972, to investigate the circumstance; lead- 
ing to the irregularities, had submitted its proceedings in March 
1973, the Station Headquarters had raised, in June 1973, certain ob- 
servations on these proceedings and that as the Presiding Officer had 
been transferred in the meantime, a second Court of Enquiry had 
been o r d e d  in October 1973. The Committee, therefore, desired 
to know when the officer who presided over the first Court of En- 
quiry was transferred and whether any attempts were made to ob- 
tain the necessary clarifications from him before ordering a second 
Cour't of Enquiry. In a note furnished in this regard, the Ministry 
d Defence stated: 

"The presiding officer of the first Court of Inquiry was moved 
out 'along with hi3 Unit on 20-9-1973. 

No clarification was obtained from him as an additional 
Court of Inquiry was ordered to finalise the deliberations 
of the previous Court of Inquiry." 

Asked whether it was a normal practice to order a fresh enquiry 
If the presiding officer of the Board was transferred before the pro- 
! d i n g s  were finalised, the Binistry replied: 

"It has been clarified by Stat:on Hqr. Mathura that the sec- 
ond Court of Inquiry was in continuation of the fir;t 
Court of Inquiry which is not a normal practice." 

4.16. The Ministry of Defence, who were asked to indicate the 
findings and recommendations of the second Court of Enquiry or- 
dered in October 1973 and the action taken thereon, furnished a copy 



of the proceedings of' the Court of Enquiry, which is reproduced in 
Appendix I11 ahd added that the Chief Ehgineer, Central Command, 
had been instructed to initiate necessary disciplinary action against 
the individuals concerned and get the bsjes regularised. 

4.17. The Committee take a very sedous view af me lapses dis- 
closed by the Court of Inquiry in this case aver the issue and ac- 
cotmtal of furniture in Mllirtary Engineer Services division. I t  is 
distressing that large scale deficiencies in stock ef furniture 
(40,655) and irregular h u e s  of furniture, valued at Rs. 80,484, on 
kan to unauthorised persons (Defence and Civilian 'personnel as 
well as private individuals) had continued, almost unabated, aver 
a period of five years. The deficiencies and irregular issues have 
been attributed, inter alia, by the Court of Inquiry, to lack of 
proper supervision and control by the superior officers, non-func- 
tional nature of the security arrangements a t  the Furniture Y d ,  
(or amount of which a large quantity of components of items of 
furniture was misappropriated over a p e r k ?  of time), inefficiency 
and gross negligence on the part of a Supervisoq Barrack Stores, 
Grade I, entrusted with the responsibility of stomkeeping and also. 
perfunctory stock verification. 

4.18. The Cormittee have been informed that on the basis of 
tbe findings of the Coart of Inquiry and the opinions expressed by 
the General Officer Cammanding-in-Chief, Central Command, on 
the recommendations of the Court and the senior Army officers, the 
Chief Engineer, cemtral Command, was instructed to initiate neces- 
sary disciplinary action against the individuals concerned and to get 
the losses regcllaised. In view of the of the lapses, and such 
examplm of irresponsibility as the supervisor Barrack Store being 
found drunk while on duty several tbnes, the Committee wish that 
action has been decided upon and exemplary punishment meted out 
to the offic'als who have been found remiss in the discharge of their 
responsihilities. While the Committee would like to know the 
&ion taken in this regard, they, however, note that according to 
the recommendations of the General Officer Commandinq-in-Chief, 
Central Commsnd, the entire loss, on account of deficiencies and 
I r r ~ w ' a r  issu* of furniture less the amount which might he re- 
vered from the sunervi~or Rarrark Store in accordance with the 
orders of the competent disciplinary authority and the cost of such 
furniture as may be subsequently recovered from individiiah to 
whom it ha4 hert iswed on loan. is to be written off and borne by 
the Stnte. The Committee are. however. of the view that the ques- 
tion of the State bearkg any loss on this account should be examin- 



ed afresb and concerted attempts made, instead, to recover the lasr. 
e3 from the individuals found guilty of such grave dereliction of 
duty. ' d 

4.19. The Committee note that out of the furniture, valued at 
Rs. 80,484, irregularly issued on loan as in December 1971, furniture 
worth Rs. 55,856.35 had been recovered from the loanees till January 
1975 and that the concerned Garrison Engineer had been asked to 
make all-out effects to recover the remaining items of furniture. The 
Committee would like to know the progress in this regard so far. 

4.20, Though an instance of this nature has been dztected at only 
one station, it could well be that the irregularities disclosed in the 
present case are only symptomatic of the position obtaining in other 
Military Enginesr Services divisions. The Committee would, there- 
'fore, like the Ministry of Defence to carefully review the position b 
regard to the issue and accountal of furniture ' at other MES 
divisions also with a vrew to ensuring that similar instances of i.+ 
regularities and misconduct do not prevail. 



ARBORICUL?TURE AT AN AIR FORCE STATION. 

Audit Paragraph 
5.1. Sanctions were h u e d  in December 1364 (Rs. 35,300), May 

1966 (Rs. 7.669) and October 1967 (Rs. 2.03 lakhs including cost of 
maintenance of the plants for five years es3mated at Rs. 0.75 lakh) 
for planting tre?s for camuflage by arboriculture at  an Air Force 
staiion. While the sanction issued in December 1964 specified 257 
trees to be planted, other two sanctions d:d not indicate the number 
of tree; to be planted. 

5.2. In August 1967 the Military Engineer Services reported corn 
pletion of planting of the 257 trees sanctioned in Dezember 1964 to 
the Air Force authoritios. N*D such report was submitted for trees 
planbd under sanctions issued in May 1366 and October 1967. A& 
cording to the report submitted by the Assistant Garrison Engineer 
in charge of arboriculture at  that Air Force station to the Garrison 
Engineer in March 1970, altogether 51,657 trees had been planted 
by May 1969 a t  a cost of Rs. 1.31 lakhs. 

5.3. The Station Commander, Air Force statim, on his own i d  
tiative, ordered in March 1970 the assembly of a Court of Engu'ry, 
in order to check and ascertain the casulties of the trees planted 
under the arboriculture scheme. The Court could not, however, 
complete its proceedings as the staff of the Garrison Engineer declin- 
ed to give their statements $1 the President of the Court of Enquiry. 
A Board of officers was, therefore, constituted in February 1971. As 
per the findings of this Board, only 9,000 plants existed in February 
1370. On the basis of the findings of Ihe Board, a Court of Enquiry 
was assembled in November 1971 to enquire into the hish casualty of 
the trees planted. According to the finding; of this Court (Septem- 
ber 1972), 48,557 out of 51,657 trees planted were not alive as per de- 
tails below: 

Samtion issued in Plmted Nottaken Lost due Ex'stkg 
I oot to fire 



5.4. The Court found that paucity of water supply, conditions of 
eoil and dry climate were mponsible for a large number of trees 
(18,345 in all) not taking root and withering away. About 30,212 trees 
stated b3 have been lost due to b e ,  the Court mentioned that this fact 
could not be conclusively establi3hed. According to the Court of En- 
quiry while the Garrison Engineer asserted that destruction of trees 
was due to fire, the Station Administrative Oficer of the Air Force 
disputed this statement. The Court of Enquiry could not apportion 
blame b~ any partjcular person as witnesse; who had relevant inform- 
ation were not available at the time of investigation (1972). 

5.5. The Station Commander, Air Force station, pointed out to the 
Air Command in September 1972 that the Court of Enquiry had con- 
fined its findings to the mortality rate and stressed that the fact whe- 
ther such a large number of plants had actually been planted needed 
Lnvesljgation by an independent agency like the Special Police Es- 
tablishment in view of the fact that the scope of departmental enquiry 
would be limited to evidence on record only. The Air Officer Com- 
manding-in-Chief of the Air Command recommended to the Air Head- 
quarters (December 1972) that these remarks of the Station Com- 
mander might be considered. No further investigation was, how- 
ever, conducted as the Ergineer-in-Chief was of the opinion that such 
hvestigation by Special Police Establishment would not serve any 
purpose. 

5.6. Further pbnktion of trees was not done in that station. The 
Ministry stated (February 1974) that it was decided not to go ahead 
with the replantation Bill such time as arrangements for entrusting 
the arboriculture work to the forest department were finalised. 
[Paragraph 18 of the Report of the Comptroller & Auditor General of 

India for the year 1972-73, Union Government (Defence Services)] 

5.7. According to the Audit paragraph, while the sanction issu- 
ed in December 1964 had specified that 257 trees were to be plant- 
ed, the subsequent sanctions issued in May 1966 and October 1967 
did not indicate the number of trees to be planted. The paragraph 
further points out that the completion report in regard to the plant- 
ing of the 257 trees had been sent by the Military Engineer Ser- 
vices to the Air Force authorities in August 1967 and that no such 
reports had, however, been submitted in respect of the trees plant- 
ed under the sanctions issued in May 1966 and 0rtob.r 1967. The 
Committee learnt from Au8t  in this connectim that the Ministry 
of Defence had intimated (February 1974) as follows: 

"Under the first sanction, the work was completed in July 
1966 and completion report was conveyed in Augast 1967. 



The completion report in respect of the work carried out 
under the other two sanctions was not conveyed. How- 
ever, a total number of 51,657 trees were planted at a 
cost of Rs. 1.31 lakhs." 

5.8. The Committee enquired into the reasons for (i) not speci- 
fying the number of trees lo be planted under the ssnctions issued 
in 1966 and 1967, (ii) the delay of more than a year in submitting 
the completion report relating to the 1964 sanction and (iii) for the 
non-submission of completion reports in respect of the works ex- 
ecuted under the 1966 and 1967 sanctions. The Defence Secretary 
replied in evidence: 

"The first sanction was a comprehensive one in which the 
number of trees were mentioned and information on each 
plant like diggng up the pits, it; raising and protection 
was given. In the second one, the number of trees was 
not mentioned and it was dealing with a small part of 
the project, but in that report the area was mentioned. 
Thc third one was the big project and in the report the 
area was mentioned, number of trees was mentioned but 
in this third report complete information was not given. 
On the composite sanction, every item is mentioned and 
as soon as the work was completed, the completion re- 
port was furnished. A part of the bigger project had to 
wait till the coinpletion of the other part of the work be. 
fore the con~pletion report could come. In t,he t h ~ r d  san- 
ction there is also a provision for annual maintenance 
after the actual plantation and according to  their under- 
standing and according to the practice thev were waiting 
for the period to expire beforv submitting a completion 
report. That is hnw this ha: occurcd." 

In a note furnished in this regard, the Ministry of Defence 
Stated:  - 

"The sanction issued in Map 1966 was for the purpose of con- 
struction of blast pens in the area of 86.17 acres. Arbo- 
riculture formed a part of this sanction for camouflaging 
these pens. This sanction did not specify the number of 
trees to be planted but dipulated that the arboriculture 
was to cover the complete blast pen area measuring 86.17 
acres. In  the sanction issued in Ockber 1967 the area to 



be brought under plantation for camouflage purposes 
was 1200 acre?. The number of trees to be planted in 
both cases was worked out by the Engineers. 

The work sanctioned in December 1964 was completed in 
July 1966. The cause of delay in the rendition of the 
comp!etion report is being aszertained. 

C*~mp!etion reports, Part 'A' in respect of sanctions issued in 
May 1956 and October 1367 have since bem initiated 
The work sanctioned in May 1966 wai completed on 30. 
3-1974. The work sanctioned in October 1967 was com- 
pleted on 30-9-1973." 

5.3. With reference to the observations of th-. Court of Enquiry, 
assembled in November 1971 to e3qu're into the high casualty of 
the trees, that 48,557 out of 51,657 tree; reporkd to have been plant- 
ed were not alive and that paucity of water supply, conditions of 
roil and dry climate were re:ponsib!e for a hsrge number of trezs 
(18,345) not raking root and withering away, the Committee learnt 
from Audit that the Mini5try of Defence had clarified the position, 
in February 1974, a; under: 

"The Court of Enquiry has o2ined that the r e a m x  for heavy 
mortality of plants are as follows:- 

(a) Lack of terhnical expertise; 

(b) Impervious soil; 
(c) Inadequate waiering faci!ities; and 

(d) Inadvertent outbreak of fires. 

I t  may bz mentioned here t'nat. in pursuance to the first two 
sanctions it was undertaken to plant 257 and 8900 trees, 
out of which 27 and 938 plants respectively did not take 
root. This casualty rate is quite reasonable. After the 
issue of the third sanction, a board of officers was con- 
vened immediately on 23rd October 1967 for ascertaining 
the adequacy of water supply before commencing actual 
plantation. The Board found that no additional water 
supply would be needed for the arboriculture since the 
existing tube-wells and permanent water scheme would 
cak r  for the entire water requirement. The actual plan- 
tation of the tree5 under the third sanction was carried 
during March 1968 to November 1968. The Divisional 



Forest Oil[im, Jhagram, later opined that if the trees are 
planted just at the onset of monsoon natural water re- 
ceived by the plants during monsoon period will be sum- 
cient for them to grow throughout their life without any 
need of watering. Therefore, out of the reasons for non- 
survival of the trees as given above, it can be concluded 
from the position explained that the mortality of the 
plants has been mainly due to dry climate, soil conditions 
and lack of expertise and not as much due to shortage of 
water". 

5.10. In view of the fact that only 3,100 trees were stated to be 
surviving out of 51,657 trees reported t.3 have been plantzd, the 
Committee desired to know how the high mortality rate could be 
explained. The Defenc? Secretary stated in evidence: 

"There are many traged'es in this case. I have hardly any 
justification to offer for the figures given here. But let 
me explain the circumstances. I have studied this matter 
rather deeply. The figures give a very very poor 
picture. Firstly, the area is a very difficult area. If you 
see the map, you will find that in that area th2re is scar- 
city of water and soil conditions are als:, p.>or. There was 
a prov'sion in the project also for a tubewell for provid- 
ing additional water supply for nourishing these plant:. 

Secondly, the soil condition was rather poor. The M.E S. 
were given these tasks and they were asked to do it in 
quicker time. They were tried but th3y were not experts 
in this field. The work should be given to the competent 
and expert persons. We have learnt from this that this 
kind of work should be given to the ex per:^. Anyway in 
thi; case, this was one of the initial difficulties. N ~ w ,  on 
accoun; of the difficulties of wafer and on account of the 
difficulties of the soil condition, the germination unfor- 
tunately has been poor. On :hat, subsequently, we have 
taken the expert advice as to what in their judgment 
should have been thn rate of germination and mwe or 
less the soil conditions were very unfavourable. The 
natural death of the plant was high and that can be ex- 
pected in a situation like that. A large numbx  of casual- 
ties is due to fire". 

5.11. Since paucity of water supply, soil condition: and dry clI- 
mate were stated to be responsible for a large number of trees not 



taking mot, the Coinmittee desired to know why pangements  were 
not made for planting the trees after taking into account climate 
and soil conditions. In a note furnished in this regard, the Mini- 
s t ry  of Defence stated: 

"Planting of trees is a technique in itself which varies from 
region to region, from place to place depending upon 
technical conditions, geological formation of the area and 
pest infestation. Such works can best be executed by 
persons who possess the requisite expertise. MES did not 
have necessary expertise at the time the trees were plan:- 
ed. However, the local District Forest Officer was con- 
sulted at the time of issue of sanction in Octobcr 1967 who 
was of the opinion that if the trees were planted just at 
the onset of the monsoon, natural water received by the 
plants during the monsoon period would be sufficient for 
them to grow throughout their life without any need of 
watering. The work was executed during the period 
March 1968 to  November 1968". 

Asked, in this connection, whether the trees had been planted be- 
fore or after the monsoon. the Defence Secretan replied in 
evidence: 

"The trees have heen planted from tlme to tmle. My own 
conclusion is that some of them were planted even be- 
fore the monsoon. Ssme of them h a w  been planted 
after the monsoon." 

In reply to another question whether there was any suggestion that 
the trees should be planted before the movsoon, the witness stated: 

"That is a natural suggestion that should come from every- 
b ~ d y  that plantation should be done after monsoon." 

Xskcd whether any periodical reports had been received in this re- 
gard. the witness replied: 

"Record is not available here. It may be there at  the local 
station. We have tried to get hold of them. There are 
volumes and volumes of records for so many years. I 
have tried to go through all the material. What I have 

* been able to get is the periodical progress reports in 
which mention is made about the number of casualties 
and the number of new plantations." 



T h e  Committee desired to know whether the area in which the  
arboriculture operations were to be carried out was really barren. 
'The Defence Secretary stated: 

"Barren from the point of view of trees. The point is that 
barrenness on account of lack of trees is accepted but 
barrenness is not because of grass tows which grow in 
those areas.'' 

5.12. 30,312 trees p;~anted under the scheme were reported to 
,have k e n  destroyed by fire. The Audit paragraph points out that 
the Court of Enquiry (Nwember 1971) had, however, mentioned 
that this fact could not be cor~clusively established. The Committee 
were informed by Audit in this connection that according to the 
information given to them, in December 1973, by Air Headquarters, 
no records of completion of jobs, and handing and taking over of 
the trees were maintained. The Committee further learnt that in 
reply to Audit queries on the subject, the Ministry of Defence had 
clarified, in December 1973, that the following information was not 
readily available: 

"(i) Job No. CAC/14/64/651EWP No record of completion 
and taking over of this job, and no record of destruction 
of trees and saplings by fire a t .  . . .Wing, A.F. 

(ii) Job No. KKD466-67-G.E. vide his letter No. 2211'9203. 
2 dated 19-4-1967 informed destruction of 8250 plants by 
fire and no: taking resots . . .Wing A.F. did not accept 
G.E's contention vide  their letter No. 5W11474t64iPl 
dated 26-6-1968. 

A court of enquiry ordered on 13 May 1968 found that there 
was no incident of itre on the dates as informed by the  
G.E. There is no trace of further communication from 
G.E. on this aspect. 

(iii) Job No. CAC/5/67-68- There is record of completion of 
work gnd handing 'taking over with MES. A court of 
enquiry held on 4th March 1970 to inve~tigate into the 
loss of a big number of trees due to outbreak of fire and 
trees not taking roots could not proceed due +3 lack of 
MES witnesses. After subsequent reminders i t  was re- 
ported by G.E. that the matter has been reported to C. 
W.E. (Commander Works Engineer). After this there is 
nothing in record." . . 

1847 L.S.-7. 



5.13. Since there appeared to be considerabbe difference of opi-- 
nion between the Air Force authorities and the Military Eslgineer 
Services on the question of destruction of trees by outbreaks of 
fire, the Committee enquired into the correct factual position in 
this regard. Clarifying position, the Defence Secretary stated 
in evidence: 

"Here I would like to explain to the Committee very speci- 
fically what I ,have to state. There has been a little 
amount of difference of opinion between the MES autho- 
rities and the Fire Station Commandant. There was 
no immediate information available as to how many fires 
took place. I had to wade through volumes of document 
and what I have tried to conclude is that there were 
two kinds of fires. One kind is sponteneous fires. When 
there is heat, when there is dry grass available, the fire 
is caused and when these fires are significant the fire sta- 
tion people invariably come out to quench the fire and 
that is registered in the Fire Station. The second kind 
of fire is caused by the Defence people themselves. Some- 
times to make visibility greater and to order to clear cer- 
tain grounds, deliberate fires are also organised by t h e  
Fire Station and for these fires they do not require any 
quenching operation and they are not registered in the 
Fire Station. So, a large number of casualties is the re- 
sult of both kinds of fires. Actually, in the deliberate 
fires which are not registered, there should have been n o  
casualties. But accidentally some casualties do take 
place. This is not an explanation that I am offering. 
That is the kind of knowledge that I have got after wad- 
ing through the papers. But we have wasted some money 
on this." 

5.14. In view of the fact that the area. in which the  Air Form 
Station was located was stated to be barren of trees. (which by rub- 
bing against each other could, perhaps, have caused fires), and the 
rainfall in the region was also poor, the Committee desired to know 
how the fires could be justified and observed that it was extremely 
difficult to accept that such a large number of trees could have been 
destroyed by fire. The Defence Secretary replied: 

"All these trees were burnt; that is not correct. They had 
been destroyed in a number of years. I think the largest 

I 
i 

number I could take as a casualty in a single case was 



5,000 trees, but  they were also in different areas in  the  
same composite air-field." 

He added: 

"Some of these documents which were not traceable have 
been traceable there. There is an enquiry report dated 
May 1966. I will send you a copy of this. It is mentioned 
here 'that this destruction of trees hy fire was inspected 
and they had certified that there was a destruction of trees 
by fire. But i t  might not be ascertained as to when this 
fire occurred. There was no record'. Secondly, I tried to 
f h d  out why there was no record. I came to know that 
these firebrigade people came and extinguished the fire 
and the records are there. So, this subsequent report on 
31st March 1968, when fire took place was made." 

Elaborating further on the subject, the witness s'ated: 

"As I said, since the time I sent you my replies, I waded 
through many more papers. I discovered many papers 
which were reported untraceable earlier. If a probe is 
made, we will be able to discover some more papers, 
which might throw more light on this." 

5.15. The Committee desired to know whether any responsibility 
was fixed for the non-maintenance of records. In a note, the Ministry 
stated: 

"Completion of the planting of the 257 trees sanctioned in 
December 1964 was reported bv the MES to the Air Force 
in Augst 1967. The project sanctioned in May 1966 was 
completed in March 1974. The project sanctioned in Octo- 
ber 1967 was completed on 30th September 1973. The com- 
pletion reports in respect of both these sanctions have been 
initiated." 

5.16. According to the Audit paragraph, the Station Commander of 
tHe Air Force Station had pointed out to the Air Command, in Sep- 
tember 1972, that the Court of Enquiry assembled in November 1971 
had confined its findings only to the mortality rate and had stressed 
that the fact whether such a large number of plants had actually 
been planted needed investigation by an independent agency like 
the Special Police Establishment, in view of the fact that the scope 
of the departmental enquiry would be limi,ted to evidence on record 
only. Though this view had also been endorsed by the Air m c e r  



Commanding-in-Chief of the Air Command, no further investiga- 
tion was, however, conducted as the Engineer-in-Chief was of the 
opinion that such an investigation would not serve any ourpose. 
Explaining, at the Committee's instance, the reasons for not pursu- 
ing this suggestion of the Air Force authorities, the Defence Secretary 
stated during evidence: 

"The date of the report of the Court of Enquiry held in Nov- 
ember 1971 was 25th September 1972. This is the date of 
the report. Then, the Station Commander made a sugges- 
tion about the case being referred to the SPE. On 9 t h  
September 1972, a suggestion came from the then AM'-in- 
C. He suppofied this request and this is dated 5th Decem- 
ber 1972. Then, the Engineer-in-Chief thought that after 
the Court of Enquiry, responsibility for any fraud or any 
serious neglect does not arise, and that therefore, any 
SPE enquiry will not serve any useful purpose. That was 
his opinion. In  spite of $that opinion, the Ministry them- 
selves referred the matter to the CBI in April 1974 and 
tried to take them on in regard to this matter and then 
they reported to us that firstly, their hands were full and 
there were lo,ts of matter with them and secondly, because 
of the distance of time, it would not be possible to get any 
evidence, and therefore, they regretted their inability." 

The Engineer-in-Chief, Military Engineer Services, added in this 
context : 

"I did not oppose it. I t  was only a matter of opinion. I t  was 
referred to me by Air Headquarters to give my opinion on 
this particular matter. That was in April 1973. Then, the 
Ministry wrote to me in March 1974 &nd asked me 'Could 
this be referred to CBI for an independent enquiry?' and 
I said that I did not have any objection to refer it to CBI." 

5.17. At the Committee's instance, the Ministry of Defence furni- 
shed copies of the correspondence exchanged between the Ministry 
and the Central Bureau of Investigation, which are reproduced in 
Appendix IV. 

5.18. The Committee desired to know whether there were records 
relating to the purchases of seeds and plan'ts and from whom these 



supplies had been obtained. The Engineer-in-Chief stated in evidence: 

"Seeds were purchased from the Forest Department and the 
seedlings were produced by the MES on their own affore- 
&tion. Then, they were transplanted." 

5.19. The Committee called for complete details of the purchases 
of seeds, saplings, etc. from different sourcps, the expenditure incur- 
red thereon and on the purchase of ather stores for the execution of 
the works against the three sanctions. The Ministry of Defence 
furnished, znter a h .  the fo!lowing information in this regard, col- 
lected from the Controller General of Defence Accounts: 

" (a) Purchase of seeds !saplings: 

(i) There are only two vouchers showil:g purchaze of sapl- 
ings'seeds costing Rs. 702.17 against sanction No. CACiS. 
936215/W dated 7-10-1967 as amended. No p~rchases  on 
this account have been made against the other two sanc- 
tions. Voucher for Rs. 634.19 of 1968 representing the 
cost of purchase of 200 Nos. each of Mango and Amrut 
grafts is stated to be destroyed. This aspect is under 
further exam'ination in consultation with the CDA, Patna. 

(ii) The details cf supplv order Nos. end cash book item 
Nos. furnished by E-in-C's Branch vide their note dated 
22-1-1975. Copy received with the E4inistry's note dated 
28'29-1-1975 do not contain the details of various stores 
purchased. With reference to the details now made 
available by the Engineers. the CDA, P a t w  is being ask- 
ed to verify and intimate whether any further expendi- 
ture for the purchase of seeds plant other than tnat in- 
dicated in sub-para (i) above has been incurred. On re- 
ceipt of a reply, a further communication in this regard 
will be made. 

(b) Expenditure on other Stores. 

A sum of Rs. 10,608.40 was spent on other stores against 
sanction No. CAS?%3062/1/W dated 24-12-1964 simi- 
larly, an expenditure of Rs. 1909.47 was incurred for 
pu~chase  of other stores i n  respect of sanction dated 
7-1-1967. No expenditure was incurred on other stores 
in respect of sanction dated 25-5-1966. 



(c) Expenditure on departmental labour, casual labour, etc. 

S1. Date of sancrion 
No. 

Expenditure on depart- 
mentally employed 

labour 

(ii) 25-5-1966 . . . . . .  . . . 9,501'70 

(d) Other items of expenditure. 

No expenditure is stated to have been incurred on the pur- 
chase of tools and plants, vehicles etc., in respect of any 
of the three sanctions. A sum of Rs. 54.584.05 has been 
spent in respect of sanction dated 7-10-1967 under the 
head 'payment to contractors'." 

5.20. The Ministry of Defence also informed the Committee that 
the Deputy Secretary (Vigilance) of the Ministry had been appoint- 
ed as an Inquiry Officer in this case and requested to enquire into 
the following aspects: 

"(i) Whether 51,657 trees were actua,lly planted against the 
three sanctions and the expenditure was incurred in full; 

u 

(ii) Whether prop= maintenance of the trees was carried out; 

(iii) Whether proper records of all fires occurring in the airbase 
were maintained and, in particular, whether there were 
any records of the trees replaced by the Garrison Engineer: 

(iv) Whether 30,212 trees were actually destroyed due to the 
fires; the dates on which the fires actually occurred and 
the numb'er of trees destroyed by fire on each date; 

(v) Whether any remedial measures had been taken for pre- 
vention of fires; 

(vi) To apportion blame and pinpoint responsibility; and 
(vii) To make recommendations." 

5.21. The Audit paragraph also points out that though the S'tation 
Commander of the Air Force Station had ordered, on his own initia- 
tive, in March 197Q, the assembly o,f a Court of Inquiry in order to 
check and ascertain the casualties of the trees planted under the 



arboriculture scheme, the Court could not complete its proceedings 
as the staff of the Garrison Engineer declined to give their state- 
ments to the President of the Court of Inquiry. Asked why the MES 
perswnel had refused to tender evidence before the Court, the De- 
2ence Secretary replied in evidence: 

"Well, Sir, I looked into that. I know that there is that alle- 
gation in one of the papers. I have seen it myself. I 
enquired about it. I t  was due to non-availability of those 
officers a t  that time. They were out on their work in some 
other area. I t  was not unwillingness, but their non-avai- 
lability. I saw that paper myself. I had the same feeling 
as to why they refused to appear." 

5.22. The Committee, however, learnt from Audit that according 
'to the records scrutinised by them, the position that emerged was 
tha t  the proceedings of the Court could not be completed as the staff 
of the Garrison Engineer were not willing to give their statements 
t o  the President of the Court in the absence of suitable orders from 
engineering channels. When the attention of the witness was drawn 
to this statement, the Engineer-in-Chief replied: 

"This related to one individual who was a member of the 
Court of Enquiry." 

The Defence Secretary added: 

"The question was whether a person who was a member of a 
Court of Enquiry could appear as a witness before the same 
Court of Enquiry." 

On the Committee pointing out, in this contest, that this aspect 
ought to have been borne 'In mind when the Court of Inquiry was 
appointed, the Engineer-in-Chief stated: 

"This was a mistake. Witnesses should never be appointed 
as miembers of Court of gnquiry." 

In  a note furnished subsequently in this regard, the Ministry of 
Defence informed the Committee as fcllows: 

"The Air Force Station.. . .had informed the GE. . . .with a 
copy to the CWE. . . . that the MES personnel had declin- 
ed to render their evidence in the Court of Inquiry order- 
ed in March 1970, under GE's verbal instructions to them. 
A reminder was sent to GE on 24th June 1970 whereupon 
the GE replied that  the matter had been referred to CWE. 



The E-in-C's Branch has intimated that the necessary 
permission was accorded by CWE. . . . . .on 3rd July 1970. 
Meanwhile, the inquiry was left incomplete and was not 
progressed further." 

5.23. The Committee desired to know why it had taken 11 months 
(from March 1970) to constitute a new Board of Officers in Feb- 
ruary 19'71 and the reasons for the further delay of about 8 months 
(from February, 1971) in assembling a Corn-t of Inquiry in Novem- 
ber 1971, on the basis of the findings of the Board of Officers. In a 
note, the Ministry of Defence stated: 

"The Court of Inquiry ordered in March 1970 was not pro- 
gressed after June 19170. The Board of Officers ordered in 
February 1971 was not connected with the Court of In- 
quiry ordered in March 1970. Tt was ordered as a result 
of observations made by the Test Auditors on the high 
mortality rate of trees a t  AF Station. . . . . "  

The Board of Officers held in February 1971 was finally 
concurred in by Command Headquarters in ,June 1971. 
The Station Commander while concc:~ing with Che Bonrd 
held in February 19!71 had recommended that a Court of 
Inquiry with representatives of CE, Bengal Zone, may be 
ordered by Command Headquarters to investigate the rea- 
sons for heavy mortality of trees. ThLlis recommendation 
of the Station Commander was concurred in by the Com- 
mand Headquarters in June 1971. Rest of the time was 
consumed in procedural action as it involved correspon- 
dence between the Station, Command and the Chief Engi- 
neer's Office." 

5.24. The Committee learnt from Audit'that the Court of Inquiry 
assembled in November 1971 had o,bserved, h t e r  din, that "the pro- 
jects being old, all persons concerned and the relevant information 
are not available." Asked why the offcers concerned could not be 
summoned from other stations for giving evidence before the Court, 
the Ministry, in a note replied: 

"The E-in-C's Branch have stated that :he matter regardins 
non-production of witnesses documents hefore the Court 
of Inquiry held in November 1971 was not broucht to +he 
notice of the Engineers. Further inquiries in the matter 
from-Air Head-quarters are being made. The Inquiry 
Officer appointed to go into the matter will alsc go into 
the question." 



5.25. The Committee enquired into the action taken in pursuance 
of the findings of the Courts of Inquiry assembled in May 1968 and 
November 1971. In  a note, the Ministry of Defence replied: 

"The Court of Inquiry held in May 1968 had merely recom- 
mended that the cost of trees lost due to fire andlor where 
saplings did nat survive may be written off and that GE 
Staff should immediately report any fire or damage by 
fire to the Station Fire Section. No particular action a p  
pears to have been taken on this Inquiry Report. 

As regards the report of the Court of Inquiry held in Novem- 
ber 1971, the Court had recommended that approval may 
be given-to replant the trees within the sanctioned amount 
and the work may he entrusted to the Forest Department. 
Lt has since been decided that arbo;iculture work will be 
entrusted to the Forest Departments of the State Govern- 
ments. ?"he Punjab and Haryana Governments were 
accordingly addressed in the matter and they have agreed 
to our pro,posal to take over this work. As regards an 
independent inquiry by the S?4E, eeorts were made but 
i t  was not found feasible by the CBI to undertake the 
inquiry after such a distant time because of the non-avai- 
lability of witnesses etc." 

5.26. At the Committee's instance, the Ministry also furnished 
copies of the reports of the Court of Inquiry held on 13 May 1968, of 
the Board of Officers convened in February 1971 and of the Court 
of Inquiry ordered in November 1971. 

5.27. With reference to the observations in the Audit paragraph 
that further plantsticn of trees was not done a t  the Air Force Sta- 
tion, the Committee desired to know how the need for camouflaging 
was being served at the station and whether the arboriculture work 
had since then been entrusted to the Forest Department. In a note, 
the Ministry stated: 

IThe left-over plantation along with clther camouflage mea- 
sures like camoufage painting etc. provide necessary camo- 
uflage to the Station. However, in view of the financial 
stringency, the stations in the . . . . . . .Sector have been 
accorded low priority in respect of camouflage measures. 
As already stated, arboriculture work will be entrusted 
to the Forest Departments of the State Governments. The 
Punjab and Haryana Governments have agreed to take 



over this work. The reply from West Bengal Government 
is awaited.." 

5.28.   he facts brought out in the preceding paragraphs in re- 
gard to the execution, for camouflage purpose, of an arboriculture 
scheme at an Air Force Station give rise to serious misgivings in 
the mind of the Committee. Judging from the findings of the 
different Courts of Inquiry and the conflicting views expressed on 
this case by the Military Engineer Services and the Air Force 
authorities, and in the absence of adequate recorded evidence for 
the purchase of seeds and saplings, completion of various jobs, 
handing and taking over of the trees claimed to have been plant- 
ed as well as for the alleged destruction of a large number of 
trees by accidental outbreaks of fire, the Committee cannot accept 
the plea that out of the total number of 51.657 trees claimed to 
have been pIanted, at m o s t  of Rs. 1.31 lakhs, as many as 30,212 
trees (58 per cent) had been destroyed by fire and another 18,315 
trees (35 per cent) had failed to take root. On the basis of the 
evidence made available to them, the Committee are inclined to 
agree with the Commander of the Air Force Station who felt 
that the fact whether such a large number of trees had actually 
been planted needed investigation by an independent agency. 

5.29. Though the Defence Secretary also conceded during evi- 
dence that 'there are many tragedies in this case' and that he hard- 
ly had any justification to offer for the figure? indicated in the 
Audit paragraph, he informed the Committee that some of the docu- 
ments which were reported to be untraceable earlier had been trac- 
ed subsequently and records had also been found to exist in respect 
of some of the fires. After the Committee had taken up examina- 
tion of this case, the Deputy Secretary (Vigilance) in the Defence 
Ministry had also been appointed as an Inquiry Officer to investi- 
gate various aspects of the case. Much time has elapsed since then, 
and the Committee expect that these enquiries have been completed 
The findings of the Inquiry Officer and the subsequent action, if any, 
taken in this regard should in some detail, be intimated to the Com- 
mittee. 

5.30. Perhaps the picture would have been different if this work 
had been initially entrusted not to the Military Engineer Services, 
.but to the Forest Department which has the requisite competence 
and expertise. Apart from the expenditure incurred on the arbori- 
d t u r e  scheme proving to be infdctuous, the camouflage need; cf 
the Air Force Station have also not beem adequately met. This Min- 



istry, wiser after the event, have now decided to entrust the arbori- 
culture work to the State Forest Departments. The Committee 
trust that the results will perhaps be happier. 

? 

5.31. Incidentally, the Court of Inquiry assembled in November 
1971 is found to have observed, inter alia, that the projects being( 
old, all persons concerned and the relevant information were not 
available. Apparently, there were a number of missing links which 
had not been satisfactorily explained. The Committee fail to un- 
derstand why the officers concerned had not been summonted from 
other stations and the position clarified before the Court. The En- 
gineering authoritits, however, contended that the non-production 
of the relevant witnesses and documents before the Court of Inquiry 
had not been brought to their notice earlier. The Committee take a 
serious view of this lapse and would like to be informed of the cor- 
rect factual position in this regard which was also to be gone into 
by the Inquiry Officer. 

5.32. The Committee consider it strange that while ordering, 
earlier, in March 1970, and on his own initiative, the assembly of a 
Court of Inquiry to check and ascertain the tree plantation casual- 
ties under the arboriculture scheme, the Commander of the Air 
Force Station had appointed one of the witnesses as a Member of 
the Court. It also appears that some of the MES personnel con- 
cerned had declined to tender evidence before the Court in the ab- 
sence of suitable orders from the engineer channels. Thus, t b  
Court could not complete its proceedings and by the time the n m e 5  
sary permissiou was accorded, in July 1970. by the Commander 
Works Engineer, the inquiry itself had been abandoned. The Cam- 
mittee are dissatisfied with the manner in which this issue has been 
handled. As pointed out dsewhere in this .Report, Government 
must ensure that necessary inquiries, whenever considered appro- 
priate, are held soon after the event so that prompt remedial mea- 
sures can be taken. I t  should also be ensured that such inquiries 
are conducted, as far  as possible, with the utmost objectivity and by 
persons who are entirely unbiased and unconnected with the cases 
under scrutiny. 



LOSS OF STORES 
Audit paragraph 

6.1. An imported consignment of 56 drums of an important and 
costly raw material required for production of special type of 
strengthened steel was unloaded at port in good condition on 27th 
September 1970. Necessary forwarding note for despatch of the 
consignment by rail to a factory (located at a distance of forty kilo- 
meters approximately from the port) was submitted by the Embar- 
kation Headquarters the following day and accepted by the Port 
Trust. Three wagons were placed on 29th September 1970 for load- 
ing these drums. Nineteen drums were loaded in one wagon the next 
day. Two, of the wagons were considered unfit by the Port Trust and 
the drums were not loaded in those wagons. The balance thirty 
seven drums remained in the shed of the Port Trust. Although the 
Port Trust was responsible for security of the consignments in the 
shed, it had no objection if a consignee also made arrangements for 
keeping watch over the consignments in the shed as a measure of 
additional precaution. Embarka,tion Headquarters posted three 
chowkidars at the jetty on shift duty for keeping watch over the 
drums. 

6.2. On 3rd October 1970 some of the drums lying in the shed 
were found to have been tampered with. A survey conducted by 
the Port Trust on 16th October 1970 disclosed that t h e e  drums 
were empty and seven others were broken or punctured from which 
3,358 kilograms of the raw material worth Rs. 1.15,079 (including 
freight, customs duty and landing charges) had been stolen. Tbe 
Embarkation Headquarters had not informed the Port Trust that 
the drums contained raw material required for making special type 
of strengthened steel. While sending the survey report to the Em- 
barkation Headquarters, the Port Trust stated that had the fact that 
the drums contained impo~tant raw material been known to it, 
strong precautinary measures could have been arranged. It further 
stated that the pilferage could have been avoided had direct delivery 
of the drums been arranged by the Embarkation Headquarters- 

6.3. The Director General, Ordnance Factories, reported in Sep- 
tember 1971 to Army Headquarters that pilferage of such a large 
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quantity Of raw material had caused grave concern and suspicion 
and suggested that the loss of Such an important and raw 

essential for defence production should be thoroughly in- 
vestigated by a Court of Enquiry, and remedial measures taken. 
'The Embarkation Headquarters, however, then felt that no useful 
purpose would be served by instituting a Court of Enquiry and the 

was not likely to bring out any tangible evidence. 

6 s 4 .  Ultimately a Court of Enquiry was held in April 1973 more 
than two Years aftff the event. The Court concluded that the mat+ 
rial was stolen by some unidentified expert professional thieves. It 
did not suspect any collusion of the chowkidar with the culprits but 
felt that he was either away from the place of duty or was soundly 
asleep in a secluded corner when the theft took place. The General 
Officer Commanding-in-Chief of the Command was of the opinion 
that, while the physical loss amounted to Rs. 1,15,079 only, the invi- 
sible loss was "many times more in terms of time, effort and fmeign 
exchange besides profit made by unscrupulous customers buying 
such material from the thieves." 

6.5. The Ministry stated (December 1973) ds under: 

(a) Direct delivery is a process which is solely in the interest 
of the Port T ~ u s t  as thereby it can avoid the responsibi- 
lity for security of stores. As such, initiative for direct 
delivery normally comes from the Port Trust. In the pre- 
sent case suggestion was made by the Port Trust for tak- 
ing direct delivery. 

(b) The Port Trust has agreed to make an ex-gratin payment 
of Rs. 50,000 to compensate the loss. 

{c) Better securitv arrangements have now been made in the 
dock and jetty areas of the Port. 

[Paragraph 21 of the Report of the Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India for the year 1972-73 Ullion Government 
Defence Services.) 1 

6.6. The Audit paragraph points out that the imported consign- 
ment of 56 drums of an important and costly raw material was in- 
tended for despatch to a factory located at a distance about 40 
kilometres from the port and that after loading 19 drums jn a wagon 
cn 30 September 1970, the remaining 37 drums had been kept in the 

of the port Trust as two of the wagons were considered unfit 
by the port Trust. The Committee desired to know the for 

despatching these d r m s  by departmental trucks to the factory' 
which was only 40 kilometres away, when it was known that two 



of the wagons were unfit for loading. In a note, the Ministry of 
Defence stated: 

"The Emlbarkaltion Headquarters, Calcutta, is not authorisea 
transport for this purpose. I t  is a very small unit and 
their main role is that of clearing agents at  the port of 
Calcutta. As per rules, stores for units and establish- 
ments connected by rail are required to be booked by rail 
'as it is the most economical mode of transportation." 

Asked why trucks had not been requisitioned from the factory for 
the purpose, the Quarter Master General replied in  evidence: 

"This was not the first consignment. Although the . .  . .factory 
may have some trucks, it is done on their initiative, if a 
particular consignment has to be specially treated, i .e. ,  if 
it has to be taken by road transport instead of the normal 
method or means which is rail transport. But if I may 
point out here, from the point of view of cost of transpor- 
tation, i t  is many times more expensive to the State t~ 
transport it by road transport. 

Another aspect is that when the stores arp transported by rail, 
the wagons are loaded in the port commissioners' area 
where the goods have been brought from the ships. They 
are sealed and sent directly to the siding inside the. . . . 
factory and, therefore, they are safe from the transit point 
of view and there is no double-handling. Wherea;, i f  the 
item is to be loaded in trucks, a number of trucks would 
have to go. Since the trucks cannot be sealed, some man- 
power would have to be made available in each vehicle 
to provide the necessary security." 

The Defence Secretary added: 

"For these practical reasons, they considered it desirable to  
utilise the mode of railway transportation rather than 
road transportation." 

On the Committee pointing out in this connection that since the con- 
signment was a valuable one likely to be pilfered or misutilised, 
adequate steps should have been taken to arrange for transporta- 
tion by road, notwithstanding the normal procedure in this regard, 
the Defence Secretary replied: 

"It is a rare commodity, but even this was coming in a reg+ 
lar way. The rail transportation system had been in 



vogue for a long time and this was considered to be safer 
and more pra~tica~l than road transportation. So, they 
continued to use the same procedure." 

6.7. According to the Audit paragraph, the Embarkation Head- 
quarters had not informed the Port Trust that the drums contained 
important raw material and that after the theft of the material 
valued at Rs. 1,15,079 had occurred, the Port Trust, while sending 
the survey report to the Embarkation Headqua~ters, had stated that 
had this fact been known to it, "strong precnutiona,ry measures 
could have been arranged". Asked why the Port Trust authorities 
had not been informed of the valuable nature of the consignment, 
the Defence Secretary replied: 

"This was not necessary because all the documents were in 
possession of the port authorities. They knew what com- 
modity was coming and they knew the value thereof and 
they would come in the picture as to how they should 
safeguard it. They did take special precautions in keep- 
ing the store in a special security godown, and that was 
locked, and they had appointed chowkidars to look after 
it. So, they knew the value and the special nature of this 
com.midity ." 

On the Committee drawing the attention of the witness to the state- 
ment made by the Port !kust in this regard, he replied: 

"Please also try to believe us that they had the documents 
in their possession and they should have known. This 
statement should not carry much weight." 

He added: 

"We did not and i t  was not considered necessary because the 
Port Commissioners had full knowledge of what it was." 

6.8. The Port Trust had also stated, according to Audit, that the  
pilferage could have been avoided ha.d direct delivery of the drums 
been arranged by the Embarkation Headquarters. Asked why this 
was not resorted to as the cargo was considered to be precious, t h e  
Defence Secretary replied: 

"It is m~ore hazardous. It does not allow something for inspec- 
tion. They have been responsible if anything goes 
wrong. Normally they would prefer this system. Direct 
delivery is resorted to a t  the instance of the Port Commis-- 



sroner. They adopted the normal procedure. Never be- 
fore such a thing happened. Unfortunately, at this stage 
it happened." 

A n  explanatory note furnished by the Ministry to Audit in this re- 
gard is reproduced below: 

"Whenever any stores are received from abroed at any port, 
the Port Trust Authorities/Port Commissioners take 
charge thereof. Embarkation Commandant. . .is allowed 
by the Port Commissioners,. . . . a  total of four working 
days including date of landing as free time from the clear- 
ance of the stores. Thereafter extra wharfage is charged. 
As long as the stores remain in the custody of the Port 
Commissioners, they are ~esponsible for their safe custody 
and liable to pay compensation for any damage/pilferage. 

Direct delivery means that the Embarkation Commandant 
will take charge of the stores immediately on receipt a t  
the port and arrange despatch to the consignees. In such 
cases Embarkation Commandant is required to synchro- 
nize all arrangements in such a way that the stores are 
directly loaded from the ship/barges into the Ra'ilway 
wagons/trucks and despatched to the consignees. Em- 
barkation Commandant in such cases does not get ade- 
quate time to check the stores properly for any damage/ 
pilferage during sea transit. Also if any of the arrange- 
ments made for despatch of the stores do not materialhe, 
the stores remain in the open involving greater hazards 
of damage/pilferage, absolving Port Trust Authorities/ 
Port Commissioners of all liabilities. In view of this 
direct delivery is not normally taken by the Embarkation 

Commandants. 

However, in cases where the stores are very costly and pack- 
ages are such as can be easily pilferred, Port Trust Autho- 
rities/Port Commissioners insist upon direct delivery to 
atpolve themselves of the great financial risks involved 
in storing such consignments. Elhbarkation Comman- 
dants in such cases have to comply with such directions 
from the Part Trust Authorities/Port Commissioners." 



6.9. The Committee desired to know the arrangements that ex- 
Wed for safeguarding strategic defence materials imported from 
abroad. The Quarter Master General stated in evidence: 

"When once the items have been landed, the Embarkation 
Headquarter's task is to carry out a joint survey with the 
Port Commissioner's staff to see that the items are in good 
condition and not in damaged condition. Once they have 
landed and both the parties have examined the goods, 
they are handed over immediately to the Port Commis- 
sioner for transportation and a document is signed." 

He added: 

"We do not make any safeguarding arrangements except when 
the consignee intimates that they would like the items to 
be escorted, in which case an escort is arranged at the 
initiative of the consignee." 

T h e  Defence Secretary stated in this connection: 

"For your information, Sir, we have an elaborate system and 
we provide special staff where necessary and take all pre- 
cautions. But when the goods are in the custody of the 
port authorities, it is not obligatory on the Embarkation 
Headquarters to do anything." 

'To another question whether any special security measures are 
taken in order to ensure that vital consignments were not pilfered, 
$he witness replied: 

"Depending on the nature of the things and the situation and 
the m,ode of transpprtation, there are instructions." 

Asked whether, in this particular case, any special attention was 
(considered necessary, the witness replied: 

"This commodity, i.e. Ferro Molybdenum, had been imported 
on many occasions in the past and this kind of thing had 
nat happened, and, therefore, the question of any special as- 
rangement to be made on this occasion did not arise. But 
certainly, we are wiser now and have taken some internal 
decisions for safeguarding such things in future." 

He  added that as long as the consignment was in the custody of the 
port  !Ikust, it did not require any special arrangements. 

6.10. Since it has been stated that special arrangements were not 
glnsidered necessary i n  this case, the ,Committee desired to know 
8847 LS--8. 



the reasons for the Embarkation Headquarters' posthg three chow- 
kidars at the jetty. A representative oi the Embarkatbn Headquar- 
ters stated in evidence: 

"Here we provided a chowkidar on the jetty as an additiond 
measure. I kept my man all the time there so that h e  
can keep an eye on the drums and when the  shed was 
locked, if anything happens, he can report to me. That 
is what he did on the 3rd of October; otherwise I would 
not have known till even the next day." 

Elaborating on this point further, the Quarter Master General' 
deposed: 

"I would like to clarify the purpose of positioning those chow- 
kidars. For a number of days, sheds were being worked 
round the clock. When the sheds were being worked, 
all the gates of the sheds were open and the consignments 
were going to lie in the open initially, until they were 
moved into the sheds. When the sheds were being work- 
ed, all the doors were open. Then, the drums were to be 
loaded in wagons when these wagons were positioned. 
The purposes for which the chowkidars were positioned 
were to keep an eye on the drums while they were lying 
in the open, to keep an eye on the drums from outside 
when the sheds were being worked and the gates were 
open, to keep an eye on the drums when they were being 
taken out of the sheds and being loaded in the wagons 
and to keep an eye on the wagons when they were stilr 
in the siding and being loaded. When the sheds were 
locked and sealed by the Port Commissianers staff, the. 
chowkidars had no. responsibility." 

Asked whether the chowkidars had been posted sol'elg to keer, a 
watch over this consignment or whether there were- other defence 
stores also on the jetty on which they were expected to keep a 
watch, the representative of the Embarkation Headquarters stated: 

"56 drums were landed. We posted three chowkidars-one at  
a time mainly to look after these drums. We did not have 
any other store. Not only our material was not there but  
hundreds of packages belonging to other parties were 
there." 

6.11. With reference to the earlier statement' made by the Defence 
Secretary during evidnce that the Port Trust had taken special pra- 



cautions io keeping the stores in a special13 locked security godown 
and that three chowkidars had also been posted to look after the 
consignment, the Committee enquired how the theft couId have 
taken place if all these precautions were taken. The Defence Sec- 
retary replied: 

"It does happen sometimes with utmost precautions. Actual- 
ly, the commodity was in the custody of the Port Trust 
authorities. Before delivery was taken, the theft took 
place." 

6.12. A copy of the Report of the Court of Inquiry, assembled in 
April 1973, to investigate into the 106s of the stores, was made avail- 
able, a t  the Committee's instance, by the Ministry of Defence. On 
a perusal of the evidence tendered before the Court, the Committee 
found that the Assistant Superintendent, Traffic, of the Port Trust 
had, inter alia, deposed before the Court as follows: 

"Fifty-six drums containing Ferro Molybdenum were receiv- 
ed ex SS-VISHVA TEJ and kept inside shed No. 3 on 
24, 25 and 26 September 1970. Forwarding Note for des- 
patch of stores in covered wagons was received from 
Embarkation Headquarter, Calcutta on 28 September 
1970. On the afternoon of 30 September, 19 drums were 
loaded in wagon No. CRCG-29546. On 1 October, 1970, 
there were no wagons available. On the same day, i.e. 
on 1 October 1970, the shed was closed at 2000 hrs. for 
want of any work in the shed. 2 October 1970 was 
Ma'hatma Gandhi's birthday and the port remained en- 
tirely closed on that day. Shed No. 3 was not opened at 
all on that day. 

On 3 October 1970, shed No. 3 was opened for the first shift 
by a police constab)e and  ST^ S. K. Seal, Upper Division 
Staff of the shed. On opening, i t  was detected that out 
of the 37 drums remaining inside the shed, 3 had become 
entirely empty and contents of 7 other drums had been 

. partly missing. I t  was apprehended that theft of stores 
had taken place at the time when the shed had remained 
closed. The 3 em& drums, along with 1 more drum 
which had been almost half empty, were removed, a t  
once, inside e lock-fast; while the other 6 drums which 
appeared to have been tampered with were kept inside 
an empty wagon of the Port Commissioners and locked. 
On 3 October 1970, wagon No. BOX-66915 was available 



and 27 drums which had remained intact were loaded in 
that wagon. Thus only 10 suspected drums remained 
with the Port Commissioners." 

On the Committe pointing out that this evidence seemed to suggest 
that special security arrangements had not been made ab initio in 
respect of this consignment, the Quarter Master General stated: 

''From the very beginning they were in this shed. Originally 
i t  was being worked day and night and when the shed 
doors were opened, drums were inside the shed. I t  was 
only on the evening of 1st October because there were 
two holidays coming and the sheds $ere not going to be 
opened, the Pmt Commissioner's staff closed it, sealed 
the doors. There are 62 doors of this huge shed. All the 
other doors were bolted from inside by the staff of the 
Port Commissioner and the lock was put on one gate. 
That was the situation." 

The Assistant Traffic Superintendent had also further deposed be- 
fore the Court of Inqu i~y  as follows: 

"Shed No. 3 is a two-storeyed building. The ground floor is 
about 570 feet long and 150 feet wide. It has 4 strong 
rooms, known as lock-fasts, on the ground floor. There 
are same number of lock-fasts on the first floor. I t  has 
60 doors which used to be opened according to the re- 
quirement of operational work. Except for the main 
door, all doors had locking devices from inside. The main 
door used to be closed from outside with two padlocks. 
one of these locks belonged to and was used by the police 
and its key remained in their custody and kept at their 
nearest station. The other lock belonged to and was used 
by the Port Commissioner's men and its key kept in the 
office room of the Assistant Superintendent of the Sec- 
tion. The key of the police used to be handled by the 
police constables and that belonging to the Port Commis- 
sioners, by an  Upper Division Staff of the shed, as autho- 
rised by the Assistant Superintendent of the Section, on 
duty. ORIce room of the Assistant Superintendent re- 
mained opened round the clock, as one Assistant Superin- 
tendent remained always on duty, regardless of Sundays 
and holidays." 



Asked whether this did not indicate that the dnuns were only lying 
around in the shed and no special measures had been taken, the 
Defence Secretary replied: 

"Inside the locked shed there is another enclosure called the 
lock fast." 

To another question whether the drums had been stored from the 
very beginning in the lockfast, the witness replied: 

"Not in the lock-fast but in the shed." 

The representative of the Embarkation Headquarters added: 

"These drums were not in the lock-fast. Normally the Port 
Commissioners put small packages i.e. packages which 
are manhandleable in the lock-fast. In  this case, Sir, you 
will observe that packages were very heavy weight 1 ton 
each. As such these could not be placed in lock-fast. 
You will further observe, Sir, when three drums were 
empty and some partially empty, these were put in the 
lock-fast." 

6.13. The Committee found from the proceedings of the Court of 
Inquiry that the DAMG, Shipping, in the Embarka,tion Headquar- 
ters, had deposed, inter alia, before the Court as follows: 

"Long before the arrival of the ship, we got information of 
the stores on board. We requested General Manager.. . . 
(the consignee factory), vide our letter No. 4169/8/18/ 
SP(i) of 18 August 70 to keep a party ready to escmt the 
stores. Copy of this letter was endorsed to the DGOF. 
The DGOF was not willing to take any responsibility for 
the security of the stores. His HQ vide their letter No. 
V-41JUSA[AUG-701EC of 27 August 70 suggested arrange- 
ment of Army escort. They sent a copy of this letter to 
the Director of Movements, Army HQ who remained 
silent on the subject. This letter was endorsed to. .  . . . .l 
(the factory) also. . . . (The factory) neither provided any 
escort nor did they reply to our letter or to  the letter of 
the DGOF." 

6.14. When the attention of the Ministry was drawn by the Com- 
mittee to this deposition, the representative of the Embarkation 
Headquarters stated: 

"When I wrote the letter to . .  . .factory and to DGOF, I was 
thinking only of rail transit. because the situation in C'al- - cutta at that time was very bad." 



Asked about the conditions prevailing in Che port area and -whether 
no arrangements there were considered necessary, the witness 
replied: 

"Calcutta Port is very much inside Calcutta but Calcutta Port 
is a protected area and the port authorities are there for 
security." 

On the Committee observing in this connection that in the port 
area, crime was as rampant, if not more, than elsewhere in the city, 
the witness stated: 

"1 would like to explain that I had heard about minor thefts 
but not major thefts like this in Port area; I am sure the 
Port Commissioners will confirm that such type of theft 
had not taken place earlier." 

.The Defence Secretary, however, add&: 

"It is not the question of crime; it is the question of jurisdic- 
tion. The port authorities there are incharge. All the 
arrangements there are their responsibility and .they have 
their elaborate security staff.'' 

6.15. Referring again to the eviderce of the D-4QMG before the 
Court of Inquiry, the Committe: pointed out that while a party to 
escort the stores had alone been requisitioned from the factory and 
that escort during the journey had not been specified. The 'Defence 
Secretary replied: 

"Escort only means during a journey, and this journey is by 
rail. Sometimes hazardous journey by rail has to be 
undertaken of sensitive stores and in that case, we do pro- 
vide escorts." 

6.16. Asked why the General Manager of the factory and the 
Director of Movements had failed to respond to the request for an 
escort, the Defence Secretary replied: 

"Suppose, the authorities who are responsible for providing 
military escort consider that in this case, military escort 
was not necessary." 

The Committee, therefore, desired to know why an escort had been 
asked for in the first place if the consignment was not one of the 



atems br =hid  escori was required to be provided. The represen- 
btative af the Embarkation Headquarters stated: 

'That was in view of the situation obtaining in and around 
Calcutta in those days. I tried to take extra precaution 
because rail transit was hazardous a t  that time. bot of 
wagon breakings were going on and the affeckd areas 
were Durn Durn, Baranagore, Barackpore and Baliaghat." 

Since the DAQMG appeared to be clear that an escort was necessary 
in  view of the conditions then prevailing, the Committee desired to 
.,know why he had not ensured that an escort was provided. The 
Defence Secretary stated in evidence: 

"At that time we were concerned with this matter in another 
capacity and there were many oth,er things which were 
-required to be done to meet the situation. Unfortunately 
requirements were far beyond our capability and it would 
have cost much more money." 

.Asked what the DAQMG had done when no reply had been received 
'to any of the communications, the representative of the Embarka- 
tion Headquarters replied: 

"I did a very simple thing. When the store actually arrived, 
I sent a telegram again to.. . . (the iactory) asking them 
to send escort saying that if they did not provide an 
escort the responsibility will lie with them. But no reply 
to the telegram was received and I had to swallow it." 

6.17. The Committee, therefore, enquired into the action taken 
%y the recipients of the various communications in this regard and 
t he  reasons for their apparent indifference. In a note furnished to 
;the Committee, the Ministry of Defence replied: 

"On receipt of an intimatiop of the consignment, Embarkation 
HQ, Calcutta wrote to the General Manager.. . .in the 
Anticipated Out Turn Report No. 4169j81SP (i), dated 17th 
August 1970 as under: 

,'Please corifirm whether the stores are to be despatched t6 
you under escort. If to be escorted the escort should 
report to this HQ 2 days ahead of the ETA of the vessel. 
Please also note that if no reply is received by 22nd 
August 1970, i t  will be presumed that the stores are to 
Ibe despatched to you unescorted. The escort should be 



114 
issued with sufficient TJRA for their to and fro jour-- 
ne y'. 

Embarkation HQ in their letter No. 4169 18 118 1 SP (i) dated 
18th August 1970, again asked the factory to arrange to 
keep an escort party ready for escorting the 56 drums oi 
Ferro Molybdenum from Calcutta Docks to . .  . . A copy 
of this letter was also endorsed to DGOF, Calcutta. The 
DGOF in his letter No. V - ~ ~ ~ U S A I A U ~ - ~ O ~ E J C ,  dated 27th 
August 1970, invited the attention of Embarkation HQ to 
the general instructions contained in QMG Branch, Army 
HQ letter No. 696781QMov S-1 dated 19th May 1964, 
according to which the responsibility for arranging escort 
rested with the Embarkation authorities at  the ports. In 
view of this position, 'DGOF, Calcutta advised Embarka- 
tion RQ to take necessary action under advice to all con- 
cerned, and also instructed the consignee to intimate by 
return of post if the stores were required to be despatched 
to the factory under escort. Copy of this letter was en- 
dorsed to the Director of Movements, Army Hqrs. Since 
action to arrange for the escort was required to be taken by 
the Embarkation Hqrs. i n  consultation with the local Mili- 
tary Commander and not by Army Hqrs., the Director of 
Movements, Army HQ did not take any action on the  
copy of letter received by him. 

On arrival of the consignment, a telegram was again issued 
by Embarkation Hqrs. to the consignee on 8th September 
1970. The consignee factory replied by telegram No. 
.56WU/R/CP/FP, on 10th September 1970 and on the post 
copy of the telegram, while inviting the attention of the 
Embarkation Hqrs. to QMG's Branch's general instruc- 
tions of 19th May 1964, requested them 'to arrange des- 
patch of the consignments in question insecurely covered 
wagons, under clear RlRs and duly escorted' under Em- 
barkation HQ's own arrangements, as considered neces- 
sary. 

In this connection, it is mentioned that the loss in the present 
case took place when the consignment, having been un- 
loaded from the vessel, was lying in the custody of the 
Port Commissioners. The provision of escorts could not 
have prevented the loss which took place before the 
stores were loaded into the train for despatch to the con- 
signee. I t  is also mentioned that according to para 11 of 
Army HQ Standing Operation Instruction-Section 19, 



which was in force in September 1970, when the stores.. 
were received, the item ferro-molybdenum was not re- 
quired to be despatched under escort." 

6.18. The Committee desired to know when the theft had been 
reported to the Director General, Ordnance Factories. The Quarter 
Master General stated in evidence: 

"They got to know on the morning of 3rd of October." 

He, however, added: 

"When I say DGOF, I really mean.. . . (the factory) ." 
Asked how long after the occurrence of the theft, the DGOF had 
been informed, the witness replied: 

"DGOF was informed on the l l t h  of November. I t  is a month 
and eight days." 

The Committee were, however, informed by Audit in this connection 
that the Directorate General of Ordinance Factories had stated as 
follows: 

"It was only in August 1971 that this office came to know of 
the pilferage having been committed in respect of ten 
dcums in question through papers enclosed with Embar- 
kation Commandant, Calcutta's letter No.. . . . dated 30th 
July 1971 addressed to Army Headquarters, New Delhi. 
Sanction of Army Headquarters was sought for dropping 
the claim and ultimate regularisation thereof a t  con- 
signee's end." 

Since this implied that the theft had been reported to the Director 
General, Ordnance Factories, only after the lapse of nearly ten 
months, the Committee asked why i t  should have taken so long t o  
report the theft. A representative of the Defence Minisry replied: 

"On l l t h  November 1970, the Embarkation Commandant had 
addressed a letter to the Docks Manager, a copy of which 
was also endorsed to the General Manager.. . .informing 
him about this theft. The letter of 30th July, 1971 is rele- 
vant because, on this date the Embarkation Commandant 
had informed the Army Headquarters that the claim was 
time-barred. The DGOF had reacted then. When this 
copy had reached the DGOF, he reacted, saying that the 
theft had occurred in very suspicious circumstances. A 



Court of Enquiry must be held to prevent recurrence of 
thefts in future." 

'To another question whether the consignee factory had no responsi- 
bility cast on it to report such thefts and losses to the Director 
.General, Ordnance Factories instead of leaving it entirely to the 
Embarkation Headquarters, a representative of the Directorate 
,General of Ordnance Factories replied: 

"I do not have the information as to when they received the 
information. Normally they do report." 

The Defence Secretary added: 

"Your point is well taken, Sir." 

6.19. In a note furnished subsequently in this regard, the Minis- 
'try of Defence informed the Committee as follows: 

". . . . (The factory) received consignments of ferro-molyb- 
denum on October 8 and October 28, 1970. After verifi- 
cation of the consignment, the factory informed the Em- 
barkation Commandant, Calcutta, about shortages detec- 
ted vide letter No. 56901171RJCP dated 10-11-70. A copy 
of this letter was also endorsed to the Director General of 
Ordnance Factories. 

The information about the theft of this subject store was sent 
to. . . .by the Embarkation Commandant, Calcutta, vide 
his letter No. 416918189jSP(a) dated 11-11-1970. The Em- 
barkation Commandant had addressed this letter to the 
Dock Manager, Port Commissioner, Calcutta and endorsed 
its copies to the..  . . (factory) and the Director General of 
Ordnance Factories. 

As the information of theft was simultaneously relayed to the 
. . . . (factory) and the DGOF by the Embarkation Com- 
mandant, there was no delay on the part of any officer of 
the. . . .in informing the DGOF about this theft." 

6.20. The Audit paragraph points out that though the Director 
General, Ordnance Factories, had suggested, in September 1971, that 
the loss of such an important and costly raw material essential for 
defence production should be thoroughly investigated by a Court ot 
Inquiry, and remedial measures taken, the Embarkation Headquar- 
ters had, however, felt that no useful purpose would be served by 
instituting a Court of Inquiry and the Court was not likely to bring 



out any tangible evidence. Asked why the Embarkation Headquar- 
ters had resisted an inquiry, the Defence Secretary replied: 

"Lt was not. There was no question of resisting. The point 
was that these goods were in the godowns of the Port 
Trust Commissioners and the Army authorities had 
nothing to do with them. What enquiry could they hold 
in the jurisdiction of somebody else? The question of a 
Court of Enquiry by the Army authorities did not 
arise so long as the goods were in custody of the 
Port Cqmmissioners. After that, they were put in 
the railway wagons and the jurisdiction transferred to 
the railway authorities. So, the moment the responsibility 
of any army authority would have come in, certainly the 
Court of Enquiry by them would have been justified.: 

The representative of the Embarkation Headquarters, asked to 
clarify the position in this regard stated: 

"The loss took place in the locked shed of the Port Com- 
missioners. We had nothing to do with it; it did not take 
place with us." 

To a specific question whether they had opposed the suggestion that 
there should be a Court of Inquiry, the witness replied: 

"We had opposed the suggestion of Army Court of Enquiry 
because we felt that the Army Court of Enquiry should 
nat be held on us in this case. We had suggested that it 
will be absolutely useless and fruitless." 

The Defence Secretary added in this context: 

"He is saying that the thing was not in his jurisdiction; and 
that, therefore, the enquiry against him was not called 
for. The custody was that of the port authorities." 

On the Committee poining out, in 'this connection, that even if a 
fact-finding inquiry by an Army Court was considered to be not 
necessary in this case, the concerned authorities could have at least 
arranged for a combined inquiry by the civil police and others, the 
Defence Secretary stated: . . 

"We do not meddle with other people's business." 

Since the whole object of the inquiry suggested by the Director 
General, Ordnance Factories, seemed to be to take remdial measures 
and could have, therefore, been quite comprehensive, the Committee 



desired to know why a rather restricted view should have been taken 
in this regard. The Defence Siecretary stated in evidence: 

"Let me read out what the Embarkation authorities had t o  
say: 

'The loss took place while the goods were in the custody of. 
the Port Commissioner and he immediately asked for a 
departmental enquiry and informed the police authori- 
ties, including the C.I.D. The Port Commissioner imme- 
diately registered the case on 3rd October, 1970: 

I t  is all there; i t  is not as if they did not initiate action." 
The witness added: 

"In the language of Defence, the Court of Enquiry is confine& 
to the canduct of the people immediately concerned." 

Ia this context, a representative of the Ministry stated: 
"The Court of Inquiry was held eventually." 

6.21. The Court of Inquiry, assembled in April 1973, more than 
two years after the event, had opined as follows: 

"The Court is of the opinion that firstly, 3358.394 kgs. of Ferro 
Molybdenum received per S.S. VISHVA TEJ in Septem- 
ber 1970, meant for . .  . .and valuing at Rs. 1,15,078.70 (One 
lakh and fifteen thousands and seventy eight rupees and 
seventy paise), including freightage and customs duty 
and landing charges, were stolen from No. 3 Garden Reach 
Jetty of the Port Commissioners of Calcutta, while the  
store were under the control of the said Commissioners, 
either after 2030 hrs. on the night of 112 October, 1970 or  
during the night of 213 October, 1970 by some unidentified, 
expert, professional thieves, in collusion with one or more 
persons of the Port Commissioners and one or more per- 
sons of the then Calcutta Port Police; secondly, Embarka- 
tion HQ, Calcutta have taken proper and appropriate 
action, without deIay, at all stages of this case; and thirdly, 
because of the peculiar legal position of this case, it 
should be referred to the Ministry of Law, Government of 
India, to decide whether the Ministry of Defence should 
write off the loss or i t  should be borne by the Ministry 
of Shipping and Transport or by the Ministry of Railways!" 

On the findings of the Court, the Commander, Calcutta Sub- 
Area had observed: 

"I agree with the opinion of the Court. I recommend that the 
Ministry of Law, Government of India would be consul- 



ted to decide whether the Ministry of Defence should 
write off the loss or it should be responsibility of 
Ministry of Shipping and Transport or by the Ministry 
of Railways." 

While partially endorsing the views of the Commander,, Calcutta 
Sub-Area, the General Officer Commanding, Bengal Area had stated: 

"I partially agree with the opinion of Commander, Calcutta 
Sub- Area. 

The loss of 3358.394 Kgs. of Ferro Molybdenum amounting to 
Rs. 1,15,078.70 (Rupees one lakh fifteen thousand seventy 
eight and seventy paise only) occurred while the store 
was in the custody of Port Commissioner in shed No. 3 
of Garden Reach Jetty. 

The case relates not only to the physical loss of 3358.394 kgs. 
of Ferro Molybdenum amounting to Rs. 1,15,078.70 (Rupees 
one lakh fifteen thousand seventy eight and seventy paise 
only) but to the invisible loss many times more of this 
rare imported material in terms of time, effort and foreign 
exchange besides profit made by unscrupulous customers 
buying such material from the thieves. 

I recommend that the case be referred to the appropriate 
authorities to ascertain which Ministry should bear the 
loss and for taking necessary steps as considered ncces- 
sary for tightening security measures. Exact res;>onsihility 
in such cases may also be laid down to obviate any doubt." 

These recommendations had been accepted by the General Officer 
Commanding-in-Chief, Eastern Command, who had added that the 
case be referred to the appropriate authorities to ascertain ?s t o  
which Ministry should bear the loss. 

6.22. Asked whether similar cases of theft had come to notice 
earlier and what additional measures had been taken to prevent 
the recurrence of the loss of such valuable material, thp Defence 
Secretary replied: 

"You should accept that had there been a similar case earlier, 
people would have been wiser. We became wiser after 
the event. This event had happened. We will certainly 
be wiser in future." 

As regards the preventive measures taken, enquired into by the 
Committee, the witness stated: 

"I think the Central Industrial Security Force is now being 
utilised to safeguard stores of this nature." 

I 



In a note furnished in this regard, the Minisly of Defence stated: 

"The Port Commissioners have replaced the Calcutta Port 
Police which was responsible for the security of the stores 
in Calcutta Docks by the Central Industrial Security 
Force personnel." 

To another question why these arrangements could not be madc 
earlier, the Ministry replied: 

"The responsibility for safeguarding of stores in the Port area 
is that of Port Commissioners, Calcutta. The Embarka- 
tion Commandant has no control over this aspect" 

6.23. The theft of 3,358 kilograms (value Rs. 1.15 lakhs) of an im- 
portant and costly raw material, required for the production of a 

-special type of strengthened steel, in the premises of the Port Trust, 
causes grave concern to the Committee. As has been rightly point- 
ed out by the General Officer Commanding, b n g a l  Area, apart from 
the immediately ascertainable monetary loss arising out of this 
case, t b  invisible loss in terms of time, effort and foreign exchange 
and the profits accruing to the unscrupulous purchasers of the rare, 
imported material, would be many times more than the physical 
loss. . . 

6.24. The Committee observe that the Port authorities had not 
been informed that the imported consignment was an important 
raw material and that the Port Trust had stated, after the occw- 
rence of the theft, that, if this fact had been known, "strong precau- 
tionary measures could have been arranged." This, unfortunately, 
had not been considered necessary because it was assumed that the 
Port Trust was already in possession of the relevant documents and, 
therefore, had full knowledge of the valuable nature of the consign- 
ment. The Committee are, however, of the opinion that the mere 
fact that the Port authorities were in possession af the documents 
did not mean that they really appreciated the value and importance 
of the consignment from the consignee's point of view. Indeed, 
whenever scarce and strategic stores are imported from abroad, the 
Port authorities should invariably be informed precisely and suit- 
ably of the importance of adequate precautionary measures being 
taken to safeguard such stares by keeping them in 'lock-fast' or 
0 t h  security areas. The Committee stress that there should be 
clase coordination between the eensignees, the Embqkation Wead- 
quarters and the Port authorities in this regard. The Committee 
w o d d  also suggest that the Ministry should undertake a compre- 



hensive review of the ex- unamgements for the handling of 
vita1 and sensitive defewe equipment and raw materials at  the ports 
so as to ensure their sale delivery and the prevention of pilferages. 

6.25. The theft in this particular case could, perhaps, have been 
prevented if adequate action had been taken by the Embarkationr 
Headquarters, in close coerdination with the Railway authorities, toe 
ensure that wagons which were in sound and rail-worthy condition 
were made available for movement of the consignment immediately 
on arrival at the Port. The Committee would, therefore, urge the 
Ministry also to roeview the present arrangements for the despatch 
of sensitive stores and other items f r ~ m  the ports to the consign: 
ees and ensure that such sensitive items are not allowed to rlemain 
in the ports longer than is absolutely unavoidable. 

6.26. According to the findings of the Court of Inquiry, assembled 
in April, 1973 to investigate into the loss, the subject stores had been 
stolen from the jetty, while they were in the custody of the Port 
authorities, by unidentified professional thieves, in collusion with 
one or more persons of the Port Trust and one or more! persons of 
the then Port Police. The Committee have also been informed that 
immediately after the theft came to light, the Port Commissioners 
had ordered a departmental enquiry and registered a case with the 
Police and the C.I.D. The Committee would like to be informed of 
the outcome of these investigations. 

6.27. The Committee note that the Port Trust had agreed to make 
an ex-gratia payment 04 Rs. 50,000 to compensate the loss and would 
like to know whether thii amount has since been paid. Now that 
the security arrangements have been tightened with the replace 
ment of the Port Police by the Central Industrial Security Force, 
the Committee expect that such thefts would be prevented. 

6.28. The evidence in his case also reveals a certain neglect and 
indifference on the part of the Defence authorities. Long before the 
arrival of the stores, the Embarkation Headquarters had, as an extra 
precaution called for by the situation obtaining at that time in and 
around Calcutta, requested the consignee factory, on 18 August, 197)78, 
to arrange an iesccrrt for the stores from the docks to the factory. A 
copy of this lettem bod. also been endorsed to the Direetor Genernl, 
OEdlur~ce Factories who, while unwilling to accept any responsfbi- 
Pty for the secrnity of the stores, had poinbd out, on 27 A ~ u s t .  
1818, that under the instructions in vogue, the respodbiY%y for w 
ranging an ewort r d e d  with the Embarlutivlr aatLapities at the 



Wrts  and had, therefore, advised t b  Embarkation Headquarters to 
h k e  necessary action in this regard. The consignee had also been 
instructed simultaneously to intimate, 'by nahtm of pmt', whether 
the  stores were required to be despatched to the factory under 
.escort, and a copy of this letter had been endorsed to the Director 
of Movements, Army Headquarters. While the Director of Move- 
-merits took no action on the copy of the letter rewived by him, since 
action to arrange for the escort was required to be taken by the 
Embarkation Headquarters, in consultation with the local Military 
Commander, and not by the Army Headquarters, the consignee facc 
-tory had not replied either to the letter dated 18 August, 1970 from 
the Embarkation Headquarters or to that dated 27 August, 1970 from 
the Director General, Ordnance Factories, till a telegram was again 
issued on 8 September, 1970. It is also not clear to the Committee 
why the Embarkation Headquarters, having considered it necessary 
to take extra precautions during transit, despite the fact that the 

"consignment was not one of the items required, under regulations, 
to be despatched under escort, had not pursued this question to its 
logical conclusion in consultation with the local commander. 

6.29. It  is true that, as has been contended by the Ministry, since 
-the theft in the present case had occurred when the stores were in 
the custody of the Port Commissioners, the provision of an escort 
would not have prevented the loss that took place prior to their 
despatch to the consignee. The Committee cannot, however, lose 
sight of the fact that adequate attention had apparently not been 
paid to important communications relating to a sensitive item of 

,stores. I t  is regrettable that even in an area where the concerned 
authorities thlemselves considered some special security arrange- 
ments to be necessary, much time was taken up in inconclusive cor- 
respqndence. The Committee would, therefore, like the  ini is try to 
examine the reasons for the neglect, ~articularly on the part of the 
consignee factory, with a view to taking appropriate remedial mea- 
sures. 

6.30. There has also been considerable delay in arranging for a 
Court of Inquiry to investigate the case. The Committee find that 
though intimation in regard to the theft had been sent to the Direc- 
tor General, Ordnance Factories, in November, 1970 itself, the ques- 
tion of appointing a Court of lnquty  was taken up with t h  A m y  
Headquarters by the Director General, Ordnance Factories some ten 
-months Later, in aptember 1971. While the reasons f m  this long 
delay have not been satisfactmilg explained, the actual appintment 
.of the Court took another fourhen months ( m e m b e r  19R) and 
t h e  Court assembled only in April 1973, no less than thirty months, 



after the event. The Committee have learnt in this connection that 
since an Army Court of Inquiry is confined to the conduct of the 
people immediately concermd and in view of the fact that the theft 
had occurred when the stores were not within the jurisdiction ot 
the Defence authorities, the question of an inquiry by the Army 
authorities did not arise. The Embarkation Headquarters had, 
Sberefore, opined that no useful purpose would be served by insti- 
tuting a Court of Inquiry as this was not likely to bring out any 
..tangible evidence. The Committee consider it unfortunate that 
such a restricted and purely legalistic view should have initially 
been t a k a .  Since the inquiry had been suggested by the Director 
General, Ordnance Factories, with the objective of   re scribing suit- 
able remedial measures for the future, and the theft of a vital raw 
material had taken place in suspicious circumstances, the Commit- 
tee are of the view that a comprehensive inquiry ought to have been 
promptly initiated. 

6.31. Time and again, the Committee have been stressing the 
need for avoiding delay in the constitution of Courts of Inquiry. 
The  inordinate delay in the present case emphasises its urgency. 
Government should ensure that such inquiries art@ held soon after 
the  event, so that remedial measures can be taken and recurrenca 
,of such unfortunate cases prevented to tfie extent possible. 

NEW DELHI; 
October 27, 1976 
Ra7tika5; l 8 9 m ) .  

K, N. MUKERJEE, 
Chairman, 

Public Accounts Committee. 
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APPENDIX I 

(Vide Paragraph 3,21) 

Findings/Recommendations of the Court of Inquiry held on 8th 
May, 1974 to investigate into the excess paynwnt of electricity 
supply cha~ges to M S E B .  . . .  

The Court having assembled pursuant to order, proceed to exa- 
mine all the files produced by the CWE.. . . .  .Office on the above 
subject. All documents in the files presented, pertaining to, the 
subject, had to be searched for by the Court and information sifted. 
From these, the information obtained is brought out in subsequent 
paragraphs. 
AFMC POONA 

1. I t  is seen that on May 9, 1958, an agreement was signed between 
. . . . .  MIS . . . . . .  Electric Supply Company,. (hereafter referred to a s  

.... PESCO) and Chief Engineer,. .Command Poona for HT Bulk 
supply to AFMC. . . . .  .The contract demand being 250 KW with 
effect from 16 Nov., 1956 for an initial period of 5 years and there- 
after year to year until the agreement was determined by either 
party. According to the conditions laid down by PESCO, the mini- 
mum demand which could be contracted for HT Bulk supply was 
250 KW. It appears that the contract agreement continued as there 
is nothing to the contrary available in the files produced. 

2. In Aug., 1962, CWE (Projects). . . . .  .requested CWE.. ... .for 
an extra requirement of 195 KW for the work being done by GE 
(CME). . . . .  .at  AFMC.. . . .  .This request for extra 195 was meant 
to cater for:- 

(a) Connected load of the 3 cold storage installations in the building . go KW 
(b) Load of the Officers Mess building . . 50 KW 
(c) Air-corlditioning in blood plasma . . . . . 25 KW 
(d)Dentaltrainingwing . . . . 30 KW 

CWE POONA replied to CWE (Projects) ... .that the action 
for placing additional demand with PESCO may be taken by that 
oflice. 



3. In Apr., 63, the office of GE..  . . . .applied to PESCO for pro- 
visioning of an additional load of 350 KW required for expanding 
the existing undertaking to meet the envisaged additional load con- 
sequent upon the additional equipmentlinstallations. Details of the 
distribution for this extra requirement have not been furnished in 
the application. 

4. Between the period Aug., 62 (after issue of letter at para 2 
above) and the application for additional load in Apr. 63, the office 
of the CWE. . . . . .was not able to produce any correspondence] 
information to justify the increase in demand for power. The Court, 
therefore, adjourned for one week in order to enable the office 01 
CWE. . . . . .to explore the possibility of producing any file(document 
justifying the extra demand for power. The Court having re- 
assembled after a week, found that CWE's office. . . . . . still could not 
produce any correspondence 1 document I file necessitating the addi- 
tional demand of 350 KW. Even the requirement of CWE (Projects) . . . . . . was only 195 KW. 

5. On 4th July, 1963, Government of Maharashtra sanctioned the 
extra load of 350 KW applied for and also instructed to enter 
into an agreement with PESCO. PESCO intimated GE. . . . . .in 
Nov., 1963, that since they were handing over their business to the 
. . . . . . . .State Electricity Board (hereafter referred to as MSEB) 
soon, the GE. . . . . .should contact the latter regarding additional 
supply of electricity. I - 

6. The Legal advice given by the Joint Secretary and Legal 
Adviser to the Govt. of India, obtained by CE.. . .ZONE, directed 
that a new contract agreement had to be undertaken with MSEB. 

7. In  Oct., 1964, an unsigned draft agreement was forwarded by 
the office of GE. . . . . .to MSEB. This draft and further copies 
submitted later in Dee., 1965 all show the connected load as 250 KW. 
However, the proforma for the draft agreement submitted does not 
have any clause for the maximum demand. Protracted cmrespon- 
dence/personal contact~/discussions between GE's office and MSEB 
on the one side plus reminders from CWE's office took place till Dec., 
1967 without the contract having been approved. 

8. Meanwhile, it is seen from the statement produced by the 
office of GE (N) POONA that:- 

(a) Initially till March, 1966, MSEB bills were based on a 
billing demand of 250 KW as provided for in the original 



agreement with PESCO. In Dec., 1967, the MSEB issued 
a revised bill for the period Jan., 1966 to March, 1966; 
wherein the basis of billing was 469 KVA (75% of 625 
KVA). The excess expenditure being Rs. 5,0221-, GE's 
office immediately requested MSEB to reduce HT bulk 
supply from 625 KVA to 400 KVA in December, 1967. 

(b) Details of monthly bills from Apr. 66 to Jun, 67 are not 
available. But the excess expenditure for this period is 
indicated as Rs. 32,2651-. 

(c) The month-wise statement given from Jul, 1967 onwards 
shows that the billing demand by MSEB has been based 
on a contractual monthly demand of 625 KVA. The pro- 
cedure of MSEB being to bill for a minimum of 75% 
(469 KVA) of the contractual demand of 625 KVA (this 
procedure is confirmed by the rep of GE POONA in 
attendance as being in order). The excess expenditure 
from Jul. 67 till Apr. 72 is Rs. 1'46'659.40. 

(d) The connected load was:- 

(i) In Apr., 63-224 KW (Approx) (when extra load of 350 
KW demanded-para 3 above refers). 

(ii) In Jan., 6 6 5 6 9  KW (Approx) \when MSEB changed 
basis of billing). 

(iii) In Aug., 71-1008 KW (Approx) jwhen contract agree- 
ment signed). 

9. There is no correspondence / information produced by the office 
.of the CWE POONA nor could any be found by the Court from the 
files produced to indicate as to why the basis of billing by MSEB 
had suddenly been changed from Jan., 66 nor was any querry raised 
for the change in billing. The court then tried to obtain informa- 
tion from MSEB by deputing a member to contact them. But, they 
were unable to supply any information due to the nature of the case 
being so old. 

10. In response to GE's letter of Dec., 67 for reduction in the sup- 
ply of HT, the MSEB refused to reduce the contract demand from 
625 KVA to 400 KVA. Inst'ead, they insisted on the HT agreement 
to be executed as per the draft. 



11. All this time, the draft agreement had not been approved an8 
was floating between MSEB, GE and CWE's offke with the MSEB 
insisting on the contract demand being 625 KVA. 

12. In March, 1968, MSEB revised the draft agreement form and 
forwarded the copy to GE's office for signing. In this revised agree- 
ment form, it is seen that a clause of contract demand has been 
added and 625 KVA indicated therein. While this draft agreement 
form was in the process of finalisation between the office of GE. CW 
and CE P&R Zone, the Test Auditors raised an objection on 29 Jan., 
1969 against the excess payment of electricity to MSEB in respect' 
of HT power supply to the tune of Rs. 25,900.50 for the period 5167 
to 5/68. 

-5 13. A further request was, made by the GE's office in Dec. 69 tw 
MSEB for reducing the maximum contractual demand to 300 KVA. 

14. In Jan., 71 CWE's office intimated CEP&R Zone the necessity 
for early finalisation of the draft agreement as the MSEB continued 
to charge on the contractual demand of 625 KVA. 

15. !The final agreement between MSEB and CE P&R Zone for 
HT bulk supply in respect of AFMC was signed on 25 Aug., 71. This 
was necessitated by the fact that MSEB insisted on t,he agreement 
k i n g  signed first, before any further reduction in the contract 
demand could be considered by them. As it is from Jan. 66, 75% 
of the contract demand was being charged by MSEB whereas t h e  
actual consumption was much less. Any further delay in concluding 
the contract agreement would only result in further infructuous 
expenditure. Based on the request of GE POONA in Dec.. 69 and 
progressive action taken, the MSEB reduced the contract demand t o  
300 KVA in May. 72. 

16. Based on Test Auditors observation of Jan., 69, a draft p a x  
has been submitted by Comptroller and Auditor General of India 
(Defence Services) indicating the excess expenditure as given 
below: - 

R S. 
(aj for the period 5'67 to 5'68 . . 22,900'-- 

~ g a i n  in Jan., 74, a revised version of draft para has been submit- 
ted showing the excess payment of Rs. 1.74 lakhs. for the period! 
Apr., 66 to Apr,, 72. 
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M H  POONA (CH (SC) . . . . . .). 
17. On going through the contract agreement signed on 25 Aug. 

'il for 7 years wef Dec. 66 and an extract of HT bills by the office 
of GE. .  . . . . . ., it is seen that contract demand is 112 KVA, MSEB 
authorities were billing on the basis of 75% of the above contract 
demand because the recorded maximum demand was always less, 

18. The highest recorded maximum demand was 81.1 KVA. The. 
billing demand throughout has. been for 84 KVA i.e. 75% of 122 
KVA. Tbe difference between the recorded maximum demand and 
billing demand is only 2.9 KVA,  which is negligible. 

19. The Test Audit in Jan. 69 raised an objection against excess 
payment of electricity to MSEB to the tune of Rs. 3,221.33 for the 
period 7/67 to 6/68. It  is also seen from CE P&R Zone letter No. 
65109/731E5A of 29 Jan. 74 that the Comptroller and Auditor Gene- 
ral of India (Def. Services) has not included this in the revised 
version of the Draft para. 

20. In Dec. 72, the office of G E . .  . . . .applied for reduction in thc 
Maximum contractual demand of power from 1 '2  KVA to 70 KVA, 
After protracted correspondence. this was accepted by MSEB wef 
Apr. 74. 

MH (C-TH-C) 

21. On going th~ough the contract agreement signed on 2 May, 70 
for 7 years wef 18 Mar. 66 and from an extract of HT bills produced 
by the offlce of GE (North). . . . . .it is seen that the contract maxi- 
mum demand was 100 KVA. The average recorded maximum 
demand from Oct. 66 to Jun.  71 is approximately the same as the 
billing demand. Towards the latter part, it is even above 75 per 
cent of the contract demand of 100 KVA. The recorded maximum 
demand was. 96 KVA in Jul. 71. From then onwards, it has shot u p  
to 288 KVA in Nov. 72. 

22. The contract maximum demand has been revised to 300 KVA 
by GE. . . . . .in Aug. 73 as MSEB served notice to get Govt, sanction. 
for the increased maximum demand. Accordingly, the same has. 
been obtained on 9 Aug. 73. 

23. In Jan. 69, the Test Audit raised an objection for excess pay- 
ment of electricity to MSEB to the tune of Rs. 537.95 for the perio& 
5/67 to 6/68. I t  is seen from CE P&R Zone letter 55109/73!35A of 
29 Jan. 74 that the Comptroller and Auditor General of India pet. 



Services) has not included this in the revised version of the Draft 
para. 

24. The Court deliberated over the question of calling; for wit- 
nesses and dispensed with the necessity for the following reasons:- 

(a) The following offices were involved in dealing with the 
case: - 

(i) GE (CME) . . . . . .  
(ii) CWE (Projects) . . . . . .  

. . . . .  (iii) GE. 

(iv) CWE. . . . . .  
. . . . .  (v) CE P&R Zone. 

(vi) CE SC...... 

(b) A large number of officers handled the case a t  various stages 
-wer the period Aug. 62 to Aug. 71. I t  was learnt that some of these 
officers had retired, others expired and among the remaining none 
are available in the station. 

(c) In the absence of any document\information while applying 
for increase in the power demand for AFMC to 350 KW in Apr. 63, 
there was no chance of recepitulating by anyone the reasons and 
necessity thereof in view of the time factor. The Court, therefore, 
felt it would be a futile exercise to call any witnesses as it will 
entail further infructuous expenditure and delay in finalising the 
proceedings without resulting in any gain. 

FINDINGS OF THE COURT 

2. Fidings of the Court are enumerated below:- 

(a) AFMC POONA 

(i) In May 58 an agreement was signed for 5 years between 
CE EC..  . . .  .and PESCO for the sup& of 250 KW power. 

(ii) At that time, the minimum power that could be contract- 
ed (as per PESCO regulations) was 250 KW. 

(iii) The agreement continued to apply beyond 5 years. 

(iv) In Aug. 62, an extra demand for power of 195 KW was 
anticipated by CWE (Projects). 



(v) In Apr. 63, the GE.. . . .  .applied to PESCO for an extra 
demand of power of 350 KW. 

(vi) Reasons for the extra demand of power cannot be estab- 
lished as none exists in the files produced by the office of 
the CWE ...... 

(vii) In Jul. 63, Govt. of MAHARASlHTRA sanctioned the 
extra demand of 350 KW applied for by GE. ..... 

(viii) In Nov. 63, PESCO were in the process of handing over 
.. their business to MSEB and the former intimated GE. .  

to obtain the extra supply from MSEB. 

(ix) In Jul.. 6 k C E  P&R Zone obtained a ruling from the JT, 
Secretary and Legal Adviser to the Government of India, 
that a new agreement was necessary with MSEB. 

(x) From Oct. 64 to Dec. 67, the agreement form was in the 
process of being finalised between MSEB on the one side 
and the office of GE . . . . . .  CWE . . . . . .  CE P&R Zone 1 CE 
SC on the other side. 

(xi) From May 63 to Dec. 65 MSEB billed for power on the 
basis of 250 KW. 

(xii) From Jan. 66, the basis of monthly billing is for 469 KVA. 
This is based on a contractual demand of 625 KVA and 
as per MSEB rules, 75% of 625 KVA (469 KVA) is the 
required minimum to be billed. The excess expenditure 
from Jan. 66 to Mar. 66 is Rs. 5,0221-. 

(xiii) From Apr. 66 to Jun. 67, details of monthly bills are not 
available. But the total excess expenditure is Rs. 32,2651- 

(xiv) The excess expenditure from Jul., 67 to Apr., 72 is Rs. 
1,46,659 140. 

(xv) The total excess expenditure from Jan. 66 to Apr. 72 is 
Rs. 1,&3,946.40. 

(xvi) The connected loads at  important stages are 

(aa) In Apr. 63-224 KW (Approx). 
(bb) In Jan. 66-569 KW (Approx). 

(cc) In Aug. 71-1008 KW (approx). ' .  



(xvii) In dec. 67, based on the revised billing demand of 489 
KVA, the office of GE. . . . . .requested MSEB for e reduc- 
tion of power from 625 KVA to 400 KVA and later in Dee. 
69 to a further reduction to 300 KVA. Thus action on 
Army HQ, E-in-C's Br. letter No. 2906616813-4 dated 23 
Dec. 67 was taken. 

(xviii) MSEB refused to consider reduction in contract demand 
till the contract agreement was first signed. 

(xix) In Mar. 68, MSEB revised the con,tract agreement form 
and included a clause for a contract demand of power for 
625 KVA. 

(xx) While the new contract agreement form was being final- 
ised, the Test Auditors in Jan. 69, raised an objection 
against the excess payment of electricity to MSEB for 
AFMC to the tune of Rs. 25,9001- for the period 5167 to 
51 68. 

(xxi) In  Jan. 71, CWE represented to CE P&R Zone to accept 
625 KVA as a contractual demand and finalise the agree- 
ment, otherwise, excess expenditure was unnecessarily 
being incurred due to MSEB insisting on the agreement 
being signed first before considering any reduction in 
demand. 

(xxii) The final agreement was signed by CE P&R Zone in 
Aug. 71. 

(xxiii) The MSEB reduced the contractual demand to 300 KVA 
in May 72 

(xxiv) The revised draft para of Comptroller and Auditor 
General of India (Def. Services) has given the excess 
payment as Rs. 1.74 la khs for the period 4/66 to 4/72. 

(b) MH. .  . . . . (CH SC). . . . . . 
(i) The contract demand for 112 KVA per month was 

signed in Aug. 71 wef Dec. 66. 
(ii) From Dec. 65 to Aug. 71 the average maximum demand 

was -20 KVA less than the billing demand of 84 KVA. 
However, the maximum recorded demand was 81.1 KVA. 

(iii) The difference between this recorded maximum demand 
is only 2 . 9  KVA, which is negligible. 



(iv) In Jan. 69, the Test Auditors raised an objection for ex- 
cess expenditure. 

(v) The excess expenditure supposed to have been incurred 
has not been included in the revised version of the Draft 
para by the Comptroller and Auditor General of India 
(Def Services). 

(c) MH (TH-C) ........ 
(i) The average recorded maximum demand ~emained appro- 

ximately the same as the billing demand from Oct. 66 to 
Jan. 71. 

(ii) In Jan.. 69, the Test Audit raised an ob'jection for excess 
expenditure . 

(iii) The recorded maximum demand was 96 KVA in Jul. 71. 
(iv) In Nov. 72 the recorded maximum demand went upto 280 

KVA . 
(v) MSEB gave notice for revising the maximum demand. 

jvi) GE Poona has increased the maximum demand to 309 
KVA. 

(vii) The Comptroller and Auditor General of India (Def. Ser- 
vices) has not included this case in the revised version 
of the Draft para. 

(viii) No infructuous excess expenditure has been incurred. 

tOPINION OF THE COURT 

1. The Court is of the opinion that:- 

(a) AFMC.. ...... 
(i) the agreement with PESCO for 250 KW demand was 

justified as this is the maximum the Company would 
agree to contract. 

(ii) subsequently, based on the statement of consumption, 
there is no justification in applying for an additional 
demand of 350 KW. 

(iii) necessary requests were made in Dec. 67 and again in 
Dec. 69 for reducing the demand at first to 400 KVA 
and later to 300 KVA. Even if these requests had been 



made earlier, it is unlikely to have had any result in 
reducing the billing changes. This is due to the ada- 
mant attitude of MSEB of insisting on 'the agreement 
being first signed and then considering any reduction. 
Thus in order to ultimately reduce the contract de- 
mand to 301). KVA, the agreement was finally signed in 
Aug. 71 for a contract demand of 625 KVA as insisted on 
by MSEB. This finally resulted in MSEB considering 
and reducing the contract demand to 300 KVA in May 
72. 

(iv) The total loss involved in the excess expenditure in- 
curred is Rs. 1,83,946.40 (from Jan. 66 to Apr. 72). 

(v) I t  is not possible at this stage to pin point the respon- 
sibility. This is because:- 

(aa) records justifying the increase of electricity de- 
mand to 625 KVA in 1963 are not available. 

(bb) The large number of officers involved from the 
number of offices, have either retiredjexpired(not in 
the station. 

(cc) the time that has expired (since Aug. 62) is too 
long for any individual to recapitulate the reasons 
for extra demand in 1963 in the absence of any re- 

' cord. 

(dd) instructions contained in Army HQ, E-in-C's Br.  
letter No. 29066/68/H4 dated 23 Dec. 1967 were 
complied with in that in Dec. 67 and again in Dec. 
69 requests were made to MSEB to reduce the con- 
tract demand initially to 400 KVA and again to 300 
KVA . 

(b) MH POONA (CH SC) . . . . . 

(i) Demand projected for supply of power was reasonably 
correct as the recorded maximum demand was only less 
by 2.9 KVA of the billing demand. 

(ii) Steps were taken to reduce the maximum contract de- 
mand on expiry of the period of agreement. 

(iii) Since the Comptroller and Auditor General of India 
(Def. Services) has not included this in their revised 

version of the Draft para, the loss assumed is nil. 



(c) MS (C-TH-C) . , . . . . 
Demand projected for supply of power was correct and, 

therefore, the question of taking steps to reduce the 
demand did not arise. 

(d) Remedial Measures 

(i) In  order to avoid such excess expenditure in future, the  
following remedial measures are suggested:- 

(aa) For any project the realistic estimate arrived a t  
for power consumption must be related to the time 
factor, ie., future requirements in phases of pre- 
determined dates, 

(bb) Any agreement must provide for an additionlre- 
duction in power requirement with a stipulated 
notice period. If necessary, the minimum/maximurn 
of additionlreduction at any one time may be sti- 
pulated. But under no circumstances should the  
agreement be one sided wherein only the pmdu- 
cer benefits while the consumer suffers. 

(cc) At laid down periodical intervals the actual con- 
sumption must be taken cognisance of by appoint- 
ed individuals in order to apply for any change in  
supply, if desired, in time. 

(dd) Legal Govt. service available must be made use 
of when necesary to safeguard the interest of con- 
sumer. As brought out in the present case, MSEB 
insisted on the agreement being signed first before 
considering any reduction in the contractual de- 
mands. The agreement took almost seven years t o  
be signed. Legal Govt. opinion could have been 
obtained during this period of time which is likely 
to have resulted in less excess expenditure. 

Opinion of the Commander, . . . . Sub-Area on the proceedings 
of a Court of Inquiry convened for investigating the circumstances 
under which provisions of contract with MSEB . . . . for supply of 
Electricity to Command Hospital Southern Command, AFMC . . . , 
and MH (G-T"H-C) . . . . could not be adhered to resulting in 
excess payment of Electricity Supply charge-, to MSEB . . . , 

I agree with the opinion of the Court. 



2. Remedial measures as outlined by the Court be implemented 
$30 avoid recurrence of such cases. 

(Sd/-****) 
Brigadier Commander. 

Opinion of the General Officer Commanding Headquarters . . . .Area on the proceeding of a Court of Inquiry convened for in- 
vestigating the circumstances under which pmvisions of contract 
with MSEB . . . . for supply of Electricity to Command Hospital 
Southern Command, . . . . AFME . . . . and MH (C-TH-C) . . . . could 
not be adhered to resulting in excess payment of electricity supply 
charges. 

I agree with the opinion of the Commander . . . . Sub-Area. 
2. Remedial measures as outlined by the Court be implemented 

t o  avoid recurrence of such cases. 
3. I t  is not possible to fix responsibility on any individual at this 

stage. I, therefore, recommend that the entire known loss amount- 
h g  to Rs. 1,83,946.40 be borne by the State. 

(Sd/-****) 
Maj. Gen. 

General Officer Commanding. 

Court of Inquiry-Excess Payment Electricity Board. . . . . . 
Reference your signal No. 3512351G(PS-I) dated 21st September, 

1974. 

2. Two copies of C of I proceedings pertaining to excesss payment 
of electricity charges to MSEB . . . . are forwarded herewith. 

3. This Headquarters agrees with the recommendations of GOC, 
. . . . Area. 

(Sdj-****) 
Brig. 

Brig. IC Adm. 
General Officer Commanding-in-Chief. 



APPENDIX I1 
(Vide Paragraph 3.33) 

Copy of A m y  Hearquarterzs, Engineer-idhiePs Branch letter No. 
20066168134, dated 23rd December, 1967 to the Chief Engineera, 
Smthernl Eastern(Central1 Western Comma*. 

SUBJECT: Excess Payment of Demund Charges. 
An instance has come to the notice of this HQ wherein at a cer- 

tain stati,on the IVLES obtained supply of electric energy from a 
State Electricity Board with the stipulation of anticipated Maximum 
Demand of 500 KVA. Later i t  was detected that the actual demand 
was only UOO KVA, based on capacity of the transformer installed 
In accordance with tariff for supply of Electricity of the State Elec- 
tricity Board, the MES were billed at 75 per cent of the anticipated 
Maximum Demand with the result that an extra expenditure of 
Rs. 5,400.00 per month was incurred for Demand Charges. 

2. I t  would be seen from the above that the peak load commit 
ment by the MES was far in excess of actual requirement and 
has become the subject matter of Draft Para for Audit Reporl 
(DS 1968). 

3. To avoid lapses of this nature will you please instruct aU 
concerned to ensure that the peak load requirements are indicated 
to the Supply Agency in accordance with realistic requirement. 
Your attention has already been drawn to this vide para 14 Section 
4 of the Minutes of the Chief Engineers/Commanders Conference, 
1967. 

4. Please also investigate the peak load requirements given to 
the Supply Agency and as actually existing at all stations so that 
such objections may not recur. 



APPENDIX XI1 
(Vide Paragraph 4.16) 

Proceedings of an additional Court o$ Inquiry assembled at GE 
. Ofice on the 19th April, 1974, by order of Stutiorr Commander, . . . . . .in order to enquire into the deficiencies in stockl af furni- 

ture. 
FINDINGS OF THE COURT 

'.Having checked the furniture held on charge of Supervisor 
B/S Gde, I . . . . . . . . . . .and having recorded the statement of wit- 
nesses, the Court finds that:- 

1. The net deficiencies amount to- 
(a) Rs. 42,961.55 (Rupees forty-two thousand, nine hundred 

and sixty one and paise fifty-five only) in respect 01 
items of furniture issued on loan to unauthorised 
persons. 

(b) Rs. 40,307.90 (Rupees forty thousand three hundred and 
seven and paise ninety only) in respect of items found 
deficient. 

2.. These deficiencie came to light during HandinglTaking over 
between Shri GS Sr'HARMA and Shri DD SHARMA, on 6 Nov., 
1971. 

3. Items of furniture have been issued to unauthorised persons 
on loan since 1966 and the loan vouchers have never been renewed. 

4. Items of furniture as reflected in Col. 5 of Appx. 'AB' cannot 
be recovered as the persons to whom these were issued on loan have 
either since been posted out or deny having ever accepted these 
on loan. 

5. The security set-up at the Furniture Yard, MES . . . . . ., was 
non-functional, therefore, a large quantity of components 01 items 
of furniture was misappropriated over a period of time. 

6. The above fact was brought to the notice of Shri BL Gulati 
the then BSO, by Shri NK Sarin, Supervisor B/S Gde 11, but no 
action was taken by Shri BL Gulati, who was performing the duties 
ef Security OfBcer. 



7. SHRI GS SHARMA, the Supervisor B[S Gde I, was reportedly 
found drunk during office hours 3 number of times during hir 
tenure of duty a t  MES, Mathura. 

* 

8. This was brought to the notice of the then GE IC-Major 
W A R E ,  but no action was taken to ensure that this did not 
undermine the efficient functioning of this branch of the 
~ a t h u r a .  i ' 

9. These deficiencies and irregular loss issue were never reflected 
in any Stock-Taking Preceedings prior to the Stock-Taking Board 
held on 30 June 72, although stock-taking of item-, of furniture is 
carried out twice annually. 

10. No action was ,taken to relieve Shri GS SHARMA of his 
duties as the stmeholder after it  was clearly evident time and 
again that he was functioning in a manner most negligent and 
irresponsible. 

OPINION OF THE COURT 

In the opinion of the Court the deficiencies in items of furni- 
ture held on charge of MES, Mathura. occurred due to :- 

(a) Large quantities of items of furniture having been issued 
on loan to authorised persons since 1966 and failure on 
the part of the store-holders to renew the loan vouchers 
or recover this furniture. 

(b) Lack of proper supervision and control by the superior 
officers at  MES, Mathura, since 1966. 

(c) Inefficiency and gross negligence on the part of Shri GS  
SHARMA, Supervisor BIS Gde 1, from . . . . . . . 

(d) Failure to carry out proper supervision and control on 
the part of the superior officers, especially during Shri 
GS SHARMA'S tenure. 

(e) Failure of all stock-taking board held prior to the Stock- 
Taking Board held on 3)3 June 72, to bring these ine- 
gularities/deficiencies to the notice of the higher autho- 
rities. 

(f) Inadequate security arrangements at the Furniture Yard. 

ADDITIONAL FINDING OF THE COURT 
1. There has been no cSlarge in the net deficiencies of furniture 

earlier traced by the board held on 28-672. 



2. Loan issues made tq unauthorbed dvilians or even authorid 
pmmamd, by the MES StafP, are not covered under MES NZes and 
am therefore legally incorrect. 

3. No discrepancy of furniture was traced/reported at the Idme 
01 handingltaking wer  between Shri W BHA'ITACHARYA end 
Shri G. S. SHARMA Supenrisors Gde I, during July 196% 

4. All the deficiencies of furniture etc. were located at the time 
d haadingltaking over between Shri G. S. SHARMA and Shri D. D. 
tZUUWA Supervisqrs Gde I, during Nov. 1971, for which S M  G, 
GHAJRMA d d  not account for judicially. 

OPINION OF THE COURT 

L The supervisor MES Staff failed in exerting proper and effective 
control over their subordinate and trace the ddciencies/discrepan- 
cies of furniture from time to time, during Shri G. S. SHARMA'S 
tenure. 

Z The responsibility of the deficiencyldiscrepancy discovered m 
0th Nov. 1971, and could not be accounted for by Shri G. S. S31ARMA 
Supervisor Gde I, devolves on him. 

RNDINGS OF THEn COURT 

1. Shri S. M. SIDDIQUI Supdt. B/R Gde-I did not carry out 
100 per c a t  physical check up of all the MES furniture, hold on 
charge af the ME3 during the year 1970 and 1971, while he was de- 
tained to do so by the G.E. . . . . . . . . . 

2. He was unaware of the fact that "loan issues" were not legal 
transactions. 

OPINION OF THE COURT 

Shri S. M. Siddiqui Supdt. B/R Gde-I is responsible for incorrect 
stack taking of the MES furniture held on the charge of G.E. . . . . . . 
during the year 1970 & 1971. 

R E C O ~ N D A T I O N  BY THE STATION COMMANDER 

I partially agree with the opinion 09 the Courts. 
2. In my opinion the loss of furniture is due to the following 

reastans: - 
(a) Due to the neglect on the part of the Superviscrr BIS T 

Shri G. S. Shanna, he was careless about the stack, the 



I physical custady of which was his responsibility. He did 
not exercise proper control over his work and subordi- 
nates. Also at the rtime of taking over from Shri B3IAT- 
TAClUWEE he did not show the deficiencies on account 
of furniture which was issued on loan by him. 

(b) Shri B. L. GULATI the then BSO is to I>e blamed for 
neglecting the security factor and not having proper super- 
vision and control over his subordinates. 

(c) The stock taking officer S~hri S. M. SIDDIQUI who carried 
out stock taking frw 1970 to 1971 also failed to perform 
his duty as he did not point out the deficiencies due to 
heavy issue of furniture on loan. 

(d) Due to the established practice in the Station to issue 
furniture on loan. 

(e) Due to rush of HandingjTaking orver work at  the time of 
move of HQ I Corps to Field Area. At that time it was 
beyond of Shri G. S. SHARMA Supervisor BIS I to con- 
trol handingjtaking over of furniture. 

3. Considering the heavy amount of loss it is recommended that 
partially it  should be borne by the STATE and partially as under 
by the individuals who have been blamed: - 

(a) Furniture issued on loan. 
(i) Furniture for the amount of Rs. 3161.50 which is irrecover- 

able from individuals on whom department has no hold, 
its lops should be borne by the STATE. 

(ii) Engineers should make all out effort to recover furni- 
ture worth Rs. 26931.65 issued on loan and for which loan 
vouchers are available. In case of any shsrt fall in the 
recover of furniture, a separate court of Inquiry will be 
o~dered to pin the responsibility and to recommena the 
disposal of the loss. 

@) Loss of Furniture due to deficiencies. 50 per cent of the 
total loss of Rs. 40307.90 i.e. Rs. 201501- be borne by the 
State and the remaining amount of Rs. 20153.90 be borne 
by the following individuals as under: - 

(i) Shri G. S. SHARMA Supervisor BIS I-Rs. 10077.45. 
The amount of Rs. 10077.45 should be borne by the indivi- 
dual fur the reasons given in para 2(a) above. He should 
also be debarred from being custodian of furniturelstare 



144 
for 3 years. After the expiry of this period the question 
of lifting this ban can be considered. His increment tor 
3 years with non-cumulative effect should be stopped. 

(ii) Shri 5. M. SIDDlQUl Supdt. BJR G&. I-Ra. 4030.18. 
The amount & Rs. 4030.18 should be recovered from him 
on account of his negligence as a stock taking officer. 

(iii) Shri B. L. GULATI BSO-Rs. 6046.27. The amount 03 
Rs. 6046.27 be recovered from him for reasons given in 
para 2 (b) above. 

Opinion of offg. C-der LUCKNOW Sub Area to investigate 
Into the circumstances under which the furniture held on charge of 
Supenisor B/S Gde. I MATHURA were found deficient on 6 Nov. 71. 

OPINION OF OFFG COMMANDER LUCKNOW SUB AREA 
MATHURA. 

I agree with the recommendation of Station Commander. 
2. I recommend that:- 

(a) Departmental disciplinary actiqn should be taken against 
Shri G. S. SHARMA B/S Gde, I and Rs. 10,077.00 
(Rupees ten thousand and seventy seven only) out of the 
total loss, be recovered as penal deduction from his pay 
and allowances. He will also be debarred for 3 years 
being the custodian of furniture/.Stores and increment for 
3 years with non-comulative effect should be stopped. 
The loss occurred due to negligent performance of duties 
on the part of the individual. 

(b) Departmental disciplinary action should be taken against 
Shri B. L. GULATI, BSO and Rs. 6j046.W) (Rupees six 
thousand and forty-six only) be recovered from his pay 
and allowances. Being a Security Officer, he failed k 
command and control in his subordinates. 

(c) Departmental disciplinary action should be taken again& 
Shri S. M. SIDDIQUI Supdt. B/R Gde. I and Rs. 4,030.00 
(Rupees four thousand and thirty only) out of the total, 
be recovered from his pay and allowances. Being a 
stock taking officer, he failed to perform his duties care- 
fully. 

(d) Total loss of Rs. 40307.90 (Rupees forty thousand 'three 
hundred seven and paise ninety only) less amount re- 
covered from the above individuals, be written off and 
borne by the State. 



RECOHMENDATION OF GENERAL OFFICER COMMANDING 
UTTAR PRADESH AREA ON T31[E COURT OF LNQUIEtY 
PROCEEDINGS HELD TO INVESTIGATE INTO THE 
CIRCUMSTANCES UNDER WHICH THE FURNITURE HELD 
ON CHARGE OF SUPERVISOR B/S Gde I MATHURA WHEN 
FOUND DEFICIENT ON 6 NOV., 1971. 

I partially agree with the opinion and recommendation of Sub 
Area Commander LUCKNOW. 

2. The detailed study of court of inquiry reveals that Zosses of 
furniture held on charge of GE(MES) MATHURA, 'have occurred 
due to careless and irresponsible actions on the part of the following 
MES/Army personnel : - 

(a) Shri G. S. SHARMA Supvr. BIS-Gde. I of CE CZ JABAE 
PUR then serving with GE (MES) MATHURA. 

He wa7 the furniture in-charge at MES MATHURA for the 
period fmm Jun., 69 to Dec., 1971. There were no dis- 
crepancies when he took charge which subsequently oc- 
curred due to irregular issue of furniture to defence civi- 
lianslprivate individuals, which could not be recovered 
later. Also he failed to carry out routine stock checking of 
furniture. 

(b) Shri R. L. GULATI who was the BSO as well as doing the 
duties of Security Officer, failed to exercise adequate 
supervision and control on Shri G. S. SHARMA 

(c) Shri S. M. SIDDIQUI B/R Gde I who was detailed as 
Stock Taking Officer from 1970 to 1971, failed to point out 
deficiencies in stocks of furniture. 

(d) Lack of supervision on part of Major S B Bavarc ~ h o  was 
the then GE MATHURA. 

3. In view of the above I direct that departmental disciplinary 
action be taken against the following hlES personnel:- 

(a) Shri G. S. SHARMA, Supvr. B/S Gde I, 
(b) Shri B. L. GULATI, BSO, 

(c) Shri S. M. SIIYDIQUI, B'R Gde I. 

4. In view of the fact that pro\-.'ion of Army Rule 187 were not 
complied with whilz recording the Court of Inquiry. I. direct that 
"Show cause" notice be served on IC-14349 Major S. B. Bavare. the 
then GE MATHURA for laxity of wipervision on the works of hi6 



nrbordinate. Necessary disciplinarylAdministrative action be sub- 
osquently taken; if necessary. 

5. I further direct that existing procedure of receipts, issues and. 
ctorage of furniture with security measures at MES furniture yard 
Mathura be thoroughly scrutinised by a board of officers to avoid 
recurrence of such lapses. 

6. Since the loss is due to negligence on the part of person men- 
tioned in Para 2 above, I recommend the total loss amounting to 
RP. 40397.90 be borne as under:- 

(a) Rs. 4030.00 (Rupees four thousand thirty only), 10 per 
cent of the total loss be recovered from the pay and al- 
lowances of Shri G. S. SHARMA Supervisor BIS Gde I. 

(b) Rs. 4030.00 (Rupees four thousand thirty only), 10 per 
cent of the total loss be made good by Shri B. L. GULATI, 
the then BSO of GE (MES) MATHURA. 

(c) Rs. 2015.00 (Rupees two thousand fifteen only), 5 per cent 
of the total loss be recovered from Shri S. M. SIDDIQUI 
B@ Gde I. 

(d) Remaining loss amounting to Rs. 30,232.90 (Rupees thirty 
thousand two hundred thirty two and paise ninety ~ n l y )  
be written off and borne by the State. 

OPINION OF GENERAL OFFICER COMMANDING IN CHIEF, 
CENTRAL COMMAND ON THE COURT OF INQUIRY PRO- 
CEEDING HELD TO INVESTIGATE INTO THE CIRCUM- 
STANCES UNDER WHICH ITEMS ON FURNITURE HELD ON 
CHARGE OF SUPERVISOR BIS GDE . . . . . . WERE FOUND 
DEFICIENT ON 6 NOV., 71. 

I partially agree with the recommendation of GOC U. P. Area. 

2. Irregular issues of furniture on loan to unauthorised persons 
Defence civilians as well as private individuals, had been going on 
from the furniture held on charge of the GE MATHURA for some 
years. It  is difficult to say when the practice started hut it had 
been going on at least since 1966. The plea of the higher supervi- 
sory staff as also other concerned with the issues and accounting of 
furniture that they were not aware of this irregular practice and 
that Shri G. S. Sharma Supvr. B/S Gde I made the Irregular issues 
on his own and therefore he alone is responsible for the lapse, is un- 
convincing. 



3. Since the origin of the irregular issue of furniture cannot be 
Rxed with any degree of certainty, blame cannot be judiciously 
apportioned a t  this stage, to all the persons concerned from the in- 
ception of the irregularity. However, Shri G. S. Sharma when he 
took over charge in Jun., 69, not only continued the practice, but alsu 
failed to check that the items shown as issued on loan, physically 
existed. Thus he further compounded the irregularity. In the 
absence of any proper check, a large quantity of the furniture issued 
to unauthorised persons cannot, now be retrieved. The stock takers 
during the years 1969-70 and 71 are also to blame to some extent. 

4. The large scale deficiency of furniture held on charge of the 
GE MATHURA, occurred due to irregular issues to unauthorised 
persons, lack of proper supervision, control and periodic checks; as 
also indifferent stock taking. The move of troops from MATHURA 
in Oct. 71 for operations, may also have contributed in some mea- 
sures to the deficiencies. Shri G. S. Sharma, Supvr. B/S Gde I is 
mainly to blame for the deficiency of furniture. However, the other 
persons concerned with the issue and accounting of furniture, as 
well as the GE MATHURA and the other supervisory staff, cannot 
altogether be absolved of blame. 

5. I direct that:- 

(a) the irregular issue of furniture or for that matter any other 
items, from the MES on lo.an or otherwise to unauthorised 
persons will be stopped. It will be ensured by the GE 
and other Supervisory staff, that furniture is properly 
accounted for and checked and strict supervision is eser- 
cised. to prevent any such irregularity in the future. 

(b) all out efforts are made by the GE MATHURA tba recover 
items of furniture costing Rs. 26931.65 (Rupees twenty 
six thousand nine hundred thirty one and paise sixty five 
only) issued on loan to individuals who are still in service. 
This will be progressed vigorously, and the vaiue of those 
items of furniture which still remain unrecovered by 31 
Aug. 75 intimated. 

(c) disciplinary action be progressed against individuals as 
directed by the GOC U. P. Area. However, in the case of 
Shri B. L. GULATI then BSO, Mathura the facts that the 
transactions relating to the years 1969 and i97G have al- 
ready become time barred by virtue of Artfcle 351-A 
CSR: that he was reverted for his unsatisfactory per-- 



formance of duties While p s t e d  at Mathura, furthermore 
that he has already retired from service on 30 Jun. 74 will 
be given due consideration. 

(d) in addition to the individuals already mentioned by the 
GOC U. P. Area, administrative action will also be insti- 
tuted against Shri G. S. Bhattacharyae, Supvr Gde I far 
making irregular issue of furniture to unauthorised per- 
sons; and 

(e) while fhalising disciplinary action against Shri G. S. 
Sharma recovery to the extent considered appropriate by 
the competent disciplinary authority will also be ordered, 
keeping in view the gravity of the offence and his in- 
volvemen t. 

6. I recommend that the entire loss of Rs. 83,26!4.45 (Rupees eighty 
.three thousand two hundred sixty nine and paise forty five only) 
due to deficiencies of furniture, less the amount which may be re- 
rovered from Shri G. S. SHARMA in accordance with the orders of 
the competent disciplinary authority, and the cost of such furniture 
as  may be subsequently recovered from individual to whom it has 
been issued on loan. be written off and borne by the Slate. 



APPENDIX IV . .  . 

(Vide Paragraph 5.17) 

Copies of correspondence exchanged between the Ministry of 
Defence and Central Bureau of Investigation, in regard to conducting 

a n  enquiry into the actual number of trees planted. 

1. Copy of D.O. letter No. F. 9/5/Vig/74 dated 27 April, 1974 from 
the Dy. Secretary (Vig). Ministry of Defence to the D.I.G., C.B.I. 

Enclosed please find copy of a draft Audit Para on Arboriculture 
at an Air Force Station, which has been approved by the Comp- 
troller and Auditor General of India for inclusion in the Audit Re- 
port (Defence Services) for the year 1972-73. The Air Force 
Station referred to in the Audit Para is the m e  at Kalaikunda. 
T h e  Audit Paragraph is self-explanatory. 

It wilI be seen from the Para that the Station Commander, Air 
Force Station, had pointed out to the Air Command in September, 
1972 that the Court of Enquiry had confined its findings to the mor- 
tality rate. He stressed that the fact whether such a large number 
of plants had actually been planted needed investigation by an 
independent agency like the SPE in view of the fact that: the 
scope of departmental enquiry would be limited to evidence o r  
record only. No investigation by the SPE was, however, sought 
'by the E-in-C's Branch as they were of the opinion that entrusting 
the case further investigation to the SPE would not serve any puf- 
pose since the findings of the Board of Officers held in November, 
1971 had not blamed any person in particular ur attributed the loss 
,to theft or fraud. 

We, however, feel that the case can be properly explained before 
'the Public Accounts Committee, if we have evidence to show that 
altogether 51.657 trees had actually been planted. We shall be 
grateful if you could kindly arrange to have this matter investigated 
by the SPE on a very urgent basis and let us know the result of the 
investigation well before the Audit Report comes before the Public 
Accounts Committee for consideration some time during August- 
September. 1974. 



The l d  MES and Air Force Authorities concerned are being 
rquested to extend necessary cooperation and facilities b the SPE 
tor the purpoce of carrying out the required investigation. 

2. Copy of D.O. letter No. 1/35/74-GWIII/Ca1/4485 dated 23-5-1974 
from DIG, CBI, to the Dy. Secretary (Vig.), Ministry of Defence. 

Kindly refer to your letter No. F. 9/5/Vig/74 dated 27th April, 
1974 regarding plantation of trees at Air Force Station,. . . . . . . . . . . . 

We have examined the matter at our end. From the perusal of 
p u r  letter and the enclosures, it appears no reliable material or 
evidence as now likely to become available, regarding the point as 
to whether such a large number of eees were actually planted at 
all. The manner in which the number of trees, which were to be 
pIanted, was omitted fiom some of the sanctions, and the question 
as to why no reports regarding the actual planting were sent in. 
and also the question of proper utilisation of funds, to the extent of 
Rs. 1.3 lakhs, which perhaps was not kept under strict control by 
the authorities then concerned, are matters which can still be persued 
departmentally with a view to determine the personal liability and 
responsibility of the concerned officers. You may like to consider 
this and if possible take suitable administrative action if and when 
possible. 

We may add that this is a very old matter pertaining to the years 
1964 and 1967. It will be a waste of the limited resources of the 
CBI to take over this investigation at this belated stage more so, as 
explained above, the exercise is not likely to yield the desired 
results. 



Comolidoted Statement of main C o n c l u h / R e c o m m e n d a ~  

- 
S1. Para Ministry, 
No. No. Department Condusiom/Rec~mmendationo 

concrrnad 

I .  r .a7 Department of De- The Committee are concerned that on account of alleged &- 
fence Production cultiesldelay in the halisation of the design of vital components 

of an ammunition required urgently for a major weapon in use, an 
expenditure of Rs. 8.78 lakhs* out of the total expenditure of 2 
Rs. 18.12 lakhs** incurred on its indigenous development and 
manufacture proved to be infructuous. The Committee note that 
the project for the development and manufacture of the ammunition 
was launched as an emergency measures after the Kutch Operation 
in 1965 and as time was of the essence od the programme, it could 
not wait for the detailed and meticulous planning that one would 
acpacb in projecta of this nature. Orders for the manufacture of 

.*Value of components manufactured (R8.14.68 lab) and expenditure on development (IZI. 3.44 I&hr). 



the ammunition had, therefore, been placed on the Director General 
Ordnance Factories. in November 1965, after the ballistic parameters 
of the ammunition had been cleared by the Research & Develupmt 
Organisation. in spite of the fact that the design of the vital cam- 
ponents like cartridge cases and propellent had not been completed 
in all its aspects, in the expectation of a reasonable prospect of the 
designs being developed by the Armament Research and Develarp 
ment Establishment. Unfortunately, however, this expectation did 
not materialise and even before the correct design of the propellent 
could be made available to the Director General, Ordnance Facto- 

I 
ries, the requirement for the ammunition was said to have ' d h p  g 
peared', necessitating the cancellation d the orders for -the 
ammunition in November 1968 and the premature abandonment of 
the project. 

Department of De- The Cormnittee are eonseious that as this was a vital weapon 
fence Production for the Armv, a certain amount of risk had to be taken in this 

case on strategic considerations. It would, however, appear from 
the facts stated below that there had been a certain lack of planning 
and forethought in the indigenous manufacture of the ammunition 
and that adequate watch and control over the project at Govern- 
meat level was lacking: 



(i) Though the shelf life of 15 years of the available stocks of 
imported ammunition for the gun, which 'were of 1963145 
vintage, had expired much earlier and, therefore, kdtl 
not be relied upon, the decision to manufacture the 
ammunition indigenously had been taken only in 1965(some 
five to seven years after the ammunition had outEvkil 
its usefulness. Since it was pointless having the gun3 
without the necessary ammunition, and the indigedd 
supplies of an alternative weapon under production' were 
also not coming up fast enough, the committee are 
unable to understand why the indigenous manufacture 
of the ammunition had not been thought of earlier than , 
in 1965 or recourse had not been taken to essential im- 
ports without waiting for some sort of a crisis to develop. 

CA 
(ii) Since initial difficuIties in the development of an ahso- 

lete ammunition were only to be expected. Government 
ought to have (after having decided belatedly to under- 
take its indigenous manufacture) contemporaneously and 
continuously monitored the progress of the project and 
ensured that it was completed with the requisite vigaur 
and all possible speed. Unfortunately, however, this does 
appear to have been done. as a result of which 
a vital project could not produce results when they were 
needed most. , - 

(iii) Prompt and adequate action had also not been taken to 
curtail the manufacturing programme when it was 

--.-- ---- . -,- -- - - - .  . -- - 



known that the design of the ammunition had run ink, 
diiiicultiea and that %he gun for which the ammunition 
was intended was also in the process of being ph& out 
of service. Since the orders for the primer (cost Ek 4.24 
lakhs) had been placed only in August 1967 and the Mot 
batch of cartridge cases produced to the latest deeilpl 
were also only under proving trials at that time, 
action should have been taken after the August 3.967 
meeting of the Armament Committee either to cancel 
the orders or to ask the Director General, Ordname Fac- 
tories t~ go slow with the manufacture of the ammuni- 2 
tioD and its components. Perhaps, in that case, much * 
infmctuous expenditure, particularly on the artrid@ 
cases and the primer, could have been largely awided. 

The Committee consider that the omission to take certain @le- 
mentary measures in this case has been regrettable. They would 
urge Government to benefit from the experience of this case and 
evolve a suitable machinery for keeping a close and careful watcb 
over the progress of such vital projects. Better coordination dmaM 
also be maintained between the wers and the production units m 
that variations in demand on amaunt of changes in requirements 
are communica.ted at  the earliest. Similarly, where difficulties aop 
up in the development and manufacture of an item, a closer bison 



should be maintained by the Director General, Ordnance Faetdes, 
with the indentors with a view to making sure that the users' de- 
mand has not, in the meantime, changed radically or ceased to 
exist and that expenditure on a developmental effort is not con- 
tinued unnecessarily. 

The reasons for the Research and Development Organisation 
faking over three years to design the propellent have also not been 
satisfactorily explained. The delay in the present case under- 
scores the need for gearing up the R&D effort which must be able 
to meet the challenges and changing needs of the Armed Forces. 
There is no dearth of talent in the country, and truly earnest re- 
search in indigenous design of weapons and other equipment with 
a view to self-reliance in this vital sphere is called for. 

The Committee have been informed that while the boxes (cost 
Rs. 6.92 lakhs) manufactured for packing the ammunition had been 
fully utilised, after suitable modifications, for packing grenades, i t  
was proposed to recycle and utilise the cartridge cases,  rimer and 
the propellent with a total utilisation scrap value of Rs. 3.06 lakhs 
as against their original book value of Rs. 7.77 lakhs. They would 
like to know whether this process has since been completed and 
the components utilised. 

The Committee are perturbed that on account of soil subsidence 

Ministry of Defence arising out of variations in the sub-soil condition, certain major 
6. 1.42 __ - - 



defects, such as cracking of floors and walls, tilting of columns, dif- 
ferential settlements, etc., had developed in a workshop building, 
constructed as part of a naval project a t  a cost of Rs. 19.04 lakhs 
(cost of pile foundation Rs. 1.77 lakhs and cost of superstructure 
Rs. 17.27 lakhs). Though i t  has been claimed that the variations 
in the condition of the sub-soil strata could not be anticipated and 
that 'whatever care could possibly have been taken was indeed 
taken a t  the time of construction', the Committee find that the 
Director General of Works, to whom a copy of the report regarding 
the defects noticed in the building had been sent in June 1971, had 
clearly observed that the defects had occurred because of the lack 
of certain precautions that should have been taken during execution. 
Besides, the findings and resmmendations of a Technical Committee 
appointed subsequently to conduct an enquiry into the causes of the 
defects, also seem to suggest that the normal care and precautions 
which could and should have been taken had been lacking. This 
has led inevitably to delay in the full utilisation of a building ur- 
gently required, and also avoidable additional expenditure which 
in this case amounted to as much as 74 per cent of the original cost 
of the building. 

7. 3-43 hiinistry of Defence While the Committee are not unwilling to concede that civil 
engineering construction in a 'deserted' coastal area could conceiv- 
ably have its gwn built-in hazards and that it might not, perhaps, 



have been practicable to determine, by soil investigation the charac- 
teristics and soil conditions of every inch of such an area, they 
find it difficult to accept the Ministry's contention that there was 
no comparable construction in  the area at  that time (1968) from 
which information in regard to the soil conditions and foundations 
could be gathered. The area selected for the location of the naval 
project can hardly be considered 'deserted' in  the context of the 
considerable marine activity already under way there. It appears, 
on the evidence and from the observations of the Technical Com- 
mittee, that there had been some indecision in regard to the design 
parameters of the building, because of what has been described as 
'practical difficulties' in reconciling the divergent views of the spe- 
cialists who had prepared the project report, the users and the con- 

n tractors, and also the tendency on the part of the specialists and u 

the users to change the design details. Consequently, the pile 
foundations had been com'pleted before the design of the building 
was finalised. These alleged difficulties notwithstanding, the 
Committee feel that it should have been possible, ab initio, to  have 
drawn upon the expertise and services of a panel of experts in the 
field and the precautionary steps, safeguards, etc., to be taken deter- 
mined. before embarking on the execution of costly civil engineer- 
ing w ~ k s ,  which needed also to be completed expeditiously. The 
Committee regret that even such obviously basic pre-requisites as  
a laboratoq and a soil and foundation engineer had not been 
provided sufficiently in advance, despite the magnitude and strate- 
gic importance of the project. 



8. 2.44 Ministry of Defence According to the Technical Committee, one of the factors which 
might have contributed to the settlement and displacement of the 
piles was the flow of sub-soil material caused by the presence, in 
the vicinity, of a dredged channel and its flooding in November 
1970. The Technical Committee had gone on to ob&rve that the 
flow of sub-soil material could have been prevented by a diaphragm 
wall, which, if constructed earlier, would have added to the etabi- 
lity of the building. Admittedly, the need for a diaphragm wall had 
not been appreciated in the initial stages of the project and when 
this factor was considered subsequently, a view appears to have 

ul been taken that the construction of a diaphragm wall would be oo 
time-consuming and would also involve the outlay of several mores. 
I t  had, therefore, been decided to take a 'calculated risk' and to 
proceed first with the construction of the building and to construct 
the diaphragm wall later on. While it is a moot point whether the 
building under construction could not have been protected, as the 
work progressed, by confining the construction of the diaphragm 
wall with reference to the particular area occupied by that 
building alone, the Committee feel that, wen in the absence of the 
diaphragm wall (the cost of construction of which would have been 
disproportionate to the cost of the building), the possibility of 
soil subsidence in an area which was known to be 'treacherous' 
could have been foreseen and guarded against by driving the piles 



into the rock (which was available a t  depths of 20 to 33 m e t t q  
instead of allowing them to merely rest on the rock bed  I t  woula: 
therefore, appear that adequate thought had not been given initially 
to the proper designing of the foundation, which is regrettable. 

These technical aspects apart. the Committee are distressed that 
there was onsiderabIe delay in  informing the contractor (Cemen- 
tation Co. Ltd.). who had constructed the foundation for the 
building, that the piles had failed to carry the guaranteed load and 
that he should undertake necessary remedial measures. Thougb 
defects in the building had started developing from November 1970 
onwards. the contractur was informed of the defects only in Decem- 
ber 1971 for the first time and it was some six months later in 
June 1972. that the contractor was told that remedial measufes 
to relieve the extra stress on the  piles to avoid further failure 
had been were being taken by the department at his risk 
and expense As a result of this long delay. the conkactor 
had put forth the plea that as the maintenance period of twelve 
calendar months from the date of completion of the work was over, 
there was no obligation on his part to carry out any remedial 
measures. This delay has been attributed to the uncertainty then 
prevailing about the cause of the defects and the extent of liability 
of the contractor for the defects noticed. In any case. the Commtttee 
feel that adequate s t e p  ought to have been taken. as soon as the 
defects came to notice Responsibility should, therefore. be fixed 
far the lapse and appropriate action taken. 



10. 2.46 Ministry of Defence The Committee have learnt that the case was referred to 
arbitration, on the advice of the Law Ministry, and that the con- 
tractor had obtained an injunction in a court against the arbitration 
proceedings. This seems to be a familiar story which is rather 
irritating. Where matters stand at present in this regard should 
be intimated to the Committee. 

I 

Though the Technical Committee have expressed the opinion 
that, by and large, there had been no major deficiency in site 
investigation or execution, the Committee would seek some further 
reassurance in this regard, in view especially of the fact that the 
contractor (Cementation Co. Ltd.) has come to their notice some 
what adversely in connection with its performance in the Naval 
Dockyard at another station [aide the Committee's 210th Report 
(Fifth Lok Sabha)] and in the Mormugao Port [examined in the 
Committee's 230th Report (Fifth Lok Sabha) 1. 

In Paragraphs 2.84 and 2.109 of their 19th Report (Fourth Lok 
Sabha), the Committee had commented upon instances of lapses 
In working out the technical requirements of works an& had re- 
commended, inter alia, that the relevant authorities should take 
steps to ensure that technical sanctions were accorded only after 
an examination of all aspects of a project. The present case under 



examination is one more instance of defective construction 6f 
storage accommodation, which has been attributed by a Technical 
Board to the structural design of the building not being strong 
enough to take the wind-loads and also to poor workmanship by the 
contractor (Ms. B. Ranga Rao & Partners). 

As regards the inadequacy of the structural design pointed out 
by the Techmcal Board, it was contended by a spokesman of the 
project that there was no defect in the design and that the Technical 
Board presumably had the future in mind while making its 
observations. The Committee are, however, unable to accept this 
contention. In view of the fact that the area was known to be 
cyclonic and the wind force, during a7storm, could be admittedly 
very high, the Committee are of the view that this factor should 
have been taken into account while finalising the design of the 
building and the masonry made strong enough to withstand 
the anticipated wind speeds in the area. Besides, from 
a perusal of the proceedmgs of the Technical Board, the Committee 
find that there is no ambiguity in the Board's findings, which has 
clearly stated that the tensile stresses were such that the masonry 
could not have withstood them and that the designer had taken a 
risk by providing pillars in mansonry which were weak in tension. 
It is, therefore, evident that the design of the building was defective. 

The Additional Secretary of the Ministry has been good enough 
to admit that the design and execution have both been defective 
and has informed the Committee that the Director General of the 
Naval Project had been asked to obtain the explanation of the ofi- 

- - - - - -- -- - - 
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cers concerned Considerable time having elapsed since then. the - 
Committee trust that the process would have been completed by 
now and would like to be apprised of the outcome and the action, 
if any, taken against the officers found responsible for the defective 
design as well as laxity in supervising the contractor's work. 

.\iinistl.y of Defince The Committee note that the defects in the damaged building 
had been rectified. as a cost of Rs. 86,063, a t  the contractor's risk 
and expense, and that the case had been referred to arbitration a t  
the contractor's instance. Though the arbitrator had awarded a 

OI sum of Rs. 19,833 only in favour of Government, the award has u 
been challenged by the contractor in a court. The Committee. 
would like to be informed of the present position of this case and. 
i f  it is still pending in a court of law. they would uyi .  Governmenf 
to ensure its expeditious disposal. 

In paragraph 3.181 to 3.189 of their 69th Report (Fourtb Lok 
Sabha),  the Committee had dealt with a case of excess:payment of 
electricity charges at a station as a result of unrealistic assessment 
of the power requirements. After this case had come to notice, 
instructions were issued by the Army Headquarters, in .  Deoember 
1967'. stressing the need for correctly assessing the pea t  load re- 
quirements in future and for reviewing the demands already cow- 
jracted for on the basis of actual requirements. Yowever, twa n)or$ 



such cases of excess payment, amounting to Rs. 4.36 lakhs, have 
again been hjghlightcd in the Audit paragraph under examination 
That such avoidable expenditure should continue to recur is a matter 
of serious concern. 

The Committee note that in the first case relating to an Armed 
Forces Medical College, the contract demand had been increased. by 
the MES authjorities from 312 5 KVA to 625 KVA, keeping in view 
the works in progress and a proposed hospital complex even prior 
ro the assembling of the recce-cum-siting board and before the ne- 
cessity of the project had been accepted by Government. While the 
reasons for this unusual keenness are not very clear in the absence 
of the relevant records, the Committee have been informed that while 
the maximum demand for all the loads in the Armed Forces Medical 
College. on the basis of projected forecasts. worked out to about 
310 KW. the Garrison Engineer had erroneously indicated, in the 
application made to the electricxty company, that a further load of 
350 KW would be requlred in addition to the existing load of about 
150 KW. and sanction was given accordingly by the Government of 
Maharashtra. Though a Court of Inquiry assembled in November 
I973 to probe Into the matter had found no justification for applying 
for the additional demand of 350 KW, it was m t  possible to fix 
reswnsibility for the lapse, since the records justifying the increase 
of thrl demand were stated to be not available and many of the 
officers involved had either retired or expired In the cirmmstan- 
crs, the Committee have to remain content with expressing their 
t]issatisfaction over the manner in which this case had been handled- 

-- - - - - - -  __ - _I__ 



18. 3.36 Ministry of Defence The Committee regret that while a peculiar sense of urgency 
had been displayed in this case in increasing the demand, the samc 
sense of urgency was lacking in concluding the necessary agree- 
ment to give effect to the increased contract demand, which appears 
to have been executed only as late as in August 1971, some eight 
years after applying for the increase. Since the State Electricity 
Board, approached in December 1967 for a reduction in the contract 
demand to 400 KVA,, had insisted on the execution of the agree- 
ment in respect of the contract demand of 625 KVA as a pre-condi- 
tion for reducing the demand, it was certainly imperative to fina- 
lise this long-pending issue and avoid unnecessary excess expendi- 
ture. As pointed out by the Court of Inquiry, the procedural diffi- 
cslties involved in signing the agreement could have been resolved 
earlier by obtaining legal opinion. In case difficulties still persisted, 
efforts ought to have been made to iron out these difference a t  
Government level. Regrettably, these steps do not appear to have 
been taken to safeguard Government's financial interests. 

In the light of the explanation furnished by the Ministry about 
the second case relating to the supply of electricity for Defence 
laboratories and the findings of the Court of Inquiry, the Committee 
will confine themselves to only one aspect of the matter. The Com- 
mittee find that the Court of Inquiry, assembled in March 1974, to 
go into the lapses in this case, fix responsibility and suggest remedial 



measures, had held the view that as there was no permanent agree- 
ment entered into with the Andhra Pradesh State Electricity Board 
by the Military Engineer Services, there was no need as such to 
teview the requirements by the inspecting officers. The C o u t t e e  
are unable to accept this contention. In  order to safeguard the 
financial interests of Government and in view of the uncertainty 
over the actual requirements of power by the laboratories, the MES 
authorities ought to have kept the position continuously under re- 
view, in consultation with the users, and taken timely action to 
reduce the contract demand when the actual/revised requirenlents 
of the laboratories became known. 

As regards regularisation of the losses arising from these transac- 
tions, the Committee have learnt that in respect of the first case, 
the State Electricity Board has been approached for refund of the $ 
excess charges and that if these efforts failed the case would be 
referred to arbitration. As for the second case, the Chief Engineer 
concerned has been asked to regularise the excess payment in view 
of the fact that no individual had been held to be responsible for 
ithe lapse. The Committee would like to know the latest position 
in this regard. 

Apart from the formality of regularising the losses, the Commit- 
tee feel, that the Ministry should also analyse the reasons for the 
lapses that occurred in these two cases and prescribe effective reme- 
dial measures for the future. In this connection the Committee note. 
that the Courts of Inquiry which examined these cases have alsc 
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suggested certain remedial measures. The Committee would urge 
Government to go ahead with the task of evolving uniform guide- 
lines in this regard rather than leaving the initiative entirely to the 
individual units concerned. 

.flinistry of Defence The Committee take a very serious view of the lapses disclosed 
bv the Court of Inquiry in this case over the issue and accountal of 
furniture in a Military Engineer Services division. I t  is distressing 
that large scale deficiencies in stock of furniture (Rs. 40,655) and 
irregular issues of furniture, valued a t  Rs. 80,484, on loan to un- 
authorised persons (Defence and Civilian personnel as well as pri- 
vate individuals) had continued, almost unabated, over a period 
of five pears. The deficiencies and irregular issues have been 8w 
buted. mter a h .  by the Court of Inquiry, to lack of proper super- 
vision and control by the superior officers. non-functional nature 
of the security arrangements at the Furniture Yard. (on account of 
which a large quantity of components of items of furniture was 
misappropriated over a period of time), inefficiency and gross negli- 
gence on the part of a Supervisor. Barrack Stores, Gade I, entrusted' 
with the responsibility of store-keeping and also perfunctory stock 
verification. 

The Committee have been informed that on the basis of the 
findings of the Court of Inquiry and the opinions expressed by tbe . - 



~ e n e r a l  Otscer Cornmanding-in-Chief, Central Command, on the 
r~commendations of the Court and the senior Army officers, the 
Chief Engineer, Central Command, was instructed to initiate neces- 
sary disciplinary action against the individuals concerned and to 
get the losses regdarised. In view of the gravity of the lapses, and 
such examples of irresponsibility as the supervisor Bamack Store 
being found drunk while on duty several times, the Committee 
wish that action has been decided upon and exemplary punishment 
meted out to the officials who have been found remiss in the dis- 
charge of their responsibilities. While the Committee would like 
to know the action taken in this regard, they, however, note that 
according to the recommendations of the General Officer Command- 
ing-in-Chief, Central Command, the entire loss, on account of defici- 

u encies and irregular issues of furniture, less the amount which might 3 
be remvered from the supervisor Barrack Store in accordance with 
the orders of the competent disciplinary authority and the cost of 
such furniture as may be subsequently recovered from individuals 
to whom it had been issued on loan, is to be written off and borne 
by the State. The Committee are, however, of the view that the 
question of the State bearing any l~oss on this account should be 
examined afresh and concerted attempts made, instead, to recover 
the losses from the individuals found guilty of such grave dereliction 
of duty. 

-do - The Committee note that out of the furniture. valued at Rs. 80,484, 
24. 4.19 ! irregularly issued on loan as in December 1971, furniture worth 

RS. 55,856.35 had been recovered from the loanees till January 1975 _-- - - - - - - - - - - - - - - -- - -- 



and that the concerned Garrison Engineer had been asked to make 
all-out efforts to  recover the remaining items of furniture. The 
Committee would like to know the progress in this regard so far. 

25 - 4.20 Ministry of Defence Though an instance of this nature has been detected at only one 
station. i t  could well be that the irregularities disclosed in the 
present case are only symptomatic of the position obtaining in other 
Militarv Engineer Services divisions. The Committee would, there- 
fore, like the Ministry of Defence to carefully review the position in 
regard to the isuue and accountal of furniture a t  other MES divisions 

n also with a view to ensuring that similar instances of irregularities 
and misconduct do not prevail. 

The facts brought out in the preceding paragraphs in regard to 
the execution, for camouflage purposes, of an arboriculture scheme 
at an Air Force Station give rise to serious misgivings in the mind 
of the Committee. Judging from the findings of the different Courts 
of Inquiry and the conflicting views expressed on this case by the 
Military Engineer Services and the Air Force authoitiea, and in the 
absence of adequate remrded evidence for the purchase of seeds and 
saplings, completion of various jobs, handing and taking over of the 
trees claimed to have been planted as well as for the alleged destruc- 
tion of a large number of trees by accidental outbreaks of fire, the 
Committee cannot accept the plea that out of the total number of 



51,6.57 trees claimed to have been planted, at a cost of Rs. 1.31 lakhs, 
as many as 30.212 trees (58 per cent) had been destroyed by fire and 
another 18,315 trees (35 per cent) had failed to take root. On the 
basis of the evidence made available to them, the Committee are 
inclined to agree with the Commander of the Air Force Station who 
felt that the fact whether such a large number of trees had actually 
been planted needed investigation by an independent agency. 

Though the Defence Seci etary also conceded during evidence 
that 'there are many tragedies in this case' and that he hardly had 
any justification to offer for the figures indicated in the Audit para- 
graph, he informed the Committee that some of the documents which 
were reported to be untraceable earlier had been traced subsequentiy 
and records had also been found to exist in respect of some of the ; 
fires. After the Committee had taken up examination of this case, 
the Deputv Secretary (Vigilance) in the Defence Ministry had also 
been appointed as an Inquiry Officer to investigate various aspects 
of the case. Much time has elapsed since then. and the Committee 
expect that these enquiries have been completed The findings of 
the Inquiry Officer and the subsequent action, if any, taken in this 
regard should, in some detail, be intimated to the Committee. 

Perhaps the picture would have been different if this work had 
been initially entrusted not to the Military Engineer Services, but to 
the Forest Department which has the requisite competence and 
expertise. Apart from the expenditure incurred on the arboriculture 
scheme proving tc: be infructuous, the camouflage needs of the Air 

-- - - -  



Force Station have also not been adequately met. The Ministry, 
wiser after the event, have now decided to entrust the arboriculture 
work to the State Forest Departments. The Committee trust that 
the results will perhaps be happier. 

29. 5.31 Ministry of Defence Ihcidentally, the Court of Inquiry assembled in November 1971 
is foand to have observed, inter alia, that the projects being old; all 
persons concerned and the relevant information were not available. 
Appaltntly, there were a number of missing links which had not 
been satisfactorily explained. The Committee fail to understand 
why the off~cers concerned had not been summoned from other - .* 
stations and the position clarified before the Court. The Engineering 0 

authorities, however, contended that the non-production of the 
relevant witnesses and documents before the Court of Inquiry had 
not been brought to their notice earlier. The Committee take a 
serious view of this lapse and would like to be informed of the 
correct factual position in this regard which was also to be gone 
into by the Inquiry Oficer. 

The Committee consider it strange that while ordering, earlier, 
in March 1970, and on his own initiative, the assembly of a Court of 
Inquiry to check and ascertain the tr& plantation casualties wnder 
the arboriculture scheme, the Commander of the Air Force Station 
had appointed one of the witnesses as a Member of the Court. I t  



also appears that some of the MES personnel concerned had declined 
to tender evidence before the Court in the absence of suitable orders 
from the engineer channels. Thus, the Court could not complete its 
proceedings and by the time the necessary permission was accorded, 
in July 1970, by the Commander Works Engineer, the inquiry itself 
had been abandoned. The Committee are dissatisfied with the 
manner in which this issue has been handled. As pointed out else- 
where in this Report. Government must ensure that necessary 
inquiries, whenever considered appropriate, are held soon after the 
event so that prompt remedial measures can be taken. It  should also 
be ensured that such inquiries are conducted, as far as possible, with 
the utmost objectivity and by persons who are entirely unbiased 
and unconnected with the cases under scrutiny. 

Y 
4 

Ministry of Defence The theft of 3.358 kilograms (value Rs. 1.15 lakhs) of an important 
Department of De- and costly raw material, required for the production of a special 
fence Production type of strengthened steel, in,the premises of the Port Trust, causes 

grave concern to the Committee. As has been rightly pointed out 
by the General Oflicer Commanding, Bengal Area. apart from the 
immediately ascertainable monetary loss arising out of this case, the 
invisible loss in terms of time, effort and foreign exchange and the 
profits accruing to the unscrupulous purchasers of the rare, imported 
material, would be many times more than the physical loss. 

The Committee observe that the Port authorities had not been 
infermed that the imported consignment was an important raw 
material and that the Fort Trust had stated, after the occurrence 



of the theft, that, if this fact had been known, "strong prwautionary 
measures could have been arranged." This, unfortunately, had not 
been considered necessary because i t  was assumed that the Port 
Trust was already in possession of the relevant documents and, 
therefore, had full knowledge of the valuable nature of the consign- 
ment. The Committee are, however, of the opinion that the mere 
fact that the POI* authorities were in possession of the documents 
did not mean that they really appreciated the value and importance 
of the consignment from the consignee's point of view. Indeed, 
whenever scarce and strategic stores are imported from abroad, the 
Port authorities should invariably be informed precisely and suitably 
of the importance of adequate precautionary measures being taken 
to safeguard such stores by keeping them in 'lock-fast' or other 
security areas. The Committee stress that there should be close 
coordination between the consignees, the Embarkation Headquarters 
and the Port authorities in this regard. The Committee would also 
suggest that the Ministry should undertake a comprehensive review 
of the existing arrangements for the handling of vital and sensitive 
defenoe equipment and raw materials at  the ports so as to ensure 
their safe delivery and the prevention of pilferages. 

33- 6.25 MinistryIof Defence The theft in this particular case could, perhaps, have been pre- 
Department of vented if adequate action had been taken by the Embarkation Head- 
Defence Produnion quarters, in close coordination with the Railway authorities, to 



ensure that wagons which were in sound and rail-worthy condition 
were made available for movement of the consignment immediately 
on arrival at the Port. The Committee would, therefore, urge the 
Minist~y also to review the present arrangements for the despatch 
of sensitive stores and other items from the parts to the consignees 
and ensure that such sensitive items are not allowed to remain in 
the ports longer than is absolutely unavoidable. 

According to the findings of the Court of Inquiry, assembled in 
April 1973 to investigate into the loss, the subject stores had been 
stolen from the jetty, while they were in the custody of the Port 
authorities, by unidentified professional thieves, in collusion with 
one or more persons of the Port Trust and one or more persons of 
the then Port Police. The Committee have also been informed that 3 
immediately after the theft came to light, the Port Commissioners 
had ordered a departmental enquiry and registered a case with the 
Police and the C.I.D. The Committee would like to be informed of 
the outcome of these investigations. 

The Committee note that the Port Trust had agreed to make an 
ex-gratia payment of Rs. 50,000 to compensate the loss and would 
like to know whether this amount has since been paid. Now that 
the security arrangements have been tightened with the replacement 
of the Port Police by the Central Industrial Security Force, the 
Committee expect that such thefts would be prevented. 



36. 6.28 Ministry of Defence The evidence in this case also reveals a certain neglect and in- (Department of difference on the part of the Defence authoribies. Long before the 
Defence pmduccion) arrival of the stores, the Embarkation Headquarters had. as an extra 

- ~~ 

precaution called for by the situation obtaining at that time in and 
around Calcutta, requested the consignee factory, on 18 August, 1970, 
to arrange an escort for the stores from the docks to the factory. A 
copy of this letter had also been endorsed to the Director General, 
Ordnance Factories who. while unwilhg to accept any responsibility 
for the security of the stores, had pointed out, on 27 August, 19710, 
that under the instructions in vogue, the r&ponsibility for arranging 
an escort rested with the embarkation authorities at the ports and 4 P had, therefore, advised the Embarkation Headquarters to take neces- 
sary action in this regard. The consignee had also been instructed 
sin~ultanceously to intimate, 'by return of post', whether the stores 
were required to be despatched to the factory under escort, and a 
copy of this letter baa been endorsed to the Director of Movements, 
Army Headquarters. While the Director of Movements took no 
action on the copy of the letter received by him, since action to 
arrange for the escort was required to be taken by the Embarkation 
Readquarters, in consultation with the local Military Commander, 
and not by the Army Headquarters, the consignee factory had not 
replied either to the letter dated 18 August, 1970 from the ~rnbaka- 
tion Headquarters or b that dated 27 August, 1970 from the Director 
General, Ordnance Factories, till a telegram was again issued on 



8 September, 1970. I t  is also not clear to the Committee why the 
Embarkation Headquarters, having considered it necessary to take 
extra pxautions during transit, despite the fact that the consign- 
ment was not one of the items required, under regulations, to be 
despatched under escort, had not pursued this question to its logical 
conclusion in consultation with the local commander. 

It is true that, as has been contended by the Ministry, since the 
theft in the present, case had occurred when the stores were in the 
custody of the Port Commissioners, the provision of an escort would 
not have prevented the loss that took place prior to their despatch 
to the consignee. The Committee cannot, however, lose sight of the 
fact that adequate attention had apparen,tly not been paid to import- 
ant communications relating to a sensitive item of stores. It is % 

regrettable that even in an area where the concerned authorities 
themselves considered some special security arrangements to be 
necessary, much time was takeri up ia inconclusive correspondence. 
The Committee would, therefore, like the Ministry to examine the 
reasons for the neglect, particularly on the part of the consignee 
factory, with a view to taking appropriate remedial measures. 

There has also been considerable delay in arranging for a Court 
of Inquiry to investigate the case. The Committee find that though 
intimation in regard to the theft had been sent to the Dinector 



General, Ordnance Factories, in November 1970 itself, the question 
of appointing a Court of Inquiry was taken up with the Army Head- 
quarters by the Director General, Ordnance Factories some ten 
months later, in September 1971. W e  the reasons for this long 
delay have not been satisfactorily explained, the actual appointment 
of the Court took another fourteen months (December 1972) and the 
Court assembled only in April 1973, no less than thirty months after 
the event. The Committee have learnt in this connection that since 
an Army Court of Inquiry is confined to the oonduct of the people 
immediately concerned and in view of the fact that the theft had 2 occurred when the stores were not within the jurisdiction of the 
Defence authorities, the question of an inquiry by the Army autho- 
rities did not arise. The Embarkation Headquarters had, therefore, 
opined that no useful purpose would be served by instituting a Court 
of Inquiry as this was not likely to bring out any tangible evidence. 
The Committee consider it unfortunate that such a restricted and 
purely legalistic view should have initially been taken. Since the 
'inquiry had been suggested by the Director a n e r a l ,  Ordnance 
factories, with the objective of prescribing suitable remedial mea- 
sures for the future, and the theft of a vital raw material had taken 
place in suspicious circunlstances, the Committee are of the view 
that a comprehensive inquiry ought to have been pmmptly initiated. 



-do- Time and again, the Committee have been stressing the need for 
avoiding delay in the constitution of Courts of Inquiry. The inordi- 
nate delay in the present case emphasises its urgency. Government 
should ensure that such inquiries are held soon after the event, so 
that remedial measures can be taken and recurrence of such un- 
fortunate cases prevented to the extent possible. 




